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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 76, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is currently the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited, Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau
Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited and various other companies. He serves as a member of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of both DSFH and
DSBG. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber
of Foreign Investors and a Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. Mr. Wong has over 50 years of experience in banking
and finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, a Vice
Chairman of the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 64, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before he was appointed as a Director
in 1989; he was promoted as the Bank’s Managing Director in 2000
and Vice Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed as the Managing
Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in 2004 and promoted
as Vice Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed as a Director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) in 1993 and promoted
as DSFH’s Managing Director in January 2002. Mr. Wong is the
Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and a director of various
major subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Director of Great Wall
Life Insurance Company Limited, and a Non-Executive Director and
Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong)
in which the Group has a 14.66% equity interest. Mr. Wong is an
Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International Retail
Banking Council of the U.K. Mr. Wong has over 35 years of experience
in banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 47, joined the Bank in 2000, and was appointed as
an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March 2010.
He was appointed as an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited in 2004 and promoted as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive in April 2011. He is also a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited and Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Mr. Wong was
appointed as a member of The EFAC Financial Infrastructure Sub-
Committee, a sub-committee under the Exchange Fund Advisory
Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, in October
2014. He is a qualified solicitor in England and Wales and in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman
of the Board of the Bank.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 56, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for the
overall financial management and control, operations and IT functions
of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011. Mr. Wang
was appointed as an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited in 2004. He is also a Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Mr. Wang
is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wang has over 30 years
of experience in financial management and banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 49, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive
in August 2011. He is currently an Executive Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance
Company Limited and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. He serves as
Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible for
its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew has over 25
years of experience in financial services in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Mr. Lau, aged 54, joined the Bank in 1992, and was appointed as an
Executive Director in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in
May 2014. He is currently the Head of Commercial Banking Division,
responsible for overseeing and supervising commercial banking
business. Besides, he is a committee member of SME Standing
Committee of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
in 2016-2017 and an Executive Committee member of the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries Group 18. Mr. Lau has over 25 years of
experience in commercial banking.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 50, joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking
business in February 2012, responsible for the development
and management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail
brokerage, wealth management businesses, private banking and
vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive Director in May
2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. Ms. Wong has
over 25 years of experience in retail and personal banking business
with other banks operating in Hong Kong, including Standard
Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.



SEENSEEEAEGBN

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BYFHTES

SEEMLE
BUIHHTEE

SO 765% - 1996 F R T AARRITZ B
FERTES - BHAATSBREEEGRAA([K
merl)  KRFRITEBRAERQE ([ AFRITE
E]) - REERT (P E) BRA R RAMAZRE
BRABIZBIIEPTES - RRARFEHBMEK
MRITEEEREZEgURRERFNEES Y
FFE - URTRERES ETMAR 2B IENTT
B PAERERERBBISTSTMAS
KEASHMASERSE - KB A HEES
EHERITZRIARA - RERITHERREB 20 4F -

BRAFERMBEAMBITEEIN - LEENAR
B BERNBASFHENREMZRES LTA
AETESRG - DR ABBPIREBRERR
NE - AEEEMARAR  BEEEERAR
MASEERAR  MEESSMERERAD
A ENEEERARAE (R20134 6 ART)
R EBEEEEFR AR (R20134F9 ARE) °

REBRE
BUIHNITEF

RS 665% 5 B 2006 F [ 2004 FEZ T
ARRITRARITZERERAGDAFTIRITER
BRAT (T RIRITEE ) 2 BT IENITES ©
1% B 2005 4 #8 ) F 2 A FT IR 1T 5 B 12 4 K 5 B
ZEEKE - REABABTB LGSR BA
(IER ) LEERBRBBIELERESS
MEBMEEREGR - HH2015F12 A31 A=
EEAEHERBIEEGZEENH20165F4
B HRREESHERBEBFERAFZEET KA
EEPERERAT - PEAIEERERAT R
HBDERRARZ B IENTES o

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 76, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in 1996. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. He serves
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of both DSFH and DSBG, and an
independent non-executive Director of a number of Hong Kong listed
companies as set out below. Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a former partner of
an international firm of accountants with which he practised for over
20 years.

Apart from DSFH and DSBG, Mr. Sze also holds/held directorships
in other Hong Kong listed companies during the last 3 years, namely,
China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited, Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings
Limited, Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited, Asia Satellite
Telecommunications Holdings Limited (retired in June 2013) and QPL
International Holdings Limited (retired in September 2013).

Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leung, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in 2006 and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the Bank’s immediate holding company, in 2004. He has
served as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of DSBG since 2005. He is the current President of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong and is currently a Legislative Councillor
(Industrial First) and the Honorary President of Federation of Hong
Kong Industries and Textile Council of Hong Kong. He ceased as
a Council Member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
with effect from 31 December 2015 and retired as a Director of The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited with effect from 25 April
2016. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of China South
City Holdings Limited, CN Innovations Holdings Limited and Harbour
Centre Development Limited.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lon Dounn (Lonnie Dounn)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dounn, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Bank in May 2012. He is also the Chairman
of Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank, and
an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. He also served as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited during the period from December 2010 to March 2012. Mr.
Dounn has over 40 years of extensive experience in the banking
industry and had assumed various senior executive positions in credit
and risk management in a number of banks, including HSBC and Bank
of China.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in May 2012 and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in August
2008 after his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief Executive Officer
of Heidelberg China Limited. He has served as a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of DSBG since May 2011. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience
primarily in the print media industry and has a sound knowledge of the
Asian markets, particularly in China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ng, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in October 2012, and an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited in April 2012. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”)
(a key operating subsidiary of the Bank), appointed in February 2013.
He has served as a member of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee of the Bank since May 2013. He was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee, Connected Transactions Control
Committee and Risk Management Committee of DSB China in
February 2013. He was further appointed as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of DSB China in September 2015. Mr. Ng
is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Chinney Alliance
Group Limited, a public company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng is an
Associate of The Chartered Institute of Bankers (UK) and a Fellow and
an honorary advisor of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Ng
has 40 years of extensive experience in banking and financial industry
with a focus on the corporate and institutional banking business
management for the last 12 years prior to his retirement from Hang
Seng Bank Limited in 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hau-Tak Li (Gary Li)
Alternate Chief Executive, Chief Credit Officer and Head of Group Risk
Division

Mr. Li, aged 56, joined the Bank in 2005. He has been the Chief
Credit Officer since September 2009 and assumed the role of Head
of Group Risk Division since February 2013. He was appointed as an
Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2015. Mr. Li graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree
and the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Master of Business
Administration degree. He is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in
banking.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Tsang-Sum Yien (Jason Yien)
General Manager and Group Head of Operations

Mr. Yien, aged 49, joined the Bank in 1998 and was appointed as
a General Manager and Group Head of Operations of the Bank in
October 2016. Mr. Yien attained a Degree of Doctor of Philosophy
in Industrial Engineering and Engineering Management from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and both a Master
Degree and a Bachelor Degree of Applied Science in Industrial
Engineering from The University of Windsor, Canada. He is a senior
member of the Institute of Industrial and Systems Engineers. Mr.
Yien has over 20 years of experience in consulting, operations
management, operational risk and project management mainly in the
banking industry.

Ms. Siu-Li Che (Yvonne Che)
General Manager and Group Head of Information Technology

Ms. Che, aged 52, joined the Bank in 2011 as General Manager,
Group Head of Information Technology Division. Ms. Che has over
30 years of experience in information technology industry, of which
26 years are in banking and finance sector. Prior to joining the Bank,
Ms. Che held various IT positions in multinational and regional
financial institutions. Since 2002, Ms. Che traveled around Asian
Pacific countries very often to work on standardization, integration
and globalization initiatives. Ms. Che holds a BSc degree in Computer
Science and a MBA degree.

Mr. Clement Poon
General Manager and Group Financial Controller

Mr. Poon, aged 47, joined the Bank in January 2003 as the Head of
Financial Accounting Department and was appointed as a General
Manager and the Group Financial Controller of the Bank in December
2014. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
attained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He is a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and an
Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Poon has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management in the banking industry.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Florence Siu-Wai Lee
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Lee, aged 52, joined the Bank in 2000 and has been the
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources since 2005,
responsible for human resources strategies and management of the
Bank. She graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Arts degree and obtained from The University of Hull,
U.K., a Master degree in Business Administration. Ms. Lee has over 25
years of experience in human resources.

Mr. Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A.

Mr. Kong, aged 54, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau) in July 2012. Mr. Kong has over 28 years
of experience in banking and finance business with other banks in
Hong Kong including Daiwa Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, and had
focused on corporate and institutional banking business management
for the last 12 years in DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited before joining
the Bank.

Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 54, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Alternate
Chief Executive Officer and Head of Business Development of Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Bank, in September 2012. He was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in December 2014 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in February 2015. Mr. Yau has 30 years of
experience in the banking industry in China and Hong Kong, and had
assumed various senior executive positions in Standard Chartered
Bank before joining the Bank.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

11



12

FFRRLE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHIE2HET 2016 F 12 A1 BILEE 2R
EENEEZ 2 HTEHRE -

EREK
RFRITAR AR ([ART]) 2 EEBEXH RIRM

RIT - P REMBERRYE - MBARZETER
TR R BTSRRI FE 26

RERBRIE
ARITREMBRA(ARE]) BE2016%F

12A31 BILFEZRERNE 20 B 256 Wik

EEgERPHREFR230F T HiK
142,600,000.00/87C * 2201649 A21 B3

BRR -

EEQRERERMBEER6.308T - &K
390,600,000.00 87T °

EBER
AN ARITEZ 2016 F12 A31 BILBIBFE A
KHBRTEBARARZ2EHBERAR » Bt A

RITIRIRCE B R Al 155 )EE 388(3) (b) 6 EZA M
EIBRBI2016 FEEES o

&N

AIRITRFERA 2 S FBERN PR T
37 -

B

AEBRFE 2#ENEMBFIL2,247,000.00
T °

REERTT AR AR 20165 F

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are
the provision of banking, financial and other related services. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 20.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$2.30 per share,
totalling HK$142,600,000.00, which was paid on 21 September 2016.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$6.30
per share, totalling HK$390,600,000.00.

BUSINESS REVIEW
No business review for 2016 is prepared as the Bank is exempted
under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance since

it was a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown
in Note 37 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$2,247,000.00.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze*
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung*
Lon Dounn*

Seng-Lee Chan*

Yuen-Tin Ng*

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

*Independent Non-Executive Directors

There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for
retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

13



14

FFRRLE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MEARES

RRFEAREAEZGREEAHLL - HEX
RITMBRREFEZEMEFTLEIRNAESR
SREERRZ [MBARES]| AR -

ESRARET 8z ER

BRARITZEEERATNATNESHEERBRA
AI(TRFEm]) REEERARARHIBITEESR
BRAR(TAMIRITER ) RRBIR 2 RARES
Bl ([Z55T8)) AERSHEANERETIZESH
RE1BTRERBRNESRMAARFRITEE
2D 2 HEF) o BHURE TRIREZITEER T
FRR - UNEERRNEEBMERXSMABER QA
FHH EMRBI(TCEMRAIN]) F17.03(9) G17E
T B TMERU T2 EREEEE « () BREKRY
ERTAREABERIBRAR([EERS
FrEEZRME: R()EERHESERETH
AISEARZARBERGMEE 2 FHWRME -
R BRG] (2622 %) 20144 3 A 3 B A 4KA]
RHzRBRE  EETBOHRREZITEERED
ZRIRIMESRMEAMBRITEEBRARKRN 2E
o (RRMEBINEE622%F) BETAR BB MR
SERRE ARSI AR EEESE - BERAE
ERRFHRMNEENH S - B2014F3 A3 A
B RETE R AFRITER ZRMHIEEE )
ZECDEERBRE—MRAIREEZEFS5ERE R
IR R SRR T o

AT AR B AR FEREAERE - ERRT
EXTBBRBARTZERAR 2RO MESE
Mgtz 8k

REERTT AR AR 20165 F

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the
date of this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of
Subsidiaries” section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively, eligible participants
may be granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to
subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per option
share is varied by tranches of grant, which is concluded on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the
date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of the relevant shares
traded on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. For options granted before the commencement of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal
value of the shares in the capital of DSFH and DSBG had been taken
into account in determining the exercise price per option share. (The
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) adopts a mandatory system of
no nominal value for all Hong Kong incorporated companies having
a share capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for all
shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of DSFH and
DSBG have no nominal value.) The options granted can be exercised
in varying amounts between the first and fifth anniversaries from the
date of grant in general.

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its
holding companies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described

below:

@

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option Schemes (the
“Old DSFH Scheme” and the “New DSFH Scheme”)

The share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), the Bank’s ultimate holding company,
adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old DSFH Scheme”) had expired
on 28 April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
DSFH Scheme”). No further options can be offered under the
Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration but the provisions of the
Old DSFH Scheme remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to exercise of all options granted prior
to the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme but not yet exercised
at the time of expiration.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Director of the
Bank, had outstanding options granted under the Old DSFH
Scheme.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the New DSFH Scheme and none of the Directors
had acquired shares in DSFH by exercising options granted
under the Old DSFH Scheme or the New DSFH Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

(®)

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Schemes (the
“Old DSBG Scheme” and the “New DSBG Scheme”)

The shareholders of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
the Bank’s immediate holding company, approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and,
at the same time, the termination of the Share Option Scheme
adopted by DSBG on 12 June 2004 (the “Old DSBG Scheme”)
at the annual general meeting of DSBG held on 27 May 2014.
No further options can be offered under the Old DSBG Scheme
after its termination but the provisions of the Old DSBG Scheme
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to exercise of all options granted prior to the termination
of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of
termination.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling
Wang, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong, Directors of the Bank, had
outstanding options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the New DSBG Scheme. Save for Mr. Harold Tsu-
Hing Wong, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat
Lau and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong who had acquired shares
in DSBG by exercising options granted under the Old DSBG
Scheme, no other Directors had acquired shares in DSBG by
exercising options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme or the
New DSBG Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its

subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party

to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Bank or any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS @

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Bank’s business to which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2016 have been set out in Note 41 to the financial
statements.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

17



18

EEEWEE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

HEESIEH

RIREEZ2016 F12 A31 B I FEF B HRE
B ARITE 2 ERESSREERNRIT
EAG0)HP FE60AIEEM 2 GIRITE(BE)RADZ

BHEEFR - NRITE 2 BRZWER, -
3 4
AP HRR BB KB E N EHPIES

ZRZEMBERSER - BRTERANRITERE
BFRBF RGP EISET -

AEFED
IFHE
TR

B 2017FE3 821 H

REERTT AR AR 20165 F

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
The Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES @

The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
up to 21 March 2017, being the date of the Report of the Directors of
the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Sou-Chao (Kenneth CHAN)
CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick

KONG Yiu-Fai (Eddie KONG)
LAU Shing-Tat Eddie

LI Hau-Tak (Gary LI)

Nicholas John MAYHEW

NG Yuen-Tin

POON Clement

POON Wing-Fai Jimmy

SZE Tsai-To Robert

TSANG Yuk-Fong Elly *

WANG Pak-Ling Gary

WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe
WONG Shou-Yeh David

WONG Tsu-Hing Harold
WOOCO NOMINEES LIMITED *
YAU Ho-Wing Vincent

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

*

Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
subsidiary(ies) of the Bank.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

#HZ=2016F 12 A 31 H L FE For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LAB® T LA517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2016 2015
B A Interest income 5,184,080 5,053,627
AEXH Interest expense (1,546,323) (1,716,730)
BB WA Net interest income 7 3,637,757 3,336,897
AR E RS YA Fee and commission income 1,064,411 1,129,685
AR5 E RAEZH Fee and commission expense (228,481) (220,048)
FIREERASBKA Net fee and commission income 8 835,930 909,637
FEERA Net trading income 9 123,225 196,573
Hh L& WA Other operating income 10 66,611 61,631
EERA Operating income 4,663,523 4,504,738
BB Operating expenses 11 (2,402,958) (2,250,608)
HBRBEE A 2 & EHEF Operating profit before impairment losses 2,260,565 2,254,130
EHREERE R EAE SR Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 13 (563,567) (496,352)
HBRETREREEEE 2 W& Operating profit before gains and losses
EEERA 2 EERA on certain investments and fixed assets 1,696,998 1,757,778
HE E M EE B E 2 F e R Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (306) (1,434)
SEMEANTEREZ Net gain on fair value adjustment of
U A investment properties 14,365 10,268
&R R EFEH 2 F N Es Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 44,062 16,568
HRELSHE A RIRE 2 BB Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate = (47,617)
JE(REE AR 2 54 Share of results of an associate 602,793 665,942
FE(R RSB 2 EE Share of results of jointly controlled entities 18,593 21,945
BB B R Profit before taxation 2,376,505 2,423,450
18 Taxation 14 (301,098) (308,530)
SR 1T IR SR PE AL 5 R A Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 2,075,407 2,114,920
F25BFF 191 B 2 IF ARG A M HRRZ — The notes on pages 25 to 191 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.

RFERITHR AR 20165 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2016F 12 A 31 H LLFZ For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LA T 74175178 ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
FEHF Profit for the year 2,075,407 2,114,920
FEHM2E KRGS Other comprehensive income for the year
HegtTesmmofERe ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently
zsARAIIER - to the consolidated income statement:
= Premises
REEFHBETER Reserves arising from reclassification
R E Y 2 FiE of premises to investment properties 29,928 1,393
AgEEEHmHEE Items that may be reclassified to the
FelmiRmIER ¢ consolidated income statement:
BHIRE Investments in securities
ERNER 2 I HIEEES Fair value gains on available-for-sale securities
NEER recognised in equity 297,272 57,262
A EREEE REREE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
W ERBR income statement upon:
—HERHEHEES - Disposal of available-for-sale securities (44,062) (16,568)
REEMHEEE 2 RERIE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve (49,192) 6,365
204,018 47,059
RE G IMEB R SRR Exchange differences arising on translation of
EHER the financial statements of foreign entities (363,202) (209,767)
MRFIAR 2 FE Hfth 2 E S Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (129,256) (161,315)
HNBRBHEE 2 FEL2ERGAE Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 1,946,151 1,953,605
F25 HEE2F 191 B2 DAGE Mgk 2 — The notes on pages 25 to 191 are an integral part of these
&5 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2016412 A 31 H As at 31 December 2016
(LAB® T A7) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2016 2015
BE ASSETS
RE RIERITH A Cash and balances with banks 17 15,057,913 17,505,032
FIR1T1 212 8 A REHAR TR Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 8,430,854 7,497,860
FHIEEBERENES Trading securities 18 8,871,844 8,572,394
EENATESER Financial assets designated at fair value
BEalEREE through profit or loss 18 21,137 16,498
PTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,177,322 1,079,328
BEERRHARRE Advances and other accounts 20 120,086,137 118,415,448
AR E RS Available-for-sale securities 21 32,739,161 24,187,845
BRI HES Held-to-maturity securities 22 10,223,840 10,476,296
&N AR E Investment in an associate 23 4,253,393 4,099,217
HEEGIEEIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 75,412 71,119
[EES Goodwill 25 811,690 811,690
B EE Intangible assets 25 58,640 59,805
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 27 3,005,107 2,871,587
HEYZ Investment properties 28 964,449 930,257
BNEAF IR & 2= Current income tax assets 1,605 -
BEFIBEE Deferred income tax assets 34 68,286 83,473
EEAE Total assets 205,846,790 196,677,849
=0 LIABILITIES
RITIFX Deposits from banks 2,318,203 1,550,911
PTESmMTA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,343,418 1,458,432
HIEEERZMAE Trading liabilities 30 7,748,887 6,270,630
BEFEER Deposits from customers 31 154,123,321 151,092,390
BEBITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 32 6,559,976 6,231,837
RIEER Subordinated notes 33 7,146,163 5,319,894
HRR B kAR Other accounts and accruals 3,003,398 2,608,112
BNEAFLIE & & Current income tax liabilities 159,165 201,204
FEEFRTEE & Deferred income tax liabilities 34 89,069 37,543
8EE5 Total liabilities 182,491,600 174,770,953
RS EQUITY
[N Share capital 37 6,200,000 6,200,000
HAib R (BREERBRAF) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 38 17,155,190 15,706,896
EmEaT Total equity 23,355,190 21,906,896
EnRkEEE Total equity and liabilities 205,846,790 196,677,849
EEZER2017 53 A 21 BELAERIZHESE - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2017.
FF3% FHHE David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EH o Director Director
HEE EX(=):3 Hon-Hing Wong Gary Pak-Ling Wang
EE EEpE Director Managing Director

F25 2 F 191 B2 ARG E MRk 2 — The notes on pages 25 to 191 are an integral part of these
o o consolidated financial statements.

RFERITHR AR 20165 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2016F 12 A 31 H LLFZ For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LA T 74175178 ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RERITRREEER
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Bank
BRA HAth & REEF EZEE
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
20161 B 1 H#&&R Balance at 1 January 2016 6,200,000 1,203,501 14,503,395 21,906,896
FERF Profit for the year - - 2,075,407 2,075,407
FEE M2 E R E Other comprehensive income
for the year - (107,414) - (107,414)
LARR #E 2 A5 LARR 19 1E 7% Provision for equity-settled
H RN 2 Bt share-based compensation - 1,101 = 1,101
2015 FARHR B 2015 final dividend — = (378,200) (378,200)
2016 FHHR 2 2016 interim dividend - - (142,600) (142,600)
201612 A 31 B#&# Balance at 31 December 2016 6,200,000 1,097,188 16,058,002 23,355,190
REITIR R FE(ERE =
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Bank
fg s H RE B8R EREE
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
201541 A1 B&#% Balance at 1 January 2015 6,200,000 1,362,855 12,500,075 20,062,930
FEHEN Profit for the year - - 2,114,920 2,114,920
FEEMEE R E Other comprehensive income
for the year - (161,315) - (161,315)
LARR #E 2 A5 LARR 19 1E 7% Provision for equity-settled
ELHE RN 2 B share-based compensation - 1,961 = 1,961
2015 FHHR 8 2015 interim dividend - - (111,600) (111,600)
2015 12 A 31 BH#&&%: Balance at 31 December 2015 6,200,000 1,208,501 14,503,395 21,906,896

%?
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BEEF 19 A ZMENIAGREMBRERZ —

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 25 to 191 are an integral part of these
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZ=2016F 12 A 31 H L FE For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LAB® T LA517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2016 2015
EEBH2EESRE Cash flows from operating activities
i“‘%/ﬁ@bmu}\fﬁi%%ﬁ Net cash from operating activities 39(a) 1,741,848 2,079,708
RETBHZHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
W iE — T E A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 39(b) (30,825) -
BEITE  REVEK Purchase of premises, investment
HbEE&E properties and other fixed assets (257,473) (493,198)
HETE - REMER Proceeds from disposal of premises,
H At [E 7E & EFT1S 5018 investment properties and
other fixed assets 138 23
WEEEFTRAR TR Net cash used in investing activities (288,160) (493,175)
METHZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITREER Issue of subordinated notes 1,929,703 =
S BEITRERR RER Interest paid on subordinated notes and
eI hs\ debt securities issued (277,626) (278,573)
3 T R AR AR B Dividends paid on ordinary shares (520,800) (111,600)
MEFRERA(FTA)R&F5E Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 1,131,277 (390,173)
ReRERRLERIEMFELE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,584,965 1,196,360
FURERERREER Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 17,149,454 16,080,566
P[RS 7 & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (113,207) (127,472)
FRESRZERBESLER Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 39(c) 19,621,212 17,149,454
Fo5BEF191 B 2T A GE MRz 2 — The notes on pages 25 to 191 are an integral part of these
2D o consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 21 March 2017.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2016:

° Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation — Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38;

o Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle; and

° Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on
the current period or any prior period and is not likely to affect
future periods.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2016, and have not been early adopted in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except for the following
standards:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

The Group is still conducting a detailed assessment of the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred
from HKAS 39, “Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement” and have not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting
for hedging instruments more closely with the Group’s
risk management practices. As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for hedge accounting, as the
standard introduces a more principles-based approach. While
the Group is yet to undertake a detailed assessment, it would
appear that the Group’s current hedge relationships would
qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
Accordingly, the Group does not expect a significant impact on
the accounting for its hedging relationships.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contract assets under HKFRS 15,
“Revenue from contracts with customers”, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.
The Group is assessing how its impairment provisions would be
affected by this new standard.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected
to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. Based on the transitional provisions
in the completed HKFRS 9, early adoption by phases was
only permitted for annual reporting periods beginning before 1
February 2015. After that date, the new rules must be adopted
in their entirety. The Group does not intend to adopt HKFRS 9
before its mandatory date.

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group’s financial statements and has
identified the following areas that are likely to be affected:

° revenue from service — the application of HKFRS 15
may result in the identification of separate performance
obligations which could affect the timing of the

recognition of revenue,

° accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling a contract
— certain costs which are currently expensed may need to
be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15, and

o rights of return under HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right to recover
the goods from the customer and the refund obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

(VA7 FTh751)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

At this stage, the Group has not yet completed the estimate of
the impact of the new rules on the Group’s financial statements.
The Group will make more detailed assessments of the impact
over the next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases. Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low value leases and some
commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under HKFRS 16.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. The Group has not yet determined to what
extent non-cancellable operating lease commitments will result
in the recognition of an asset and a liability for future payments
and how this will affect the Group’s profit and classification of
cash flows.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not
intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are not yet

effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment
loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the
income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, except for
subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.6

2.6.1

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition
as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option) if the following criteria are met:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the assets is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are

recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.
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2.6

2.6.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)
(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require
adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through

profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.6

2.6.3

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets
are derecognised. Upon derecognition, the gains and losses
previously recognised in equity are reclassified into the income
statement.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as impairment charge on

held-to-maturity investments.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;

° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for
example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of

impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income

statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be obijectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if
past due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due

loans.

2.8 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value and are derecognised when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. The bases for the
determination of fair value of financial liabilities are set out in Note
3.5(a).

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.8

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the statement

of financial position, and the difference between the carrying amount

of a liability and the consideration paid is accounted for as a gain or

loss in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.9

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading income”. For derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their
fair value are included under “Net trading income — Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is

an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not

be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the

normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other
assets”.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Segment reporting (Continued)

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank and major part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding
item.
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(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESTEEHE@w@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 SNEBRE m)

(Z) XBREE (&) (b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.



B #%5 Rk M ot

2. FEEHBEXRBEm@

214 SNEBE )
() FBET LA (#)

PiBREEL 2 E R ERNBIRERR [E
SEEIBATER -

RIFERAR - B RIMEEIFIRE TE
HZRBMER  JIABRRESRA  frH
SINEBREE  ZEABREBRIELE
PRS2 &0 W sk B B E W s R N FERR

HWEEIEEEECHERATFER
B WEFZBEIERZEERABR
B WENEERZEXRGRE -

215 TERHEMBEEEE

TETEERKHAENEME - KERASRERE
ZHE T R R EEEERE L RANRSRITE
ol - BEERABRREXRBRBRWEZSEB 2
X e

REE - REEMRAANSETRBEZRE
KBRS - ARZIE B Z R E] LA R] SE M EESE
- ZRBEEZERMRAT @IINEEZREE
PHERBEREEER(RFEAME) - BEWR
BHRE D REESRBEER - AEEMEE
PS4 2 BRI R s R A RR -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or

remaining period of lease

- Furniture, fittings, Over the estimated useful lives
equipment and generally between 3 and 10 years

motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the

income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets (Continued)

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s
share of the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that
entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s
share of the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including
goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income
within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the holding company will issue new
shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount
from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share
capital” account.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the

financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated
by the Board oversee and guide the management of different risks
which are more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group
Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking account of the overall business strategy and
direction. As for the Risk Appetite Statement, it sets out the tolerance
for the assumption of risk by the Group in the pursuit of return and
key corporate objectives and covers the areas including target
returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency and other key
risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the ongoing monitoring
of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular
reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the
use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”)
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the
committees responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio
monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These
committees are all chaired by the Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”) with certain Executive Directors and senior
business and credit officers as members. Credit risk measurement,
underwriting, approval and monitoring requirements are detailed in
credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management based
upon established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit
exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and
controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s
internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure
compliance with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2

3.2.1

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement

(@

Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and

to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,

the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk

of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or

counterparty; and (iii) the amount of impairment allowances.

@)

(ii)

(i)

The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally
and combines general credit analysis and judgements
of credit officers, and is reviewed, where applicable, by
comparison with externally available data. The Group’s
rating scale has 13 grades which are segmented into
three broad rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3.
Credit exposures migrate between credit grades and
rating classes as the assessment of credit quality on the
borrower and business environment changes. The rating
tool is kept under review and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.

Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both

outstanding exposure and undrawn commitment.

The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.
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3.2

3.2.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(b)  Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee,
documentary letter of credit, standby letter of credit and
undrawn commitment on legally bound facilities. Their credit
risk is similar to loans except for documentary letters of credit
which are usually short term and self-liquidating and carry a low
level of credit risk and capital charge.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2

3.2.1

(LAZE®E T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d) Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control

concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or

counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower

or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their

exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are

capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the

overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to

the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All

these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the
GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit rating of
individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are the
respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional
recourse to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements
provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2
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(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(@ Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

° Charges over deposits.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual
loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.

(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter
into International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement
or analogous master agreement in order to follow the
standardised market practice of close-out netting arrangement
in the event of default or early termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also

in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and
derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at
the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under
HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
. Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
. Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual

account.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) assets that are individually assessed but

do not have individual impairment.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)

BEx.

covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three

broad internal rating classes.

2016 2015
WEZERE B
I E AT IEERERE
Aot Ao
Impairment Impairment
ERRBR  allowance EHE#EF  allowance
Bt as a % of Bt as a % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
advances balance advances balance
0/0 0/0 % %
45 Class
IS IER 1 - pass 97.9 0.3 98.6 0.3
2—FERIEEE 2 — special mention 0.6 6.3 0.3 8.9
3—IRBELAT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.5 27.7 1.1 29.9
100.0 100.0
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.



B #%5 Rk M ot

3. WXEEKRERE @
3.2 SER@m

324 Rt AFBEZERBARMEEREST
B2 REEERERE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

2016 2015
FHEERGERNEEZ Credit risk exposures relating to
EERBRENT : on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
R RIERI TR Cash and balances with banks 15,057,913 17,505,032
EIR1T1 = 1218 A R EHARITE K Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 8,430,854 7,497,860
BIEEERBENES Trading securities 8,871,844 8,572,394
EEAAFEGFEAHE Financial assets designated at fair
FFABRRN R EE value through profit or loss 21,137 16,498
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,177,322 1,098,418
BEERRBR Loans and advances to customers
EAAEF B Loans and advances to individuals
—EAR — Credit cards 4,613,534 4,706,017
—RIBER - Mortgages 32,224,005 31,273,079
— HAh - Others 11,557,295 9,729,001
EERRBR Loans and advances to corporate
entities
—BHER — Term loans 30,862,318 29,150,773
—RIBER - Mortgages 16,216,670 16,023,858
—E5mE — Trade finance 8,020,721 7,986,955
—HAM — Others 10,163,322 10,762,963
BHEE Trade bills 4,299,974 6,469,899
HibhBE Other assets 3,008,607 3,030,653
AEHERS Available-for-sale securities
—E%ES - Debt securities 32,272,699 23,733,525
FE 5B S Held-to-maturity securities 10,223,840 10,476,296

EREEREBERINABZ
EERBENT :

ISR EEMEEERE
FAAE

EFREREMEERRAZ
HHE

12 431 H

197,022,055 188,033,221

Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet items are as follows:

Financial guarantees and other credit

related contingent liabilities 1,570,209 1,215,161
Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 69,528,743 69,244,002

71,098,952 70,459,163

At 31 December 268,121,007 258,492,384
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(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure for the Group at 31 December 2016 and 2015, without
taking into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

o 3% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2015: 4%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 97% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2015: 98%);

° Loans and advances to customers that are either individually
or collectively impaired constituted 1.05% (2015: 0.75%) of the
total loans and advances to customers; and

° 78% (2015: 73%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2016 2015
i H R (R R R E Neither past due nor individually
impaired 110,340,178 107,028,100
18 HR (B AR E R R (E Past due but not individually impaired 2,143,478 1,808,227
&R E Individually impaired 1,174,209 796,319
4azE Gross 113,657,865 109,632,646
R OREZEE Less: allowance for impairment (855,755) (686,025)
SRR Net 112,802,110 108,946,621
2016 2015
BIEER R Impaired loans and advances
—EREE (GE(FR)) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 1,174,209 796,319
—RAREGE(Z)) — Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 21,617 21,815
1,195,826 818,134
B Impairment allowances made
— @RI (FE () — Individually assessed (Note (c)) (435,210) (327,953)
—fRaaHh (52 (2)) — Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (19,637) (20,026)
(454,847) (347,979)
740,979 470,155
FHEEMALATE” Fair value of collaterals held * 904,293 582,726
WEERMBRHEFERK Impaired loans and advances as a %
REBFBE B of total loans and advances to
customers 1.05% 0.75%

* ERRAFEDREERRTEREFREES
# MEPREEEE

*

collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

(b) Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

(c) The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$855,755,000 (2015: HK$686,025,000), comprising an allowance
of HK$435,210,000 (2015: HK$327,953,000) for the individually
impaired loans and the overall collective impairment allowances
of HK$420,545,000 (2015: HK$358,072,000) provided on loans
assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the impairment
allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to customers,
and other accounts is provided in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAZE®E T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 EF KRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FF) ARSI EZ B R EHN (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
ERNBTEAR EEEEAERTRE The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
& BB T — AR BRI 52 8.2.3 1R kY 3 K were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
ZEHVERSE assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.3.
fiA(ZEZF) i
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities
R EsHE
Credit  BEBER At  FEER  RBEX Trade At it
2016%12A31H At 31 December 2016 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
A5l Class:
1-I% 1 - pass 4550,265  31,446965 11,361,761 30,295,702  15842,478  7,294384 9,124,360 109915915
-kl 2 - special mention - - - 249,137 42,008 24,642 27,549 343,534
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 5,438 1,528 8,500 26,979 1,148 37,136 80,729
= Total 4550,265 31,452,403 11,363,289 30,553,339  15911,663 72320174 9,189,045 110,340,178
fIA(ZEZP) i
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities
R E58E
Credt  HIEEH Ay  FEER  ZBEN Trade At At
201512 A318 At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
i Class:
1-I% 1 - pass 4651874 30761014 9,542,438 28917171 15721279 7542085 9,824,553 106,960,394
-kl 2 - special mention - - 10,963 4,000 2,869 34,961 12,589 65,362
3-RBIUT 3 - sub-standard or below - 613 1,660 - 51 - - 2,324
= Total 4651874 30761627 9555061 28921171 15724199 7577006 9,837,142 107,028,100
ERBR A THER ZIRIBEREE EEHK Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were assessed as
W 2B EEBEIEARBIE ° not impaired after taking into consideration the value and recovery of
collaterals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEKRERE @ 3.
3.2 SER@m

325 BHRBS (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(Z) #EEHERFIE S B REZH (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EA(BEEF) ¥
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities

=ik 5%

Credit — RBEX At BHER  REER Trade A it
2016%12A31A At 31 December 2016 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
BH1ERIMUT Past due up to 1 month 40,002 611,313 145,456 20,430 120,696 74,111 632,743 1,644,751
SE1EANE Past due more than 1 month

23R and up to 3 months 12,238 98,931 32,328 10,140 40,680 38,420 56,306 289,043
BHEANE Past due more than 3 months

Z6f8A and up to 6 months 6,539 1,478 8,824 - 1,701 26,927 9,218 60,687
a6 AN L Past due more than 6 months 4,490 15,483 5 - 10,989 54,995 63,035 148,997
At Total 63,269 733,205 186,613 30,570 174,066 194,453 61,302 2,143478
BEERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals * - 732,416 4,005 29,008 173,129 172,800 679470 1,791,338

fIA(ZEXR) %
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities

iR BIME

Credt  BER i EHER  REER Trade Eh At
15124318 At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total
AH1EAZAT Past due up to 1 month 32,555 422,907 135,387 10,649 170,200 74,775 517,262 1,363,735
BH1ERNE Past due more than 1 month

Z3f8A and up to 3 months 11,000 61,160 25,094 5,087 18,779 6,532 90,016 217,618
SHIEANE Past due more than 3 months

2684 and up to 6 months 6,105 - 8,901 7,850 - 1,279 51,238 75,373
BE6EAN £ Past due more than 6 months 4,483 16995 5 37,168 21,284 240 71,326 151,501
At Total 54,143 501,062 169,387 60,704 210,263 82,826 729842 1,808,227
REERm ATE" Fair value of collaterals * - 500,661 4,523 59,259 205,800 25,115 653,554 1,448,912

* ER Mz A FEDREERATERER

AEESH  METREEME

RERITHR AR 20165 F

collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market value of
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. BERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 SER@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 EF KRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(Z) BEERFEZ BEHRZH (&) (b)

Loans and advances past due but not impaired (Continued)

VI TERE R R B - AR R w2z 2
FEDKEEFGEHEEEZGET AN
o BRERE ZBERBZAFEDNZE
T35 (B8 3k R 3R & 2 15 B 2 5T ©

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated
collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the
particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such
collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of
similar assets.

() EFIREZ &P B REH ()

Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

AEBARFT AR B FFFHERR 2R SIRATZ

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of

FERRERFER LR A1,174,209,000
77T (2015 4F : 796,319,000 7T) ©

{E R RE & % B R 2 4 5E S AN 5 B P %
TEHEIR 2 B R 1R A S E R AR 5 4 a0
T

the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held is HK$1,174,209,000 (2015: HK$796,319,000).

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

AEER-

fIA(SEEF) % {ERIHE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

B50E allowances -

BBEX B EHEX  REER Trade Rt At individual

2016%12A31H At 31 December 2016 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment

[ERIREER Individually impaired loans 38,397 7,393 278,409 130,941 506,094 212975 1,174,209 435,210
FRERR ATE" Fair value of collaterals* 38,897 5,274 186,282 109,530 405,106 159,704 904,293

EER-

fAA(ZERF) % (@RI

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

ORI allowances -

RS At AHER  REER Trade i A3 individual

0155124318 At 31 December 2015 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment

ERIREER Individually impaired loans 10,390 4,553 168,898 89,396 327,103 195,979 796,319 327,953
REERR ATE" Fair value of collaterals* 10,365 3,001 118,088 79,433 220,273 151,566 582,726

* ER Mz A FEDREERRTERIER
AEEGEH  METREEME

Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEKRERE @
3.2 SER@m

325 BHRBS (&)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(T) #5318 7 ULz EFRES (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
iy BEKEEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
2016 2015
AHAEER BERESE
ERHE Exuem
Gross h4%E Gross fh4a%
amount of BA amount of BAt
overdue loans % of total  overdue loans % of total
AEERFEX Gross advances to customers
185 - B which have been overdue for:
—3EANLER - six months or less but over
618 A three months 188,025 0.17 229,892 0.21
—6EAANUERTE - one year or less but over
six months 425,466 0.37 260,593 0.24
—1ENE — over one year 473,646 0.42 209,635 0.19
1,087,137 0.96 700,120 0.64
(i) BHREEERRBRZBREEER (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances

FrF R mE against overdue loans and advances

ERRBR il REER-

REBYH BhE il il HfhEE fBIRI A

Outstanding Current  FrAEDH ReREDH BERHEEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other allowances -

loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2016128318 At 31 December 2016 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
BHKEEEPEFREF  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 1,087,137 1,095,775 839,520 247,617 - 349,070

RERITHR AR 20165 F




B #%5 Rk M ot

3. WXEEKRERE @
3.2 SER@m

325 BHRBS (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(T) #EHI3ME AL LZ BB (#) (d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(Continued)
(i) BHEREEERRBIRZBEEEN, (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
P KR mE (&) against overdue loans and advances (Continued)
BERRER it REERE-
AERHH B B B AtEE [EIRET (R
Outstanding Curent  FAESH AAdESHH BERHEREE  Impairment
amount of market Portion Portion not Other  allowances -
loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual
2015%12 31 H At 31 December 2015 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
BHKEEEPEZREF  Overdue loans and advances
to customers 700,120 1,196,607 525,584 174,536 - 213,854

FEZERRIERERER  RIBME
R ARAREL b [E] E & EE AN R 4

(K) MEMEN (EHIF ERE L2

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits, mortgage over

properties and charges over other fixed assets such as equipment.

(e)

Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HEZ) overdue advances shown above
HHBEE DL BB DL
2016 % of total 2015 % of total
EFEX Advances to customers 394,408 0.35 243,284 0.22
BB Impairment allowances

24,982 15,825

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEKRERE @
3.2 SER@m

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 EZEE 3.2.6 Trade bills
2016 2015
Bo5ERE @ : Trade bills which have been overdue for:
—3fEAEZ=6MEA — six months or less but over
three months - 1,975
—6EARLEE1E — one year or less but over six months 4,644 3,070
—1FAE - over one year 6,337 -
10,981 5,045

2016 F N 201512 A31H * WERE ZEHE
}E o

3.2.7 W [EI# # qa
RERFAEZBEEFZNAT

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, no trade bills were impaired.

3.2.7 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2016 2015

BENE Nature of assets
ERyES Repossessed properties 131,243 140,163
HAt Others 6,842 7,464
138,085 147,627

WEHERRRATERAERHE - BRKIBBAMN
BIEBZBERAREERER

& 51 7] 2 38 4218 /5 58,933,000,% 7T (2015 F -
63,255,000 7T ) 2 1£ 7 B A1 3 &) 5 T B b )
¥ DA EIREPEAMEREMR ZELSTIT
E AR (E R KR B o ZIE I A 2 A M EE 29
ZEMEE|IBTNHIERREZEE - HEZ
BB LR o

RERITHR AR 20165 F

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the

proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the

borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$58,933,000 (2015: HK$63,255,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders

issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the

Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note

29. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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3. WXEEKRERE @
EER K @)
EBEF

3.2

328

TRARR 2016 F % 2015F 12 A 31 Hiz

FHREBIEE Z A HR DM 2 BT RE ©

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.8 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating

agency designation as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

BEEE EEN THEERE B2IHRE
REEE ATEFE  Available- Held-to-

Trading Designated for-sale  maturity CL
201612831 H At 31 December 2016 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA - - 2,536,311 - 2,536,311
AA- ZAA+ AA- to AA+ 8,871,844 - 8,946,344 1,530,009 19,348,197
A- EA+ A-to A+ - - 15,647,450 2,786,638 18,434,088
BB EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 20,040 2,746,471 1,873,496 4,640,007
AEAR Unrated - 1,097 2,396,123 4,033,697 6,430,917
At Total 8,871,844 21,137 32,272,699 10,223,840 51,389,520

HEBEE RN AEEERE FERIHEE
ftéE ATERNE  Available- Held-to-

Trading Designated for-sale maturity G
2015F12 A 318 At 31 December 2015 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA 249 - 997,458 - 997,707
AA- £ AA+ AA- to AA+ 8,572,098 - 7,104,515 1,372,442 17,049,055
A- £ A+ A- to A+ 47 - 10,681,887 2,711,844 13,393,778
B BERA- Rated but lower than A- - 15,878 2,756,536 2,191,143 4,963,557
RETE Unrated - 620 2,193,129 4,200,867 6,394,616
=i Total 8,572,394 16,498 23,733,525 10,476,296 42,798,713
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 WHBEEERBZEHBEELEEE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HREE exposure
(F) B (a) Geographical sectors
BEEFERZREHSMIHIBEE ZRRABRE Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
BRIZERAFEMSE - —RMs & according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
EXNERFEREEBERATRZ RS account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
R - ERASHER o when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area
which is different from that of the borrower.
TRAERFEFBRIREIEDH The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.
2016 £ 20154
12431 H 12AH31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
EPEEMMEE Gross advances to customers
— BB - Hong Kong 90,514,829 88,670,794
— e — China 7,573,907 7,374,771
— &P - Macau 12,796,849 12,014,448
—Hfh — Others 2,772,280 1,572,633

RERITHR AR 20165 F

113,657,865 109,632,646
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEKRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 SER@m

329 WEEELEEREEMEEZEEE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HEEE (&) exposure (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors

BREERRE - RITEREFRES Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2016 2015
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrE% Rt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 2,317,648 1,909,605
—MERE — Property investment 15,095,225 16,136,906
— SR E - Financial concerns 4,259,982 1,118,110
—RELALD — Stockbrokers 1,804,854 965,931
—REETER — Wholesale and retail trade 4,543,621 4,144,996
— RIS - Manufacturing 2,435,207 3,026,032
— B BB R - Transport and transport equipment 3,508,563 3,713,584
—REEE) — Recreational activities 78,395 262,522
— BB - Information technology 74,186 72,019
—HAi — Others 5,180,298 5,454,602
39,297,979 36,304,307
EA Individuals
—BE[EER — Loans for the purchase of

HEAE] [RA
2EREEME R
[AEERES]

flats in Home Ownership
Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and

BFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 756,457 869,023
—EEHEMEE - Loans for the purchase of
I ES=E other residential properties 22,230,051 21,260,300
—EAREXK — Credit card advances 4,377,622 4,465,225
—Hitb - Others 11,092,297 9,217,401
38,456,427 35,811,949
ERBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 77,754,406 72,616,256
Bo5mE (GE()) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,723,386 7,394,880
BB IMER R ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(3£ @) (Note (2)) 28,180,073 29,621,510

113,657,865 109,632,646
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(LAPS¥F7TAL%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEKRERE @ 3.
3.2 SER@m

329 WEEEEREBZEHEESEMRE
HEEE (&)

(Z) 7@

(1) ERSRzBESmMERSERTESRMER
BEBEER]) B2 HAESI M E
AEBED HOMBONRME - LUKRE
mEBESMESZER -

THEREBEZBSHMEBR(BIEARRT
ZBINRITRIB AR TZESRME) R
18297,335,000 %75 (2015F 12 A 31 H :
592,075,000 8 7C) DR [TEB B AIME
FA®MERIET -

@ EEEMMEBNEREERTEERP
BEFBAIMEBZEK

REERITHR AR 20165 F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure (Continued)

(®)

Notes:

M

Industry sectors (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
totalling HK$297,335,000 (31 December 2015: HK$592,075,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.
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3. WXEERERE @
3.3 WA

MR Ty T i5 BRI R RERE(C TSI R
BE ABEMBEERBERIMNGAEZERRAR

BERGzmsRBEIHESS  BREENRS
REBERMEMRERRZESRESERT
ZRENMZEZ S RRARRBRERIESIANEE - &
BIRBIRA A BEIA RS ERRTREELERR
EoRERBEEABETRESHE LR -
FRMERERTSERBE(MERAREED 2
EE- AR RBRNEESATEERRK
MEARK - SER R Rz @k E R R e (R
REIE KBRS ]) T — BB 2 AR IR K
B BELBRERMEFIRE - W5 - 5
B ERREEZFARLERARTHERR
FrRBRHIERRSZKFEAR - HANFERER
M BERBEEARRREFEEBEEE-ME
kRERREE S RREERAREZEGHE
EEEERIE -

RRTZHBRARRPIFERITRMOERA A
(DRFRERT D RAFRIT(HE) BR QA
(TRFHRIT (FE) ) REE —EBERBMBER
REARRITRE 2 BETISRARIEHANTER
TZHERS - NRIT 2 AREE R EEAER
N EIER BIRPIE R IRIT A IRTT (F B B E
LE TSR

AEEREHEEERIRITRZmSRARERT
[l BB ERBRRIEF o

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAZE®E T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by the Bank. The RMCD
of the Bank oversees and controls the market risk arising from the
treasury operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TAL%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

B S b B ()

3.3 mWiZE @)
331 FEEERZ H5EE
T ARt =B B AR T ORI S 8R1T o

AEBEZEERA - HINE - BFES - #alt
ERMITETAZ EERATFEN SRR °

(FF) THRRE B %

ERMERRER AEEERZEER
BRRA 2 TEF ET SRR RIEHI TS
RBREREERBEREAN - TZAN
SrEREEMSRER G EITARET o

() THSERERESE

AEEEATSRBEEE - AT —
BUSGAEERFEEERALES
Emi5 T F B ETEEERL - ER
AREBNEEBEKFERAIREELRZ
RAEEE  pi— B AH 2 EAEIEH
H AEBZEREKERE9% - Bt
FERBERAIEER - ERBKA R
LSRR EE 2 AT AR - Bt
BRANRZ T AN TR e B TS A L 2
EERERBEILEREE 28K -

SRR EEENRRZERT A Y
(MAEEMER—R) BEEART
B o MBRERBEMIERS R 2R
miE  mERAREAZBEE—EEF
BBz HERERRKE  £R—E2
M RRBEEAE -

REERIT AR AR 20165 F

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

The following descriptions relate to the Bank and BCM.

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and
control market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of

extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of one
calendar year using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology.
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3. WXEERERE @
3.3 WiZE @)
331 FEEERZ T 5ERE &)

(FF) THREREE B % (%)

() THiZRREE@E)

AEERELBAAEERZMSEA
SEEAR  FERITSRREE
BRA 7 BRI - prE MBI IR E
FUAERAREEEASER -

EmisRREBERRNEE 2 5 ER
ERGRAN-EERE EFEERA
BRZZEERMBEERARED
RS RARBREEE RO RESES
Y WESEGFEN - AREER
ERBeREREEMSRAREEZ
ERRREEE I EITER - A%
ERFARIHRSEE) 2 THRRH
BB H{E42,468,0007 7T (20154 :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are

reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$2,468,000 (2015: HK$2,368,000).

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. UHEREEE@m

3.3 WiHEE @

331 FEEERZHEEE &)
(Z) TiEEmEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

HZ2016F 1231 ALL12/8A BHZE2015%12 318 1E12{8A

12 months to 31 December 2016 12 months to 31 December 2015
¥ 5] &iE 4 53 (K
Average High Low Average High Low
SNER Foreign exchange risk 2,288 2,675 1,782 1,397 2,137 732
MERE S Interest rate risk 989 1,482 461 471 1,459 181
2HER Al risks 2,468 2,960 1,900 2,368 3,563 1,573
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3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries
in Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$11 million higher (2015: HK$14 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$11 million lower (2015: HK$14 million lower).
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(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in its
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate Risk
Management. From an earnings perspective, interest rate
risk is the risk that the net income arising from future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that
may be undertaken and monitor the interest rate impacts
through scenario analysis and stress testing regularly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points higher with other
variables held constant, the profit after tax over the next
12 months and the equity would have been HK$25 million
higher (2015: HK$46 million lower) and HK$632 million
lower (2015: HK$748 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity analysis on

foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are on the same basis for
both 2015 and 2016.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s

investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed

to other price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments

could change significantly depending on a variety of factors including

liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect

individual or portfolios of exposures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 WiEE @ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 JMER R 3.3.3 Currency risk
TRT|ANE B SRS KA EMET| L > The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
TRMEENMAG  URBEEEBBERIMEERZEF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
BREEAE SR - commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by
currency.
BT EYH R ARE Hit |3

2016 12H 318 At 31 December 2016 HKD usD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 2,991,263 8,201,101 484,011 1,786,324 1,595,214 15,057,913
ERT1Z 12 A RIS Placements with banks maturing

VeZ s between one and twelve months 2,730,000 3,139,380 - 1,783,549 777,925 8,430,854
HIEEERRNES Trading securities 8,871,502 - - 342 - 8,871,844
BENATESEAELES Financial assets designated at

STAERNEREE fair value through profit or loss - 21,137 - - - 21,137
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 20,699 1,145,007 - 485 11,131 1,177,322
Xﬁ%%ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B Advances and other accounts 86,941,819 17,293,945 6,367,044 8,856,064 627,265 120,086,137
EHER Available-for-sale securities 6,048,610 26,275,108 631 198,390 216,422 32,739,161
iR Held-to-maturity securities 400,000 6,595,010 2,401,808 540,012 287,010 10,223,840
SREEST Total financial assets 108,003,893 62,670,688 9,253,494 13,165,166 3,514,967 196,608,208
8 Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 63,210 1,882,902 - 366,327 5764 2,318,203
fTEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 32,359 1,276,663 - 183 34,213 1,343,418
HEESRENEMR Trading liabilities 7,748,887 - - - - 7,748,887
EYSIER Deposits from customers 106,834,557 20,535,152 9,613,684 11,426,415 5713513 154,123,321
BRETNEHE Certificates of deposit issued 4,816,285 1,743,601 - - - 6,559,976
BEES Subordinated notes - 5941014 - - 1,205149 7,146,163
HifR B kB Other accounts and accruals 1,573,952 981,297 75,867 285,815 86,467 3,003,398
SREEAH Total financial liabilities 121,069,250 32,360,719 9,689,551 12,078,740 7,045,106 182,243,366
BEEBRRAFETE Net on-balance sheet positions ~ (13,065,357) 30,309,969 (436,057) 1,086,426  (3,530,139) 14,364,842

BERERIMIERETFE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 25,579,010  (29,168,577) = (166,402) 3,514,048 (241,921)
REREE Credit commitments 61,894,526 4,953,658 683,772 3,443,879 123,117 71,098,952
* BERBBERINGFAERE FHIETEANRERE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
BINEBF R 2IINESRIOTETENBEF amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which
HE o are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

BT e ks ARE Hith =

201512 A 318 At 31 December 2015 HKD ) MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 5,645,828 7,748,567 496,360 2,062,617 1,551,660 17,505,032
ERT1 212 AREIEHH Placements with banks maturing

F between one and twelve months 300,001 5,060,782 - 1,825,588 311,489 7,497,860
FEESRENES Trading securities 8,572,347 - - 47 - 8,572,394
BENATEFEAHE Financial assets designated at

SABRNSREE fair value through profit or loss - 16,498 - - - 16,498
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 42,870 975,141 - 52 61,265 1,079,328
FEEFRAMERE Advances and other accounts 84,532,315 17,186,933 5,879,516 9,870,768 945,916 118,415,448
A E B Available-for-sale securities 3,452,323 20,040,127 631 456,016 238,748 24,187,845
BEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 540,296 6,513,189 1,994,338 1,132,754 295,719 10,476,296
EREES Total financial assets 103,085,980 57,541,237 8,370,845 15,347,842 3,404,797 187,750,701
af Liabilities
RITIEH Deposits from banks 103,918 1,446,107 152 112 622 1,550,911
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 29,639 1,413,377 - 581 14,835 1,458,432
HEESRENER Trading liabilities 6,270,629 - - - - 6,270,629
XPER Deposits from customers 107,835,109 15,782,914 8385965 13542557 5,545,845 151,092,390
BEITMENE Certificates of deposit issued 5,945,244 286,593 = = - 6,231,837
{&EfRH% Subordinated notes - 4,096,710 - - 1,223,184  5319,804
Hinfk B RFERE Other accounts and accruals 1,422,160 628,826 55,357 408,514 93255 2,608,112
eREEA Total financial liabilities 121,606,699 23,654,527 8,441,474 13,951,764 6,877,741 174,532,205
REBBRAREFE Net on-balance sheet positions ~ (18,520,719) 33,886,710 (70,629) 1,396,078  (3,472,944) 13,218,496

BERERIMGRRRFR"

R eI

Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 29,612,545  (33,002,743) - (283,729) 3,488,306 (185,621)

Credit commitments 60,704,881 6,288,507 902,569 2,461,184 102,022 70,459,163
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEKRERE @

3.3 WiEE @
3.3.4 FIEEfE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate

risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and

liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual

repricing or maturity dates.

3EANL 180
3{8A EE B5%
HHT Over Over 5ENE THE
3months 3 months to 1yearto Over  Non-interest Rt
2016 12A31H At 31 December 2016 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Be RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 14,433,181 - - - 624,732 15,057,913
R 212 ARE B Placements with banks maturing
B between one and twelve months 7,341,451 1,089,403 - - - 8,430,854
FEEERRNES Trading securities 4,931,755 3,880,021 60,068 - - 8,871,844
BENATEEAEEY Financial assets designated at fair
TABGHEHEE value through profit or loss - - - - 21,137 21,137
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,177,322 1,177,322
EEEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 97,353,190 6,756,560 9,903,125 1,798,264 4274998 120,086,137
eSS Available-for-sale securities 5,852,865 2,797,424 18,324,477 10,293,182 471,213 32,739,161
BRIHES Held-to-maturity securities 4,266,296 3,147,947 2,809,597 - - 10,223,840
SREEAT Total financial assets 134,178,738 17,671,355 26,097,267 12,091,446 6,569,402 196,608,208
= Liabilities
H/iTER Deposits from banks 793,232 33,358 1,395,828 - 95,785 2,318,203
fT4ERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,343,418 1,343,418
FEEEREMAE Trading liabilties 5,083,167 2,415,765 49,955 - - 7,148,887
EPER Deposits from customers 123,049,950 23,355,524 1,286,633 - 6,431,214 154,123,321
BRARERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,642,359 1,659,472 1,258,145 - - 6,559,976
) Subordinated notes 1,634,220 - 5,511,043 - - 7,146,163
HinfRA RER Other accounts and accruals 7,650 - - - 2,995,748 3,003,398
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 134410578 27,464,119 9,502,504 - 10,866,165 182,243,366
NEHREEAH (REHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (231,840) (9792,764) 16,594,763 12,091,446
NEfTETARHZEE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 5,677,142 (61,225) 4218879 (10,022,433)
NEHREEAH (T9%)" Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 5,445,302 (9,853,989) 20,813,642 2,069,013
@ SRR EEA B @ﬁ%f@mﬁg@g BRANEERM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
BENEAEERET - KPR A @ BB st A on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
RV F = E e M ﬁa‘jﬂ RETET BEHHKR takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
£ into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EAMNE 1€
3fEA EE E55
T Over Over SEpE AFtE
3months  3monthsto 1yearto Over  Non-interest 8%

2015612 4311 At 31 December 2015 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERHES Cash and balances with banks 15,733,402 1,111,202 - - 660,428 17,505,032
ERT1Z 12/ AR Placements with banks maturing

B between one and twelve months 4,399,716 3,098,144 - - - 7,497,860
FEEERRNES Trading securities 2,421,056 6,121,951 29,387 - - 8,572,304
RENATEEAAE Financial assets designated at fair

HABGNEREE value through profit or loss - - - - 16,498 16,498
ik - Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,079,328 1,079,328
REEFHRADEKR Advances and other accounts 96,175,563 8,017,829 8,099,579 1,678,326 4444151 118,415,448
At ERS Available-for-sale securities 2,782,122 2,130,471 12,311,285 6,495,804 459,073 24,187,845
FREEES Held-to-maturity securities 3,503,986 677,165 6,205,145 - - 1047629
SHEEAT Total financial assets 125,015,845 21,165,762 26,735,396 8,174,220 6,659,478 187,750,701
8 Liabiliies
KiTER Deposits from banks 686,709 - 813,758 - 50,447 1,550,911
ITESBTIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,458,432 1,458,432
FEEERENARE Trading liabilities 703,526 5,504,770 62,334 - - 6,270,630
BFER Deposits from customers 116,691,395 27,616,233 747,174 - 6,037,588 151,092,390
BETHERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,160,688 1,616,677 1454472 - - 6,231,837
{hEE Subordinated notes - - 5,319,894 - - 5,319,894
HbiRE RER Other accounts and accruals - - - - 2,608,112 2,608,112
SRAEAE Total financial liabilities 121,242,318 34,737,680 8,397,629 - 10,154,579 174,532,206
NEGREEAH (REHAR)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)” 3773527 (13571918 18,337,767 8,174,220
MEfTETARL 72 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,825,721 795,495 2,326,751 (6,105,877)
M FREERH (MHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 6,599,248 (12,776,423) 20,664,518 2,068,343
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(LAPS¥F7TAL%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standard and to ensure that there is an
adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand a prolonged period of liquidity stress of
not less than a month. Starting from 1 January 2015, the Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) introduced by the
HKMA to replace the liquidity ratio as a regulatory standard as part of
the implementation of Basel Ill liquidity regime in Hong Kong. During
the period, the Group had maintained a sufficiently high LMR well
above the statutory minimum of 25%.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in April 2011. The SPM LM-2
is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles formulated
by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”)
to strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of banks.
During 2016, the HKMA has issued the revised SPM module LM-1
“Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity Risk” in July and
the revised module of the SPM LM-2 in November respectively. The
liquidity management and reporting framework as well as disclosures
of the Group are being enhanced for meeting the new requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including
the LMR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate
limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid
assets are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term
funding requirements. The Treasury Division is responsible for the
day-to-day management of funding and liquidity position while the
RMCD is responsible for the measurement and monitoring of liquidity
risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis, and also conducting
liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial Control Division
(“FCD”) handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk, and
coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR,
budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. A liquidity cushion is held to
withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Eligible securities in
the cushion are mainly in high credit quality and have sufficient market
depth that can be realised within 1 month. Debt securities held are
marked to the market on daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BEEER

Asset classes

AEREL
Eligibility criteria

AL R ZRE

Internal categorisation = Cash to be recognised
FARK 118 AR

Level 1 Within 1 month

BT~ 28 BRIRITRA L BT
Z BTG ES
Debt securities issued by government,

0% K 20% 2 EfgiES

0% and 20% risk weighted
multilateral development banks and
public sector entities

FEoM 1EAR HEERMPEBITLERZS EERIRAA-SUA
Level 2 Within 1 month Debt securities issued by non-financial Credit rating with A- or
corporate entities above
BN AR E ) RS Size of the liquidity cushion
(B8%T)

(in HK$ million)
WD 4R Internal categorisation 2016 2015
F1HR Level 1 14,355 11,554
FEoMk Level 2 9,684 7,891

AEEFHETENNS - SFE%ES TR
B~ — RIS R RO M E TR ERIART
ERBEMRRERBZMISER THEEZE
WEHEEZEEFTE - FINERERBIEREZ
REMRESBER TEFRSR TR ZEF (F]
WETEEBRX LB ERHERD ERRE R
RBEZEE)  EEARBZRZRAFRAE
TRRERBRTZRSRAAME @ WRER
ME=ZNZRHEE - AEBZMBARNESR
ERXBEATAERERDESHNABNER
E o AEBEZMTETARZH RS RINES LKA
LW - BOITET RGN TAKB ZEBERREE
R - (5 BRI E 3R - BINTE ERMA
BERRBEHAEENRBHESRRTERTE
i -
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The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario
and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the
potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed market
conditions and has formulated a contingency plan that sets out
strategies for dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions
or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk management purpose)
in emergency situations. Intragroup transactions are conducted
on arm’s length basis and are treated the same way as other third
party transactions for the purpose of cash flow projection under
normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are required to manage
their liquidity positions to meet their needs under both normal and
stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative transactions
are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts. Under the
terms of our collateral obligations under derivative contracts, in the
event of a three-notch downgrade in credit ratings, the impact on the
Group’s liquidity position from additional collateral required to post is
immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TROMAEBIRFERREAEANZNEH i The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
REFELOH (ER) 2 FgHBRE faz EE relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
aE- end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where
applicable, the earliest callable date.
1EARE
B3@ATMT 3EANL 180
3 months 1 B5E
MHEE  1BAINT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  fERH it
2165128317 At 31 December 2016 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
fﬁﬁ&&fﬁﬁﬁ’] A Cash and balances with banks 1,075,387 13,082,526 - - = = - 15,067,913
ERT1Z12(8RR Placements with banks maturing
E‘J?ﬂﬂﬁﬁm between one and twelve months - - 7,463,765 967,089 - - - 8,430,854
*ﬂ%”ﬁgﬁ%%ﬁ V&R Trading securities - 2,602,110 2,706,114 3,469,166 94,454 - - 8,871,844
BENATENEELEE) Financial assets designated at
M?ﬁmﬁ’]ﬁ BAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 21,137 - 21,137
fEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - 62,761 153,035 604,064 119,772 237,690 - 1,177,322
EEEAREMEE Advances and other accounts 8,246,624 14,898,539 11,842,896 14,926,873 32,248,055 36,375,334 1,547,816 120,086,137
M ERS Available-for-sale securities - 2,057,565 3,052,212 3,006,572 183,309,842 10,841,757 471,213 32,739,161
HEIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,676,029 2,908,307 3,179,324 2,460,180 - - 10,223,840
SEDEIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4,053,393 4,253,393
AFEHEREE Investments in jointly
controlled entities - - - - - - 75,412 75,412
HE Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EVAE Intangible assets - - - - - - 58,640 58,640
TEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3,005,107 3,005,107
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 964,449 964,449
AEfEEE Current income tax assets - - - 1,605 = - - 1,605
EEHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 68,266 - - 68,266
BEAT Total assets 10,222,011 34,379,530 28,126,329 26,154,693 48,300,589 47,475,918 11,187,720 205,846,790
B Liabiliies
ROBH Deposits from banks 41,180 124,926 730,360 33,358 1,388,379 - - 2,318,203
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 90,202 327,153 646,769 189,167 90,037 - 1,343,418
RIEEERRYER Trading liabilties - 550,384 4,732,783 2,415,765 49,955 - - 7,748,887
BFEH Deposits from customers 59,583,891 29,489,959 40,407,315 23,355,524 1,286,632 - - 154,128,321
BERENE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,245,281 2,047,083 1,800,467 1,258,145 - - 6,559,976
) Subordinated notes - - 1,634,220 - 551,948 - - 7,146,163
At A RER Other accounts and accruals 50,394 1,226,362 701,811 753,027 59,209 2,353 210,242 3,003,398
SERERE Current income tax liabilities - - - 159,165 o - - 159,165
EEHBAE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 89,069 = = 89,069
BRAT Total liabilities 59,675,465 32,727,204 50,780,725 29,173,075 9,832,499 92,390 210,242 182,491,600
FREtEE Net liquidity gap (49,453,454) 1,652,326 (22,654,396) (3,018,382) 38,468,090 47,383,528 10,977,478 23,355,190
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1AM E
BIEAIAT  3EAME 1)L
3 months E{fF E5E
HEE  1EAIUT or less Over Over SEHE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EGEHAH GH

20155124318 At 31 December 2015 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
R RESRTHRE Cash and balances with banks 2,241,730 15,263,302 - - - - - 17,505,032
ERT1Z128AR Placements with banks maturing

5| BRER between one and twelve months - - 4,399,719 3,098,141 = = - 7,497,860
RIEEERRYES Trading securities - 970,485 1,866,683 5,685,617 49,609 - - 8,572,394
EENATENEEEET) Financial assets designated at

TABRREREE fair value through profit or loss = = = = = 16,498 = 16,498
MEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 127,618 61,352 321,722 522,780 45,856 - 1,079,328
EEEAREMEE Advances and other accounts 8,287,082 13,158,116 13,997,900 16,916,472 29,032,931 35,735,537 1,087,410 118,415,448
REEES Available-for-sale securities - 272,680 1,801,792 2,593,677 11,974,532 7,086,091 459,073 24,187,845
HEIHES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,427,783 634,405 1,865,857 6,548,251 - - 10,476,296
BENARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4,099,217 4,099,217
RAFZHIERR: Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 71,119 71,119

e Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
BVEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 59,805 59,805
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,871,587 2,871,587
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 930,257 930,257
HEfeaE Current income tax assets - = = - - - - -
BEREAE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 83,473 - - 83,473
BEAH Total assets 10,528,812 31,219,984 22,761,851 30,481,486 48,211,576 42,883,982 10,590,158 196,677,849
af Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 21,047 96,303 40,000 581,254 812,307 - - 1,550,911
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 90,088 62,248 357,894 763,153 185,049 - 1,458,432
BIEEERBNER Trading liabilities - 436,010 267,504 5,504,770 62,346 - - 6,270,630
EFEH Depostts from customers 58,121,137 32442450  32,164.278 27,617,351 747,174 - - 151,002,390
BETNGE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,310,093 1,850,594 1,616,677 1,454,473 - - 6,231,837
hBER Subordinated notes - - - - 5,319,804 - - 5,319,804
R RER Other accounts and accruals 21,625 838,419 631,099 758,844 45972 - 312,153 2,608,112
JEfREak Current income tax liabilities - - - 201,204 = = - 201,204
EEHEARE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 37,543 - - 37,543
El-=h) Total liabilities 58,163,809 35,213,363 35,015,723 36,637,994 9,242,862 185,049 312,153 174,770,953
FREEE Net liquidity gap (47,634,997) (3,993,379)  (12,263,872) (6,156,508) 38,968,714 42,698,933 10,278,005 21,906,896
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

1EARE
E3EAGUT @AM 10k
3 months EE E5F
PHEE  1EAINT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  SERH it
on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
2016127318 At 31 December 2016
FREpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
RIS Held-to-maturity securities - - 100,000 100,000 200,000 - - 400,000
015512 A31H At 31 December 2015
FREpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
RIS Held-to-maturity securities - 378,578 - 498,955 300,000 - - 1,177,533

BERBBEHREMNENAEMZZENFELYSE
EEEETHER BmRETHNERRZIEESR
Kﬁ@iﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁ&Kﬂ%ﬁ%J CHERITME *Aﬁ
FERERLENER - MEEMNIJEMARES
Gl 1EmAi‘ﬁDJ§5?Eﬂfﬁ“ g

BEHBENIHERNGENRANERE P2
MERENES  EFEEERBES REREF
K REXESHAERBRNERRR

AEE— BT EHRE= e REFEREEZED
RAE®  ERERFNEREAZFE TS RIED
MBESHEREINAENSTE - AN RZEE
AERDHSRIFBBESAES  AtARRE
HEBEZEERENARENFENBSBEANER
AERIREEHERK -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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% BIZ BRI R - FIRHEREM
MEEH K

o BERMITETER - HERIEAE -

S SNEPTAET B : mEASNE - SNEREH
o FIRFTAETA: FIREHRMEEFR

= R
e EEUTATER: GREORMAEH -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

interest rate swaps; and
° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1EANLE
IBATFUT  3MEAME 1€ E
3 months BE Z5%
EEEEDSN or less Over Over 5L E
Up to butover 3 months 1year Over CHI
201612531 R At 31 December 2016 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FHETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
8% Liabilities
RITHER Deposits from banks 171,310 739,161 57,281 1,388,593 - 2356345
EPHER Deposits from customers 89,316,042  41,035364 23,627,830 1,380,074 - 155,359,310
HEEERENERE Trading liabilities 550,500 4,737,209 2,423,828 50,327 = 7,761,864
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,263,992 2,264,701 1,852,694 1,318,939 - 6,700,326
{&EE Subordinated notes 45,801 1,733,232 185989 6,184,172 - 8,149,194
iR Other liabilities 1,154,187 361,757 357,936 9,295 22806 1,905,981
BEAE Total liabilities
(BH3HA) (contractual maturity dates) 92,501,832 50,871,424 28,505,558 10,331,400 22,806 182,233,020
FETARSR Derivative cash flow
BFREEE Derivative financial instruments
$BTA settled on net basis (8,962) (13,083) (5,249) (11,153) (1,370) (39,817)
REBEE /TESBTA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
it 485 Total outflow 37,504,889 | | 14,088,014 | | 26,098,609 | | 3,073,949 970,731 | | 81,736,192
MALE Total inflow (37,492,892)( | (14,058,105)| | (25,951,105)| | (2,646,157) (651,300)| | (80,799,559)
11,997 29,909 147,504 427,792 319,431 936,633
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

106

(Continued)
1EAR B
EAFUAT AR L 1€ML E
3 months EE B5E
EEEDS or less Over Over 5EN L
Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over Az

2015612431 H At 31 December 2015 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
HTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
B Liabilities
BTN Deposits from banks 157,502 977 581,766 812,307 - 1,552,552
EPHER Deposits from customers 90,770,998 32,826,501 27,934,728 1,362,298 - 152,894,525
BEEEMENER Trading liabilities 436,000 267,620 5,505,473 62,724 - 6,271,817
BEANERE Certificates of deposit issued 1318436 1,859,906 1,657,069 1,491,721 - 6327132
#EREHR Subordinated notes 46,791 103,437 148,769 5,893,981 - 6,192,078
iR Other liabilities 719,035 344,348 321,962 - 54,463 1,439,808
BEeE Total liabilities

(BH3IEA) (contractual maturity dates) 93448762  35402,789 36,149,767 9,623,031 54463 174,678,812
(TEIARSR Derivative cash flow
REBEEZITE Derivative financial instruments

TRTH settled on net basis 6,690 4,848 (25,200) (52,362) (2,158) (68,182)
ROBEETESHTE Derivative financial instruments

settled on a gross basis
MminaE Total outflow 34,372,894 18,995,925 29,679,102 2,808,579 503,610 86,360,110
MAEE Total inflow (34,414,618)( | (18,995,176)| | (29,437,748) | (2,382,385) (249,458)| | (85,479,385)
(41,724) 749 241,354 426,194 254,152 880,725
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

o Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

° Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

° Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
1EH0R 150 E 5Ep
No later ZE5E Over &&t
2016 12H 31 H At 31 December 2016 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
ERE Loan commitments 67,252,494 1,799,476 455,744 69,507,714
R & R E R BRTS Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 827,652 148,601 - 976,253
—RERHEEAE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 593,956 - - 593,956
RBAER Forward forward deposits placed 21,029 - - 21,029
IR TR K Operating lease commitments 186,892 491,600 320,495 998,987
B Capital commitments 62,717 - - 62,717
At Total 68,944,740 2,439,677 776,239 72,160,656
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1ELR 16N E 5
No later ZE 54 Over &&t
2015412 A31H At 31 December 2015 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURE Loan commitments 66,145,095 2,958,451 140,456 69,244,002
R B R E SRR Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—ERRERER - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 356,891 417,443 2,178 776,512
—BEREERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 438,649 - - 438,649
EHFR Forward forward deposits placed — — = =
I E TR A A Operating lease commitments 184,232 468,581 349,332 1,002,145
BARESE Capital commitments 165,688 - - 165,688
At Total 67,290,555 3,844,475 491,966 71,626,996

3.5 SREENREBBEZATE
() RNFEZETE @)
NREEXRREREET 8 ERBRASE

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
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held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to
the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and
where appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified
valuers and the valuation results are periodically verified to
ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximises
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example, the
fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is generally based on current
forward rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived
using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes
model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process

are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

B1R B2 EI =5
201612831 H At 31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AA Descriptions
AATFEFEAEES A Financial assets at fair value
BafemEE through profit or loss
HEEERE Held for trading
EESR Debt securities - 8,871,844 = 8,871,844
EENATEGZR Designated at fair value through
HEABR profit or loss
ERHER Debt securities = 21,137 - 21,137
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments
REEERE Held for trading 24 831,107 - 831,131
B R+ Held for hedging - 346,191 - 346,191
AfHEZSREE Available-for-sale financial assets
BB S Debt securities - 32,267,946 4,753 32,272,699
Bt Es Equity securities 254,705 136,704 75,053 466,462
BATEFECEEST Total assets measured at fair value 254,729 42,474,929 79,806 42,809,464
AFEFERHEE Financial liabilities at fair value
EW\T&!EE’\]@MQEE through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 7,748,887 = 7,748,887
PTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 875,997 = 875,997
A R{EE S Held for hedging - 467,421 - 467,421
BATENEZABER Total liabilities measured at fair value - 9,092,305 - 9,092,305

RERFIRPEEZSREERIF LTE

mEFEFREFEE - HE
LY =W/N

FEAEOBZKAEIR

TREERK
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Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent investments
in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They are stated at cost
which is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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M REEE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
SREEREGZAYE @) 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RNFEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BAFEAEZEERERE (&) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

#H =20164 12 A31 8 & 20154 12 A 31
BEeMEERBEE A E
HAFEZFRFOEIRG -
AHEMEEE -

BIEFE -

FRMEE < &

value represent the revaluation gains/losses.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying

F1R F2/ ERE CH
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
WAFEFEREE Financial assets at fair value
BRNCHEE through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
B E S Debt securities - 8,572,394 - 8,572,394
BENRATEEE Designated at fair value through
SEETAER profit or loss
&5 &5 Debt securities - 16,498 - 16,498
TEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments
BEEERE Held for trading 42 884,727 - 884,769
BB RELH Held for hedging - 194,559 - 194,559
AEHEZSRERE Available-for-sale financial assets
B ES Debt securities - 23,728,772 4,753 23,733,525
RS ES Equity securities 208,587 170,703 75,030 454,320
BATEGECEEA Total assets measured at fair value 208,629 33,567,653 79,783 33,856,065
AAFEFEAEZ Financial liabilities at fair value
BaneRaf through profit or loss
RIEEERZE Held for trading - 6,270,630 - 6,270,630
fTESRMTIA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERE Held for trading - 939,144 - 939,144
A R{EE S Held for hedging - 519,288 - 519,288
BATEEZBES Total liabilities measured at fair value - 7,729,062 - 7,729,062




B #%5 Rk M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BERRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
SREEREGZAYE @) 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(A1) KEERFEGEC2MITA (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

TR % AN 5 B B A RO 3R R A The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
NEIRZ eBEEKRE G ZREEM values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented
AYEE - EREMHERT  WEQATE in the Group’s statement of financial position at their fair
TR (AnE A ) A% B LA & B 5 5 & 8 value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have been
HERZEMITARKENHNTHNES R estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
Mt EFREM S - HHISERK the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
REETE for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of

investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE NEE
Carrying value Fair value
2016 2015 2016 2015
SRMEE Financial assets
W& RERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 15,057,913 17,505,032 15,056,840 17,506,617
FERT1E12AA Placements with banks
S EAE 7K maturing between one
and twelve months 8,430,854 7,497,860 8,439,024 7,504,096
HEERNER Loans and advances to
customers
BAERRBR Loans and advances to
individuals
— AR — Credit cards 4,613,534 4,706,017 4,613,724 4,706,498
—RIBER - Mortgages 32,224,005 31,273,079 32,223,970 31,273,004
—Hfh — Others 11,557,295 9,729,001 11,562,909 9,732,804
TEER NI Loans and advances to
corporate entities
—BHER - Term loans 30,862,318 29,150,773 30,864,563 29,149,405
—RIBER - Mortgages 16,216,670 16,023,858 16,217,109 16,024,111
—EBo5mE - Trade finance 8,020,721 7,986,955 8,020,483 7,986,955
— Efth - Others 10,163,322 10,762,963 10,155,470 10,769,582
S EE Trade bills 4,299,974 6,469,899 4,325,745 6,504,322
FEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 10,223,840 10,476,296 10,233,982 10,485,600
SRAE Financial liabilities
RITIF K Deposits from banks 2,318,203 1,550,911 2,318,874 1,569,956
EEFH Deposits from customers 154,123,321 151,092,390 154,213,964 151,143,154
BEITNERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,559,976 6,231,837 6,565,994 6,235,944
BIEETR Subordinated notes 7,146,163 5,319,894 7,298,495 5,452,466
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the held-to-maturity category. Fair value of
held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.
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(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
to other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based
on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented
by the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is
filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

As Basel Ill has become effective from January 2013 in Hong Kong,
DSB is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common Equity
Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of these
three ratios starting from 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%, 6.0%
and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In order to
comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-5 on
“Supervisory Review Process”, DSB is required to set further buffers,
to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar
Il capital requirement. In addition, the capital conservation buffer,
countercyclical capital buffer and higher loss absorbency (“HLA”)
capital requirements introduced by the Basel Committee have
been implemented since 1 January 2016 in Hong Kong. In line with
the international standards, the HKMA also adopts the phase-in
arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio, capital buffers and HLA
capital requirements as set by the Basel Committee and will achieve
full implementation by 1 January 2019. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio
that forms part of Basel Ill implementation is under parallel run until
2017, with a view to establishing the Leverage Ratio as a Pillar 1
requirement on 1 January 2018, and relevant information has been
submitted by DSB for regulatory monitoring.

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.
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(BAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories as of the
end of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its available-for-sale and held-
to-maturity securities is individually impaired as at 31 December
2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(c) Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d) Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need
to be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and estimated
amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred to settle
the obligation after considering factors such as recent settlement
experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(e) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of
the value in use is based on a discounted cash flow projection
which contains certain assumptions derived from management
and observable market information. This estimate is subject
to application of management judgment and is sensitive to
assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising from
the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2016, management’s estimate of the value in
use is higher than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ.
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(VA7 FTh751)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

AERAT I AR R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
2016 2015

BE ASSETS
Re RIERITHE Cash and balances with banks 14,396,911 16,417,720
ERT1E12AR Placements with banks maturing

FIHAR TR between one and twelve months 7,496,761 7,529,258
FEEERENES Trading securities 8,871,844 8,572,394
EeRmI A Derivative financial instruments 1,192,932 1,101,442
ZHEEZFMEMEEE Advances and other accounts 101,578,174 100,968,921
A HEES Available-for-sale securities 32,544,420 23,951,415
HEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 5,490,046 6,251,800
BN AR E Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057

HEEGIEEEE Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
MTJ% ARERER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 3,740,110 3,713,640
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 2,513,139 2,444,419
AW Investment properties 990,811 928,209
BEST Total assets 180,048,205 173,112,275
afE LIABILITIES
RITIFRK Deposits from banks 4,393,221 3,474,322
TEeMTE Derivative financial instruments 1,342,970 1,456,106
FHEEERENEE Trading liabilities 7,748,887 6,270,630
BEGEH Deposits from customers 130,875,283 129,809,722
BEITHESRE Certificates of deposit issued 6,559,976 6,231,837
‘EES Subordinated notes 7,146,163 5,319,894
HBR B RIEIE Other accounts and accruals 2,649,823 2,289,431
BNERFIIB & (& Current income tax liabilities 109,148 155,461
REFIIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 73,953 27,209
BES Total liabilities 160,899,424 155,034,612
R EQUITY
%N Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
1] Other reserves (including

(BEREEF) = (F) retained earnings) Note (a) 12,948,781 11,877,663
EEas Total equity 19,148,781 18,077,663
EEREES Total equity and liabilities 180,048,205 173,112,275

EEEN2017F 3 A 21 BH#bAE RIFHERM -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

March 2017.
EFE FHE David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
= BF Director Director
HER ES )3 Hon-Hing Wong Gary Pak-Ling Wang
ZF BT Director Managing Director
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i
(F) FBEERERD

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note:

(@) Reserve movement of the Bank

HRGRER
BB REEA
EEfRE REE(RE Reserve for (#)
Premises Investment ] Share- Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General based Earnings ait
Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
201651818 At1 January 2016 203,178 121,332 693,304 9,356 10,850,498 11,877,663
A ERE 7 AT YR Fair value gains on available-for-sale
RERRMER securties recognised in equity - 324,507 - - - 324,507
AHERER L ETRLE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
FEREARER SN ER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (44,062) - - - (44,062)
REBRERERED ELHE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - (49,164) - - - (49,164)
REENABNERRE Reserve arising from reclassification of
IEPdA premises to investment properties 29,927 - - - - 29,997
DREZ AR BER Provision for equity-settled share-based
HEE compensation - - - 901 = 901
ERah Profit for the year - - - - 1,329,809 1,329,809
15ERERE 2015 final ividend - - - - (378,200) (378,200)
1657 HRE 2016 interim dividend - - - - (142,600) (142,600)
2016F12A31R At 31 December 2016 233,100 352,613 693,304 10,257 11,659,507 12,948,781

RFERITHR AR 20165 F




B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

5, AB|THBMRRARRHEAFEEE @ o

i ()

() ARTHEZE (B)

Note: (Continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)

DR AR
e A REEA
EEfEHE REBfEE Reserve for (&)
Premises Investment —fhEh Share- Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General based Earnings Bt
Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
0151 A1H At1 January 2015 201,780 140,181 693,304 7,135 9,539,082 10,582,082
A ERE 2 AT YR Fair value gains on available-for-sale
RERRMER securities recognised in equity - (8,651) - - - (8,651)
AHERER L ETRLE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
it SPCEY G income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (16,568) - - - (16,568)
REBRERERED ELHE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - 6,370 - - - 6,370
REENDRNEARENZCGE Reserve arising from reclassification of
premises to investment properties 1,393 - - - - 1,393
DREL AR AEREM Bt Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation - - - 1,621 - 1,621
ERah Profit for the year - - - - 1,423,016 1,423,016
15575} 2015 interim dividend - - - - (111,600) (111,600)
2155128318 At 31 December 2015 203,173 121,332 693,304 9,356 10,850,498 11,877,663
2 Note:

RRITANEERET A ERRB BN REERPIA

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of

M2 AR BB - R BT it (R AT RORPT
BT RAFRTT (FE)) I RTEEBRITRED
RABREERBNZAHMEERTE - BB RERR
KETRRZFHSHE - EERRBIEPRETES
EREITHER - WERNESRENGER -

120164912 A31 H * A#RTTEEE1,398,280,0007%
7t (20154 : 1,528,440,000/870) 2 & FBIEBEE G
EMBEHLRE —RFHE  SEBRESSRBET S

.
T °

those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,398,280,000 (2015: HK$1,528,440,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of personal banking,
commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking business.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for local
banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking
business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales
and investment services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

o Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. EESEBRE@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
BZE2016F12A31 HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2016
BART BERT BMRT EER
Personal ~ Commercial BEEE  Overseas A Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHEMA/ (%) Net interest income/(expenses) 1543802 1,237,593 427,016 500,803 (71,457) - 363777
FEHSRA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 630,589 179,217 87,058 116,491 12,451 (100) 1,025,766
BERA/ (%) Total operating income/(expenses) 2174391 1,416,870 514,074 617,204 (59,006) (100) 4,663,523
BELH QOperating expenses (1,374,217) (420,031) (144,798) (462,560) (1,452) 100 (2,402,958)
TRESRERE B Operating profit/{loss) before loan
LEERT impairment and other credit provisions 800,174 996,839 369,276 154,734 (60,458) - 2,260,565
ERAERA R ERR Loan impairment and other credit
(Ie&)/E& provisions (charged)/written back (260,201) (351,916) - 48,550 - - (563,567)
TRESRERE AR Operating proft/(oss) after loan
LEERT/ (BE) impairment and other credit provisions 539,973 644,923 369,276 203,284 (60,458) - 1696998
LERBNEREBEEEE Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
RANERZ S (BR)/ Wi adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (104) - - (186) 14,349 - 14,059
HETHLERS 2 FhE Net gain on disposal of
avallable-for-sale securities - - 13,219 - 30,843 - 44,062
RRIEBENTRE B Loss on deemed disposal of
investment in an associate - - - - - - -
N 2 Share of results of an associate - - - 602,793 - - 602,793
ElhLREHERE 2 2 Share of results of ointly
controlled entities - - - - 18,593 - 18,593
BHAn&R Profit before taxation 539,869 644,923 382,495 805,891 3,321 - 2,376,505
BOE (L) B Taxation (expenses)/credit (89,047 (106412 (63,112) (43,248) 71 - (301,098)
itval Profit after taxation 450,822 538,511 319,383 762,643 4,048 - 2,075,407
HE016F 12831 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2016
EREHER Depreciation and amortisation 64,704 13,148 5,949 35,822 51,965 - 171,588
R2016%E12 A318 At 31 December 2016
HREE Segment assets 46447588 54,664,156 69,352,142 35,258,558 5,033,524 (4,909,178) 205,846,790
AREE Segment liabilities 87430836 37,388,274 18848415 26,533,708 17,190,545 (4,909,178) 182,491,600
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6. EXIFEBE@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

HZE2015F12 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BASf EEE G MR FIER
Personal  Commercial BIE%HK Overseas Ef Inter- &t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHSMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 136755 1,149,755 377,085 508,611 (66,109) - 3,336,807
FHIEMA/ (Zit) Non-interest income/(expenses) 632,469 213,035 190,476 126,657 5,204 - 1,167,841
BERA/ (X1 Total operating income/(expenses) 2000024 1,362,790 567,561 635,268 (60.905) - 4504738
BB Operating expenses (1,260,121) (378,778) (140,878) (469,366) (1,465) - (2,250,608)
TRESREREEERER Operating profit/(oss) before loan
LEERT impairment and other credit provisions 739,903 984,012 426,683 165,902 (62,370) - 2,254,130
EFREREMEEERE Loan impairment and other credit
(FR)/mR provisions (charged)/written back (230256)  (287,955) 15,000 (43,141) - - (496352
THEFRERAEERER, Operating profit/(loss) after loan
EERT/(B58) impaiment and other credit provisions 509,647 746,057 441,683 122,761 (62,370) - 1751718
HERENERAMETEER Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ADTEBR 2T (5E) i adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (1,283) (12) (13) 7 10,135 - 8,834
HEMHNEERS 2 G Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - 16,568 - - - 16,568
RRLERELAREZER Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - (47,617) - - (47,617)
il N+ Share of results of an associate - - - 665,942 - - 665,942
ElLREHER 2 Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - 21,945 - 21,945
REtaER/(B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 508,364 746,045 458,238 741,093 (30,290) - 2423450
BuEs Taxation expenses (83,868) (123,097) (75,609) (25,064) (892) - (308,530)
RiikEr/(58) Profit/{loss) after taxation 424,496 622,048 382,629 716,029 (31,182 - 2114920
HE015512 431 BILEE For the year ended 31 December 2015
TERBHER Depreciation and amortisation 58,882 12,246 6,759 40,746 50,192 - 168,825
R2015%512 4318 At 31 December 2015
AREE Segment assets 44238858 55,906,000 63,141,488 31,842,489 5,182,476 (3,633,462) 196,677,849
ARERE Segment liabilities 85,575,624 37,962,644 16816776 23,429,044 14,620,327 (3,633,462 174,770,953
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension
of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered
to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

B 5 B[
EEREAM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
EZE2016512A31 A For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2016
2B A Operating income 4,238,219 425,304 = 4,663,523
R 7% A1l A Profit before taxation 2,156,393 220,112 - 2,376,505
R2016%E12H 31 H At 31 December 2016
BEA Total assets 188,564,732 19,602,001 (2,319,943) 205,846,790
BEAET Total liabilities 167,826,139 16,985,404 (2,319,943) 182,491,600
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 551,663 = 870,330
kA B R RAHE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 78,461,648 1,684,413 (109,018) 80,037,043
& 32 53 T ]
1K 84
BB REA Inter-
Hong Kong JRF segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZE2015%12 A31H For the year ended
HFE 31 December 2015
2 A Operating income 4,094,843 409,895 = 4,504,738
R A AR A Profit before taxation 2,205,708 217,742 - 2,423,450
%2015 12 318 At 31 December 2015
BEAT Total assets 179,735,799 18,576,197 (1,634,147) 196,677,849
aEAE Total liabilities 160,169,710 16,235,390 (1,634,147) 174,770,953
BEVEAERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 552,828 - 871,495
AR B RAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 76,231,176 1,862,244 (31,100) 78,062,320

RFERITHR AR 20165 F
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7. FEFEWA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

2016 2015
FEUWA Interest income
IR RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 293,434 312,858
BHRE Investments in securities 810,125 695,375
BSHEHERMEMRE Advances and other accounts 4,080,521 4,045,394
5,184,080 5,053,627
FEZH Interest expense
RITER BEEX Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers 1,232,184 1,438,672
BEBITHTRE Certificates of deposit issued 75,116 78,234
BEER Subordinated notes 226,842 198,517
HAh Others 12,181 1,307
1,546,323 1,716,730
FEWABE Included within interest income
RARFEGFEEHE Interest income on financial
FFABENERIEE assets not at fair value
ZABIA through profit or loss 5,165,638 5,047,101
MEXZHEE Included within interest expense
RARFEGFEEHE Interest expenses on financial
FABENERIERE liabilities not at fair value
Z M B X H through profit or loss 1,532,086 1,714,098

REZE20164F %2015F 12 A31 BIEFE - WiE

HREBEEEZMEWA -

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there was no interest
income recognised on impaired assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. FRBERAEWA

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2016 2015
REERFASBA Fee and commission income
RARFEGFEEHE Fee and commission income
ABENeREERARBZ from financial assets and liabilities
AR5 & KA KA not at fair value through profit or loss
—EERBZREE AT — Credit related fees and commissions 151,334 136,538
—Eo5mE - Trade finance 73,596 91,987
—fEA+ — Credit card 295,806 301,225
HAb RS E RASKA Other fee and commission income
—BELL M — Securities brokerage 81,749 132,011
—RERHE R EA — Insurance distribution and others 129,210 111,249
—TERE N EEERE - Retail investment and wealth
management services 213,759 185,001
—RITRIEENRFESE - Bank services and handling fees 69,459 61,850
—HpR% & — Other fees 49,498 109,824
1,064,411 1,129,685
REERASEH Fee and commission expense
RARFEFEEHE Fee and commission expense from
AABEMeREERAGZ financial assets and liabilities not
REERAeS T at fair value through profit or loss
—FEBLAES - Handling fees and commission 208,835 205,536
— BN EMREE R — Other fees paid 19,646 14,512
228,481 220,048

AEBERE=JRHAE X7 bEEERK
AEERY - AENXEAFNRBEZEEL N
BEEMNFMBERA -

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

©
H
]
it
=
-

9. NET TRADING INCOME

2016 2015
HNE B BF I & Net gain arising from dealing
in foreign currencies 79,708 137,481
BIEE B AERNES 2 F e Net gain on trading securities 6,153 3,784
RIEEERZNITET R 2 F Net gain from derivatives
entered into for trading purpose 34,158 57,452
RAAFELE+MEES R TR 2 FE1E Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair
value hedge (1,424) (8,774)
EENAFEEBEEEABEN Net gain arising from financial
SMI A F e instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss 4,630 6,630
123,225 196,573
10. HaZEEKRA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2016 2015
A HEFREE 2R EWA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
— kW& - Listed investments 11,696 9,197
—JEEMIRE — Unlisted investments 8,081 7,969
wEYFE 2 WAL Gross rental income from
investment properties 23,745 22,994
EmBES WA Other rental income 12,227 11,423
EAh Others 10,862 10,048
66,611 61,631
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

11. EEXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2016 2015
1E B B & AR A S i Employee compensation and
(BRREEEHM) (KsE12) benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 12) 1,562,325 1,452,712
TERAEMEEEESH Premises and other fixed assets
TRETE expenses, excluding depreciation
—(TEMEEZ - Rental of premises 181,348 169,209
— H A - Others 158,506 125,794
e (MiEE27) Depreciation (Note 27) 170,423 166,786
& RAESHIE B 2 Advertising and promotion costs 85,695 71,991
ENfell « SCH RIEBE Printing, stationery and postage 44,417 51,386
M EE#HEER (f3E25) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 25) 1,165 2,039
ZEREM BN & Auditors’ remuneration 7,778 7,570
HAth Others 191,301 203,121
2,402,958 2,250,608

12. BEFMRERNXH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2016 2015
T REMASZER Salaries and other staff costs 1,465,851 1,364,590

VARG AR B E T SR BN 2 B TR 1% Provision for share-based
(P e 42) compensation charged (Note 42) 5,083 9,643

BREZH Pension costs — defined

— R EHNKGTE contribution plans 91,391 78,479
1,562,325 1,452,712

RERITHR AR 20165 F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. EFREESERHEMEERE 13. LOAN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER CREDIT
PROVISIONS
2016 2015
BERRERE Loan impairment losses
HER & EAER B REEE Net charge/(reversal) of impairment
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ/( [B1#% ) losses on advances and
other accounts
—B5RE — Trade bills 5,677 3,670
—BRFEX - Advances to customers 567,755 508,713
—EE NS R EMERE - Accrued interest and other accounts (9,865) (1,031)
563,567 511,352
FEIEEF R EAMER B R EESIE Net charge of impairment losses on
R advances and other accounts
— &R FE 1 — Individually assessed 239,346 218,941
— kR ERHE - Collectively assessed 324,221 292,411
563,567 511,352
BEHEE Of which
— ¥TIE R REINEE — new and additional allowances
(BREREANEEMESFE) (including amounts directly
written off in the year) 706,806 641,447
— [B1% - releases (88,644) (76,697)
— U [a] - recoveries (54,595) (53,398)
563,567 511,352
HibZERE Other credit provisions
SRR 2 REEBE Net reversal of impairment
e IR losses on available-for-sale
securities
— iR A — Collectively assessed - (15,000)
W AR 2 H Net charge to income statement 563,567 496,352
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. HiE

B S NAS B TR BB A1 51 FE 2R B v Al LA B =
16.5% (2015 : 16.5% ) FeR %M © BN TD
i?zimi9I\fﬁ§+ré%ﬁiﬁé7‘rwz‘w%l#§aif%iﬁg
@2 RITHEGTE

EEHBERRAAEEINEREZR  RRASAZSE
IR ER BN EE R T HREPTER 2
RIERBHRER ©

14. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2016 2015
REFEHIE : Current income tax:
—EBHEH - Hong Kong profits tax 251,516 287,227
—/BIMRIA - Overseas taxation 40,191 38,784
—RBAFEDTR 2 #E - Under-provision in prior years 1,821 399
IRIEFIE (FizE34) ¢ Deferred income tax (Note 34):
— BB R 2= B AR % [l - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 7,273 (18,660)
—ERAEEE — Utilisation of tax losses 297 780
I8 Taxation 301,098 308,530

ANEE R AR 2 HIBE RIREGE SRR INE
P EAE IR mEEEN T ¢

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2016 2015

R A 7

RBBBNSHE16.5%
STHE 2 BIA

TR IR -
HAbER 2 TR R

ERED WA
TREFRA S th
AT 18 2T 2 3 2 Bt 2 N A )
HEEFER XA
NBEFENE 2 BE

iR

REFRITER AR 20165 F

Profit before taxation 2,376,505 2,423,450

Tax calculated at Hong Kong

profits tax rate of 16.5% 392,123 399,869
Tax effects of:

Different taxation rates in

other countries 7,074 4,636
Income not subject to taxation (16,442) (16,639)
Expenses not deductible 19,053 33,766

Results of associates and jointly
controlled entities reported net

of tax (102,531) (113,501)
Under-provision in prior years 1,821 399
Taxation 301,098 308,530
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. EEME 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2016 2015
=k Directors’ fee 480 447
e FE - BEUmREMER Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits in
kind and other allowances 110,683 103,334
RN AT S 2 B E - Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,668 2,636
113,831 106,417

REERNFRFLER - TERANSEEBRE
MEARS - THREH  ERAQBAEFR—
FRARRZEZEESMEEER BRI EAXF
7 (20154F « &) -

REZE2016F12 A31 BILFE - WEATFAIES
PMEFIBEARBITREMN B AR EEER 2 EMAR
TS S AT ER E LB & (2015 4F = £) ©

RER  WEINRIEBHZFKAIENTES
Ko Sy 48 A JE BN EE = R 74 10 [A) 56 = 05 SK NP o S A+
EfAIR(E (20155 « &) o

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2015: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in
respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of
the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and
no consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services during the year (2015: Nil).

16. RE 16. DIVIDENDS
2016 2015
EIRFHIR S « G E @Ak 2.30 87T Interim dividend paid of HK$2.30
(20154 : 1.80/87L) (2015: HK$1.80) per ordinary share 142,600 111,600
FRAREAR S BAE R 6.30 8 T Proposed final dividend of HK$6.30
(20154 : 6.10757T) (2015: HK$6.10) per ordinary share 390,600 378,200
533,200 489,800
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. BERERITHEE 17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2016 2015
R & RIERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 1,912,219 2,182,568
BANEHE K Money at call and short notice 13,145,694 15,322,464

15,057,913 17,505,032

18. B EEEHEZENZSRIEEUDAF 18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
EBifEEHSFH T AEZENERME DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
=3 OR LOSS

2016 2015

FEBEERBNES Trading securities:

BFES Debt securities:

— BB LT - Listed in Hong Kong 104,751 58,398
—3E L — Unlisted 8,767,093 8,513,996
RBIEEERRRNESBR Total trading securities 8,871,844 8,572,394

EENATEFZEESE Financial assets designated at

FFABRNEREE ¢ fair value through profit or loss:

BEEES Debt securities:

— BBASN £ — Listed outside Hong Kong 21,137 16,498

RIEEEREMBLFRIETE Total trading securities and

AT EFEBEESHTA financial assets designated at
ExlEmEERE fair value through profit or loss 8,892,981 8,588,892
PREGBEFAE Included within debt securities are:
—BIEEE (ZFRRLIER) — Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 2,148,217 228,497

— HAa BB =% — Other treasury bills 6,678,945 8,314,638
—BUNES — Government bonds 44,682 29,010
— B th B 758 R B THERE - - Other debt securities issued by:

— NS — Public sector entities - 249

— 1z — Corporate entities 21,137 16,498

8,892,981 8,588,892

M2016F & 2015412 A31H » LilliFEEEM As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no certificates of
BRYARTEFE 2 BIEF AR RS ER deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value
BIFHEE ° debt securities.
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19. fT4E€®MIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

RK2016F 12 A31 BRFHNTETEANZEE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
AEREAFEENMT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2016 were as follows:
B4/
EESHE AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE 8
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SNETET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRBEEN Forward and futures contracts 73,340,752 601,383 (621,858)
B8 A\ B SN e Currency options purchased and written 22,298,022 225,081 (224,946)
Z)FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
Fl=EE Interest rate futures 15,509 24 =
gl peegect i Interest rate swaps 3,567,199 3,829 (28,379)
A) Bz tiTETA c) Equity derivatives
ARG R 1 i Equity options purchased and written 98,752 814 (814)
FEEERGZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (B8R A held for trading 99,320,234 831,131 (875,997)
2) BEHFARZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B) UL TFHEH M ZITETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
Fl % $ HY Interest rate swaps 27,306,206 346,191 (277,155)
Eitketa Currency swaps 1,205,962 - (190,266)
FEERARZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BF) A held for hedging 28,512,168 346,191 (467,421)
ERRZITERRTIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BF) A assets/(liabilities) 127,832,402 1,177,322 (1,343,418)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. $fTEE€M I A

720154 12 A 31 HREIEf

BMzRE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

Re REAFEWT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2015 were as follows:
a4/
B2 o AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BE
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
) NELTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRHEEH Forward and futures contracts 81,116,914 269,836 (258,369)
B A\ ot O NE HiE Currency options purchased and written 55,739,652 572,595 (574,619)
Z)FIETETR b) Interest rate derivatives
ik Gt Interest rate futures = = =
== 5 Interest rate swaps 4,867,283 34,377 (98,232)
A) Bzt ET R ¢) Equity derivatives
BARE LR Equity options purchased and written 222,582 7,961 (7,924)
FEEER %EZ@TEI,E: Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BF) At held for trading 141,946,431 884,769 (939,144)
2) HfEEHRRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B ) EEU R TFHEH M ZIT4E TR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
sty Interest rate swaps 19,850,922 194,559 (340,795)
Biimih Currency swaps 1,234,871 = (178,493)
FHEE 543%@2@?%1?1\ Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (&) A held for hedging 21,085,793 194,559 (519,288)
BHR 24T E Total recognised derivative financial
LE/ (8 E assets/(liabilities) 163,032,224 1,079,328 (1,458,432)
BEMETAC A TEREEREEFHREELR The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been

IE;
BE(ER)MEE -

REFRITER AR 20165 F

taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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19. $fTEE€M I A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BEXS HHR5 -
Trading Hedging Total
ZELE Notional amount 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
EXGH Exchange rate contracts
BHRHEEN Forward and futures contracts 73,340,752 81,116,914 - - 73340752 81,116,914
i Currency swaps - - 1,205962 1,234,871 1,205,962 1,234,871
MNESESH Foreign exchange option contracts
—BASNEEE - Currency options purchased 11,144,137 27,854,259 - - 11,144,137 27,854,259
— B HNE HfE - Currency options written 11,153,885 27,885,393 - - 11,153,885 27,885,393
95,638,774 136,856,566 1,205,962 1,234,871 96,844,736 138,091,437
HEEH Interest rate contracts
BAREERY Forward and futures contracts 15,509 = - = 15,509 =
b Interest rate swaps 3,567,199 4,867,283 27,306,206 19,850,922 30,873,405 24,718,205
3,582,708 4,867,283 27,306,206 19,850,922 30,888,914 24,718,205
EGreYg Other contracts
EntHEa L Equity option contracts
N - Options purchased 49,376 112,359 - - 49,376 112,359
— it HiE — Options written 49,376 110,223 - - 49,376 110,223
98,752 222,582 - - 98,752 222,582
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. $TE€mI B @)

FRBEFAREEFT Y 2 S8 FHEAE 28 (1
BR)ZZEZ12 A1 BEEABRINEANE
ERRINEEE - 250

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December, where applicable, has been taken into
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group

entered into, are as follows:

2016 2015

ERGH4 Exchange rate contracts
R REESL Forward and futures contracts 572,073 487,000
ks i Currency swaps 2,412 12,349
8 A SN B Currency options purchased 384,954 1,128,111

FMEEH Interest rate contracts

Fl| =3 HA Interest rate swaps 175,128 139,476
Hiha 4 Other contracts 3,388 13,714
1,137,955 1,780,650

WETAEZANBEERENBERARNRH
£ UTRKREREREEE -

EERRNEHELN2EFTELEREL Z(R
TRER)RADMFAEZHE - tERB &
BARFXHHEF REASNIBFIEME

AR B R BRI T AR 2.9 R -

NG BB AR R B 2 2 A B A SR
BREERRERIEERN 2EHFIEE - Al
EEBELAREBITEEZBHBEBFERAR -
Y5 T B 2 W #54 384,193,000 7T (2015 4F -
18 /457,750,000 /47T ) o ¥4 I8 B LR
% 7 [B518 /4 385,617,000,8 7T (2015 4F : WzE A
66,524,000%7T) ° ILFZEE 25IRMF 2
[AAFELTERES T A 2 Fikas FiEl
ﬁq °

RERITHR AR 20165 F

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They
do not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains
on the hedging instruments were HK$384,193,000 (2015: gains of
HK$57,750,000). The losses on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$385,617,000 (2015: losses of HK$66,524,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BEHERKAEMEKRE

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2016 2015
BAAERREK Loans and advances to individuals
—ERF — Credit cards 4,613,534 4,706,017
—RIBE R - Mortgages 32,224,005 31,273,079
— HAh — Others 11,557,295 9,729,001
EERRBR Loans and advances to corporate entities
—BHE® - Term loans 30,862,318 29,150,773
—IRIBER - Mortgages 16,216,670 16,023,858
—EFRE - Trade finance 8,020,721 7,986,955
—HA — Others 10,163,322 10,762,963
RXEERBERE Gross advances to customers 113,657,865 109,632,646
Bk : REZEE Less: impairment allowances
— (&R FFE - Individually assessed (435,210) (327,953)
—kREAHE - Collectively assessed (420,545) (358,072)
112,802,110 108,946,621
B5FE Trade bills 4,299,974 6,469,899
R : REZEE Less: impairment allowances
—kREAHE - Collectively assessed (14,578) (8,901)
4,285,396 6,460,998
Hh &z (fifE29) Other assets (Note 29) 3,008,607 3,027,670
Bk : REZEE Less: impairment allowances
— &R Ffk - Individually assessed (9,351) (19,585)
— kR ERHE - Collectively assessed (625) (256)
2,998,631 3,007,829
EEERREMEE Advances and other accounts 120,086,137 118,415,448
B Impairment allowances
— & RIS — Individually assessed (444,561) (347,538)
—RERHE - Collectively assessed (435,748) (367,229)
(880,309) (714,767)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BREERREMERE @)

() EFERRBAREZZEBZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
EEagcES and advances to customers and trade bills

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(2 — (B B FF A

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

RBEXR Hity &t
Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBRBEEEZEE Movement in impairment allowances on
loans and advances to individuals
20151 A1 HER Balance at 1 January 2015 218 3,508 3,726
RERE (B8, /R Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (466) 2,309 1,843
REEEETM LS Loans written off as uncollectible - (2,444) (2,444)
WE B REFME 2 EX Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 466 1,195 1,661
BEE J L 8% Exchange and other adjustments - 8) ®)
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 218 4,560 4,778
2016 1 A 1 HK &%k Balance at 1 January 2016 218 4,560 4,778
ERE (B18) /25 Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (459) 1,442 983
A EREFMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible - (1,789) (1,789)
WEBREFME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 496 1,412 1,908
B 5, R H fth 3% Exchange and other adjustments - (94) (94)
2016%12H31H At 31 December 2016 255 5,531 5,786
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20. REERRHEMERE @
() EFERRBAREZZEBZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

=kl E36 )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)

HEER-RATE

Impairment allowances - Collective assessment

SR+ REEX Hity &t
Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBHRE Movement in impairment
228 allowances on loans and
advances to individuals
201541 A1 BR& Balance at 1 January 2015 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
BB B Impairment losses charged 45,703 18,361 168,171 232,235
AEEREFMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (63,448) - (182,068) (245,516)
WEIE R EFiidE 2 B3R Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 18,123 - 20,216 38,339
BE 5 R Eo A Exchange and other adjustments - (224) (26) (250)
201512 A31 H At 31 December 2015 27,068 28,502 59,793 115,363
20161 A1 HE) &5k Balance at 1 January 2016 27,068 28,502 59,793 115,363
REBERE(E5) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 58,739 (10,423) 183,726 232,042
ReEBEERMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (70,858) - (195,600 (266,458)
WEIE A EFHEZER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 14,536 - 21,545 36,081
BE 5 K HL fth B Exchange and other adjustments - (1,331) (155) (1,486)
2016%12H31H At 31 December 2016 29,485 16,748 69,309 115,542
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BREERKREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBEVHREMER

20.
(a)

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

B ¥ ER% (#) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
BB 26 — 18 B ¥4
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHER E5mE
Term REEX Trade Hith &t
loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERRER Movement in impairment
REEEZED allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
20151 A1 AM&ER Balance at 1 January 2015 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
AEBERR Impairment losses charged 84,555 1 97,825 34,717 217,098
RELBEETMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible (22,045) = (75,540) (19,898) (117,483)
WEIEREFEMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 698 - 9,126 3,541 13,365
B 5 R E A 552 Exchange and other adjustments (1,180) - (2,643) - (3,829)
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 99,438 306 171,597 51,834 323,175
20161 B 1 BM& SR Balance at 1 January 2016 99,438 306 171,597 51,834 323,175
EE B Impairment losses charged 61,368 1 152,823 33,067 247,259
ReclEBE IS Loans written off as uncollectible (37,814) - (87,500) (31,063) (156,377)
WEEREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 4,303 - 5,788 6,514 16,605
&k Exchange and other adjustments (287) - (951) - (1,238)
201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 127,008 307 241,757 60,352 429,424

REFRITER AR 20165 F
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20. BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBEVHREMER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)
(a)

EEaELC) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REERE-RE T
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEX E50E
Term REEX Trade Hith &t
loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERRBH Movement in impairment allowances
REEE22E on loans and advances to

corporate entities
201561 A1 BR& e Balance at 1 January 2015 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
REBERE/(28) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 31,489 15,762 (16,525) 29,560 60,286
AL BEETMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (11,696) (11,696)
WEIEREFEMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 33 33
BE 5 R E A 52 Exchange and other adjustments (1,829) - (406) (529) (2,758)
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 87,740 29,968 52,058 81,844 251,610
20161 B 1 BM& SR Balance at 1 January 2016 87,740 29,968 52,058 81,844 251,610
REE B Impairment losses charged 35,844 32,482 12,320 11,164 91,810
RECEEETMES Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (19,449) (19,449)
WEEREFMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 1 1
ek Exchange and other adjustments (2,866) - (680) (845) (4,391)
2016512831 H At 31 December 2016 120,718 62,450 63,698 72,715 319,581
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. EEERREMIRE @
(z) EsREREMERE 2FEEEREHRE

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
accrued interest and other accounts

EsREREMERR
Accrued interest and
other accounts
WEEE—- REESE-

RE R 18 B 31

Impairment  Impairment

allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
assessment assessment

PR RS R AR E
HEEE S

201541 A1 B &
BB B 1R [

PE 5 K B R
2015412 A 31 H
2016 F1 A1 HW &S
BB ERE([E#)
RS

201612 A 31 H

REFRITER AR 20165 F

Movement in impairment
allowances on accrued interest
and other accounts

Balance at 1 January 2015 366 20,506
Impairment losses reversed (110) -
Exchange and other adjustments - (921)
At 31 December 2015 256 19,585
Balance at 1 January 2016 256 19,585
Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 369 (8,896)
Exchange and other adjustments - (1,338)
At 31 December 2016 625 9,351
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20. BREERREMERE @)

(R) BREEFERRBRzAMEHAEERIER
mE :

EFEFRLBFEREREREMERAARENR
ERUZEBAOMEETEP 2RBIREF
8 o BHRMIAE AREE BRI R ER - |
EREZLEEE -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(c) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset
at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

2016 2015
KREEMERE 2 BUER Gross investment in finance
1EEE - lease receivables:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 2,537,523 2,640,295
1FEAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 3,400,897 3,694,792
5FA Later than 5 years 952,999 1,336,971
6,891,419 7,672,058
BERE 2 RBEZ Unearned future finance income
BEUA on finance leases (580,817) (708,387)
BEREREFRE Net investment in finance leases 6,310,602 6,963,671
BMEREIREFE L The net investment in finance
DITEAR - leases is analysed as follows:
15FE AR Not later than 1 year 2,322,326 2,399,057
1FAEESF Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 3,167,869 3,426,844
5 Later than 5 years 820,407 1,137,770

R2016F12 A31 8 @ L@ EHERERE
W2 H EERFISREE (20154 « ) ©

R2016%F 12 A31H @ AEBZEFREBEEEFER
FEAAUWE 2 B E S ER RO EEST A
49,665,000 7T (2015 4F : 45,415,000 7T ) o

6,310,602 6,963,671

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included

in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2016 of the Group
amounted to HK$49,665,000 (2015: HK$45,415,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21, AHEERS

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

2016 2015
BES Debt securities:
—&BELE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 14,390,816 12,683,540
—EHBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 13,928,043 9,060,290
—JE LT — Unlisted 3,953,840 1,989,695
32,272,699 23,733,525
SRS Equity securities:
— BB Em - Listed in Hong Kong 254,705 208,587
—JEEmm — Unlisted 211,757 245,733
466,462 454,320
At EE SRR Total available-for-sale securities 32,739,161 24,187,845
BREEEHRESNEA ¢ Included within debt securities are:
—BIEEE (ZRRLIER) — Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 1,899,588 -
—HiEERE — Other treasury bills 5,462,256 3,610,091
— B EH - Government bonds 238,910 238,109
—HMEKES — Other debt securities 24,671,945 19,885,325
32,272,699 23,733,525

7o

MR2016F 2015612 A31H @ LillEEEFRELR
AN BRI B E50E ©

A EESIREITHE
BRINHIT

— P REF K RIERTT

—REHIE
—RITREMEREE

—%

—Hit

RERITHR AR 20165 F

Note:

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no certificates of deposit held

included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.

Available-for-sale securities
are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:
— Central governments and
central banks
— Public sector entities
— Banks and other financial
institutions
— Corporate entities
— Others

7,600,754 3,848,200
603,533 500,463
3,549,923 4,132,163
20,982,498 15,704,566
2,453 2,453
32,739,161 24,187,845
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22. BFERIMES

22. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

2016 2015
BEEES Debt securities:
—&BELE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 3,167,081 2,384,910
—EHBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 3,731,661 4,441,722
—3EEm — Unlisted 3,325,098 3,649,664
10,223,840 10,476,296
PREGBEFANE Included within debt securities are:
— R AEMERFE — Certificates of deposit held 400,000 1,177,533
—BIERE& — Treasury bills 2,401,808 1,994,337
— B ES - Government bonds 523,290 442,147
—HMEKES — Other debt securities 6,898,742 6,862,279
10,223,840 10,476,296
R R EIBB AR ET Held-to-maturity securities
HEERI ST T : are analysed by categories
of issuers as follows:
— R RET Je AR R ERTT - Central governments and
central banks 2,925,098 2,436,484
— RIT R E fth & B — Banks and other
financial institutions 2,615,100 3,598,931
— 12 — Corporate entities 4,683,642 4,440,881
10,223,840 10,476,296
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. BMERNTFRE

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2016 2015

FEfh B EHE Share of net assets 3,908,770 3,754,594

EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623

A&F Total 4,253,393 4,099,217

2016 2015

1HA1H At 1 January 4,099,217 3,746,918

FE(RBRTRIE 4R Share of results, net of tax 602,793 665,942
FEIEFRTR 1A% & B b E Share of investment revaluation

reserve, net of tax (12,623) 59,793

RELEZEE Loss on deemed disposal - (47,617)

REG S Dividend received (142,741) (158,071)

EHER Exchange differences (293,253) (167,748)

12H31H At 31 December 4,253,393 4,099,217

R2016F & 2015F 12 A1 HzHERR2EE
ARl

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

December 2016 and 2015:

SE R A i B FEXK FritEE B D
z28 Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of interest
Name and operation activities in ownership

2016 2015
BFERIT FEE A R F0E R1T
Bank of Chongqing People’s Republic of China Banking 14.66% 14.66%

RERITHR AR 20165 F
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23. BZERQATRE @)

() EERTZERUKER
EERTZEATET2E A E12A318 - #E
20164 22015412 A 31 B I FEHR - A&EE

REZE 201612 A31 H & 2015412 A31 HIE
12AR 2 EBRERCBSEERITIERS -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group included
the results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to

the 12 months to 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

2016 & 20154
12831 H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

BEERTZIBEEENBEER Selected balance sheet

information of BOCQ

B e MEFRIBITHAER Cash and balances with
central banks 47,605,944 45,592,990

R E M IRTT & & mui s Due from other banks and

financial institutions 61,942,010 54,729,387
REERMER Loans and advances to customers 163,220,318 145,386,839
HEtemEE Other financial assets 133,780,297 129,026,511
HEM&RE Other assets 8,319,650 6,952,227
BEAGT Total assets 414,868,219 381,687,954

T E A IR1T M & Bt S Due to other banks and
financial institutions 67,106,331 87,405,976
BEFHR Customer deposits 255,294,063 237,861,211
=R Other financial liabilities 60,709,871 22,068,534
HEmaE Other liabilities 5,280,585 8,939,236
BEAE Total liabilities 388,390,850 356,274,957
A E Total equity 26,477,369 25,412,997

EERRITZBRESSFTEARITAR S M BERK
W REESIRR

AR RS A 3

e WERZEERATERE

fRE(E

Reconciliation of BOCQ'’s total shareholders’ equity to the carrying

amount in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements

The Bank’s share of total
shareholders’ equity

Add: Goodwill and fair value
adjustment at acquisition

Carrying amount

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. BZERQATRE @)
() EERTZREMEEN @

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

Bl12A31BEEL
For the year ended

31 December

2016 2015

BEERIT2BENERER Selected income statement
information of BOCQ

FF B A Net interest income 8,939,604 8,631,850
FARISE RS WA Net fee and commission income 2,242,665 1,863,993
ERBEER Loan impairment charges (2,807,537) (1,399,548)
mEREHER Depreciation and amortisation (198,885) (189,022)
FRIES Tax expense (1,346,454) (1,355,857)
FE T Profit for the year 4,077,942 3,907,913
Hih2milas Other comprehensive income (183,636) 367,227
SEM BT Total comprehensive income 3,894,306 4,275,140
BUWEERITIRE Dividends received from BOCQ 142,741 158,071

RERITHR AR 20165 F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, HEEZEHEBRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2016 2015
JE LR - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEIE B A R Share of post-acquisition reserves 55,412 51,119
75,412 71,119
72016 6 2015 12 A 31 ARy REHIZ &40 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
e 2016 and 2015:
LHEEREZEDL
& {2t 26 FEERRCE I Percentage of
=58 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
IREFEAR AR A 7 BB KEER - BB
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
IREMEFERR QA B BIBER RN - B
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
IREE 2 R AR A A BE BIELRE - B
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong

EIRBIZERAR AR BEHARITERRSA -
i EREH S FEB R A B R & B A R 12 ] TH iR Bk
ERERARZEENBAR -

The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium
Holding Limited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25, BMEREBEREE

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BE EFBEfF
& BYEE B EE
BYEE Core  Customer
HE Contract deposit relationship ki &t
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
20161 A1 AR At 1 January 2016 and
2016F12A 317 31 December 2016 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
Ve 6 Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
201651 A1 H At 1 January 2016 - 26,499 80,583 69,224 - 176,306
FRZ (FiE11) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 1,165 - 1,165
2016 124318 At 31 December 2016 - 26,499 80,583 70,389 - 177,471
REE Carrying value
201612831 A At 31 December 2016 811,690 - - 388 58,252 870,330
BOER EPHE
&t mlEE BVAE
BV EE Core Customer
wE Contract deposit  relationship i ait
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
AR Cost
20151 A1 AR At 1 January 2015 and
2015124318 31 December 2015 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
Ve 6 Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
20151 A1H At 1 January 2015 - 26,499 80,583 67,185 - 174,267
ERE L (1) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 2,039 - 2,039
2015124318 At 31 December 2015 - 26,499 80,583 69,224 - 176,306
REE Carrying value
20155 12A 318 At 31 December 2015 811,690 - - 1,553 58,252 871,495

RFERITHR AR 20165 F
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25. BEREFEE®@®

BEAHRZEBEFEEREEN  ROERRE
FRAREFEAEGAREREREZENT5E12
ForAEREE - R AECAERTE TS
R 5 EL Rk (B B 18 R BARK A HIBR R B RE B 187
X o

BES R ERENIERRERBE - RNEED
BERAReELBM([ReELEM]) - &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal

LBAORMEZSNT o management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.
201512831 HX 201612 H31H
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016
BERT B A SRAT BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas &5t
Banking Banking Banking Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
JRFY Macau - - 493,023 493,023
196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

HEAGFEREANR  HEREBAEZFERE
BEmMEE2HeEEBEMABKSE - &t HE
FAEREEEASMKRE  LASFF8| 2 TERIR
S KERBASFIEREANEEFERE
2% HEBIZE S FUABEKER - 25 FrtdlEmEE
BABEREUEUBRCEEEN 2 XK RZE
TSR TERI B EA N BB VEIB IR 2 SR TR 2 - FTAE
A2 BHIR R TR BN AN B 2 & AN A I 1
#11.2% (20154 : 10.9%) °

PSR EETT ZRERFA T ERA2RBREERR
552 3% T AT B F AR K K LA BT 812 78 R ik
A - BUAEE &R R 2% #5556 AR &= oK
iR o FTER 2 BhIRE A11.2% (20154 : 10.9%)
TIEENAREE 2 AKX A N9 -

7N 6 2 30 4R T R R B I P 5 < R (E IS 1B (2015
FE) e

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital at 11.2% (2015: 10.9%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 11.2%
(2015: 10.9%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. MIERH

R2016F 12 A31 8 » AET2 EBKHE A AL

T

DEEHE

Name of company

26. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2016:

FEXK

Principal activity

o fif it B
Place of
incorporation

BRTEBRRE
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

RHETERIT (R E) AR AR

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
EPIRERITRNBRAA
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
RETRIBER AR A A

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited
REEFEARAR
Dah Sing Nominees Limited

Dah Sing Properties Limited
AHEHBRAA
Dah Sing Securities Limited

DSB BCM (1) Limited
DSB BCM (2) Limited
RIBREGARAA
Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited

DSLI (1) Limited

CWL Prosper Limited (formerly known
as Channel Winner Limited)

REABAER AR

OK Finance Limited

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited
BREHH(FE)ERAA

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited
HERERRAT

Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited
Wise Measure Limited

Reliable Associates Limited

Talent Union Holding Limited

REERIT AR AR 20165 F

R17

Banking

RIT

Banking

R4
Insurance broking
RIB AR
Nominee services
AR
Investment holding
BHER
Securities dealing
REVER
Investment holding
REZR
Investment holding
mEX

Inactive

mEE

Inactive

MERE

Property investment

&

Money lending
mEX

Inactive

mEE

Inactive

MERE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment

S EYNEPI[E

People’s Republic of China

els

Macau

&%

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

Bt

Hong Kong

BiE

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
KBRS
British Virgin Islands
HBRTES
British Virgin Islands

5

Hong Kong
RBRIES
British Virgin Islands
Bt

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
RERAES
British Virgin Islands
REBRIES
British Virgin Islands
HBRRES
British Virgin Islands

RMB1,200,000,000

MOP225,000,000

HK$200,000

HK$100,000

HK$9,998

HK$10,000,000

HK$1

HK$1

HK$20

US$1

US$1

HK$1,000

US$1

HK$450,000,000

HK$20

US$1

US$1

Us$2
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26. MIEBA T @

BORPIEERITRO AR AR (H22% Mz
#DSB BCM (1) Limited &2DSB BCM (2) Limited
AN RERBIEARRITEEEERES °

BORPIERRITROAR AR - RFRTT (P E)
BRAR R L 5|AREINEM 2 RRIN - e
NAPERBEE -

AATERIT (R B BRR AR 2008 £ 7 AFEHEIA
MRS - EREBEHEARAMBE 2R M
BIBERAR] (EHEE  HEIRMAZERL
&) -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2)
Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. TERHMBEEEE

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

ERIAN
RERRE
Furniture,
equipment
{TE  and motor At
Premises vehicles Total
HZE2015F 12 31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2015
FREFE Opening net book amount 2,312,676 415,532 2,728,208
g Additions 233,281 96,994 330,275
BN ETERKRENE Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (10,507) - (10,507)
& Disposals - (1,457) (1,457)
rEH (MizE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (54,004) (112,782) (166,786)
EHER Exchange difference (5,878) (2,268) (8,146)
FARIREFE Closing net book amount 2,475,568 396,019 2,871,587
2015412 31 H At 31 December 2015
BRAR Cost 2,750,118 912,513 3,662,631
ZIEIE Accumulated depreciation (274,550) (516,494) (791,044)
AREDFE Net book amount 2,475,568 396,019 2,871,587
BZ2016 12831 HILEE Year ended 31 December 2016
FYRREFE Opening net book amount 2,475,568 396,019 2,871,587
i Additions 90,496 137,481 227,977
END B EMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 93,920 - 93,920
BN BRTERIREMSE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties (7,176) - (7,176)
& Disposals - (444) (444)
FrEZ M (MEE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (56,309) (114,114) (170,423)
EHER Exchange difference (6,932) (3,402) (10,334)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,589,567 415,540 3,005,107
201612 H31 H At 31 December 2016
BAR Cost 2,918,373 975,367 3,893,740
2RENE Accumulated depreciation (328,806) (559,827) (888,633)
BREFE Net book amount 2,589,567 415,540 3,005,107

REERIT AR AR 20165 F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(VA7 FTh751)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. TERHMEEEE @ 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
TEZEOFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
2016 2015
FAfE iy Leaseholds
ERBFA 2 F AL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(£10 =50 F 2 ) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,172,821 2,129,958
FEBBAINFE Z2H 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
% (£10 =50 F2f) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 416,746 345,610

2,589,567 2,475,568

28. REYE 28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2016 2015
1HA1H At 1 January 930,257 745,166
#hig Additions 29,496 162,923
WU EE— R E A REA Transfer from acquisition of a subsidiary 48,650 -
BN RREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises (93,920) -
BN RTERKRENE Reclassification from premises
to investment properties 35,601 11,900
HHATERE Fair value gains on revaluation 14,365 10,268
12 A31H At 31 December 964,449 930,257
LB BREFERTE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2016 2015
FAfE iy Leaseholds
EEBFA 2P HHED Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE102=50F 2 M) lease (between 10-50 years) 916,531 928,209
FEBEBAINEE 2+ 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
4 (FE10 =50 F 2 ) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 47,918 2,048
964,449 930,257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. REWE @)
() S BREVEZDVE

ANE BN 2016 6 2015412 A31 A AR EY
EREBEET T EE o WA BB B S 5A
EME-—AFEEH (HEREXER) BRAF
BANRESRPEEANZYERE —KFE 4
CRPY) BRA R AR Z MEREEL B
ERMARBEBEL TR 2E Z AU ER
3T HARK A AC B IRHETT ©

MZEEAME L HEER  HERBHBRE
ZERF13FARAFEFEVF 2 AFEEE R
BEEFARTIS2HEANS 2RaMRENYER

EFEREMENEER  Eh—HBHIBKRES
KERRHE - 2 RENERNEFHR) RE
JE Pt /e RO SH & BALEN - FTEEZBRN T&
FJ5R1,57978 7T (20154 : 1,695/870) EFF
7R 124,100 7T (2015 4F : 123,80078 7T ) © 4
EBENEENTREEBUEENEZ ATENE
HHEEESLLARD - RZIFA -

REMEDBRAESTBUBRELLFE 135
(R HERE)F A FHESERHEIRT

RFERITHR AR 20165 F

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2016 and 2015 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment
properties in Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,579 (2015: HK$1,695) to HK$124,100 (2015: HK$123,800) per
square foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.
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28. REWE @)

(2) DHESERPFEIRFI 2 AFEFEY

fRER
TRFANERBEERTABRRIE ZAEE
HEIRR 2R EMEMFTEN R FERBTR
HiSR 2 R AEER 2 B 2 8K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 investment
properties, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs:

2016 2015
1A1H At 1 January 930,257 745,166
IR Additions 29,496 162,923
WU EE— R E A REA Transfer from acquisition of a subsidiary 48,650 -

ENDBRITERREDE

— B BATEZREFE

—EfARBBATESGERE

NAFHEER D BRENERTE

AT ER

12 A31H

RERFEZEEGRERE

Wt % E R AER
LeSt

—MEEHFRH

RERFSE 2 4 AR
B2 KBRS EE
— AT

Reclassification from premises
to investment properties
— Net book value of premises
reclassified 5,673 10,507
— Surplus on revaluation credited
to premises revaluation reserve 29,928 1,393

Reclassification from investment

properties to premises at fair value (93,920) -
Fair value gains 14,365 10,268
At 31 December 964,449 930,257

Unrealised gains or losses
recognised in comprehensive
income statement relating to
those assets held at
the end of the year
— Net surplus on property
revaluation 29,928 1,393

Unrealised gains or losses
recognised in income statement
relating to those assets held at
the end of the year
— Fair value gains 14,365 10,268
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. REWE @)
(R) EBEIRBILXFEFEBFEZNER

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

fh{ET % FRHBRzHE
Valuation Unobservable & [E
technique(s) input(s) Range
REMHE WAREBEEELT A 9% W 3.35%
(R WEX) (20154 : 3.50%)
Investment properties Income capitalisation approach Market yields 3.35%
(reversionary yield) (2015: 3.50%)
MiHEE BEFR71 BT
(20154 : §F 7
IR 34 7 7T.)
Market rental HK$71 per square foot

MMAREBEECTZEEAHEZREN X
BERZHERFRARBEELCREERZEY
F2 X HBERESRKAZENET - 2FEF
EEMSESKICABRE  BhEKaERKE
HEEARER

(2015: HK$34
per square foot)

For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using
the income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted
on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance
for outgoings and reversionary income potential. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market rental and
inversely correlated to the market yields.

29. HiwEE 29. OTHER ASSETS

2016 2015
FEUW R IE MRS IE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,955,090 2,084,215
FEEFURA Accrued income 810,557 715,756
HAth Others 242,960 227,699

30. HFEERARNER

3,008,607 3,027,670

30. TRADING LIABILITIES

2016 2015

HEEEREBEREEES

RERITHR AR 20165 F

Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 7,748,887 6,270,630
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31. BEFER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2016 2015

BT R R AERER Demand deposits and current accounts 35,194,614 36,294,515
HEER Savings deposits 24,423,369 21,826,622
EHA - BA R E TR Time, call and notice deposits 94,505,338 92,971,253
154,123,321 151,092,390

BEFO&BBESHFEADEBE T B
YE 2 AR @ 2 1F5042,732,00078 7T (2015 4 -
7,178,000;/87T) °

e BAREREZIN FIBEEMERFER
BEZEFR -

32. EERITHERE

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$42,732,000
(2015: HK$7,178,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments

under import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.

32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2016 2015

REDRF R E R T At fair value under fair value hedge
NEETER (for hedging interest rate risk) 5,052,951 4,361,923
RE ARSI BR At amortised cost 1,507,025 1,869,914
6,559,976 6,231,837

MR 2016 F & 2015 F A + NEBKRERVIBIHER
RiEEAMNEETEREBAAFEFEBHE
Bt A8 o

NEBE WS BHTEREDHENES QOENS
H) & FE A P77 2 BR T {8 = 20,000,000 7 7T
(20154 : {£.8,000,000%5T) °

During 2016 and 2015, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through

profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$20 million

higher (2015: HK$8 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. REE®

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES

2016 2015
225,000,000 37T 74 2020 £F EI| Hf US$225,000,000 Subordinated
B SR EER (GE(F)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2020
(Note (a)) 1,854,026 1,894,565
200,000,000 2 TLKATE B US$200,000,000 Perpetual
BER®(GE(Z)) Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
(Note (b)) 429,072 448,814
225,000,000 7 hN3 7o 2022 4 F Hf $$225,000,000 Subordinated
BEBBERRGE(R)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2022 (Note (c)) 1,205,148 1,223,184
225,000,000 37T 74 2024 4 E| EAEY US$225,000,000 Subordinated
ELREERE(GE(T)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2024
(Note (d)) 1,749,252 1,753,331
250,000,000 37074 2026 4F EI| By US$250,000,000 Subordinated
EBREERGEUR)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2026
(Note (e)) 1,908,665 -
7,146,163 5,319,894
RERFRE R T AT ES R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 6,717,091 4,871,080
RE AR RS BR At amortised cost 429,072 448,814
7,146,163 5,319,894

R 2016 F M 2015F KN » NEB ARG RIIAFER

BEEETAREES/SUAFEFER
AR °

RFERITHR AR 20165 F

During 2016 and 2015, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
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33.

(%)

BESE@®

i Ty A R 77 R2010F2 8118 % 17 2
225,000,000 & 7T 7E 37 N4 22 5 B ([ 37 2 B 1)
MR EAEMMNEANTEEREGE([E
1) o S EKER202052 511 BRI H - 4F
B 56.625% * F¥FRE—K - NBITIE R
— BB ERIT AT S AR IR B A W E TS M EE FILE
BRAUETTIRITRFEREBERFEF SN

e
oA °

ity J3 A 4R 17 200742 F16H B 17 2
200,000,000 ECEF R T E MWW R E AEE
MINE AR KAE BRERER ([E]) - wEE
B2 ERZBUEER A2017F2 4178 - B3%TH
ZHEEMEEREA  §2/736.253%  GFFM
B—ke Bz MEBAREEEEEEARER -
FROFEEE] A3EABMETRITRERS
1902 T - ZEBHSSERTERIuE - AR
TR MR B A s ARSI A A F B3R B
NEZEEEERAE (GES) & o ANRITIE
R — BB SRTTR] M A RIR HA & A E 7 0 E E F
BEBANETRITREREBEBNZEF S
(NE

R 2010 4F K% 2009 FF © ANERITHRRIEER S TR
FEEHGEUITRELBEEZASBES A A
75,000,000 7T % 70,000,000 7T 2 SRD1EFS -
mAEMzEBBEFRESESSERZE L
BB °

b T ANER1 T 20124F2 A 8 B 17,2 225,000,000
F AN TCAE R R AT T R AT INE AR E
BRREBB([EB]) - hEEBIER2022542 A
9RZEIH - REBMEER A2017F2H9H ° K
BOTRAEHRENEER  FE54875% &
FERB—IR - Hif - WEFRERZEEEA
BEE - FERNFEEETAZRS T T
HEIBENI76 LT - EEBSBELERBLL
A ARERITA IR M E A SRR SRR AT
BNRBUZEEBEBERRE GEBH) EF - &
RTINS B —BUBRSR1T 5] 32 7 b5 B & K0S TS
BB E Il SRR AR T RITRIZEIR B AR
SRENFI ST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 11 February
2010 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange
Trading Limited (“SGX”). The Notes will mature on 11 February 2020.
Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international
bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of the Bank issued on
16 February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus
190 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval
of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on
the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.

In 2010 and 2009, the Bank repurchased a portion of the Notes with
a total notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000
respectively at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount
of interest rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after
receiving prior approval of the HKMA.

This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 8 February
2012 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on
9 February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33.

(T)

BESE@®

It J5 AR ER7THA 2014551 A 29 H %77 2 225,000,000
ETEBBHARSARAR([BBXZH])
EHRFABERGEINMERE S - RERL
10FHE R EER ([EK]) (AEFEBCRT
E(BER)BANZIER) o LEEB R 2024 F1
A29BEIH - BIZHEEE H /20191 A29H -
HETHEHREUEER  £845525% &
FERB—IR - HiE - WEFRERZEERA
B RS EE]AERSFHERBE
BEHFEENMITSH T - GEGBEESEREL
A ARATA R IR MR A R B ISE AR F
BAFRBUZEEBEREANE (EHH) EF - &
$RITINE B —BRRERATR] 3 A RIS HI S KIS B A5
B E EFI SR A AR LRI TR R B AR
SRENFIS AR

ity T3 K # 4R 17 2016411 301 % 17 2
250,000,000 TTE BB R HFT i RFEEER
HE N MR E A —RERN 10 FHE SR ER
B ([E%]) CREFERCRITE(BR)BRDZ &
) o HLEEEAGR 20264511 530 B EIH - 1812
MIEE A A2021 411 A30H - AETAEHER
EMEER £85425%  S¥XEME—R-
Hi%  MESKRERBHEEAED  FENF
BEE:AERSFHEREEES S X MN2552

ERBEBSEREEIE - KFBITAIRN
BEHEZEASARGEARAEMNKAUER
BEBEME GERD) B - AFRITINE H—
B ER1T AT 2 A3 2 B & D G EIS B EE A1 242
BBAETTIR TR 257 B AR A F NI S -

AEEFEI SR EBBIPFIRE NENNSHE
A £ PR3 2 Bk H {E 1£.85,000,000 % 7T (2015
£ : {£171,000,000/7T) °

RFERITHR AR 20165 F

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 29
January 2024 with an optional redemption date falling on 29 January
2019. Interest at 5.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 375 basis points.
The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into
with an international bank.

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 30 November 2016 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the
SEHK. The Notes will mature on 30 November 2026 with an optional
redemption date falling on 30 November 2021. Interest at 4.25% p.a. is
payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be
reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S.
Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving
the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in
part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons
on interest payment date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the
fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on
LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$85 million

lower (2015: HK$171 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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34. EEHE

RIERIREE R BENEHRERB S ANITHE
T EHRNARTH 18 & EE A BN ERTH 18 & B IR ERT 18
H[F] — RIS AE R 5 AT HETT © HEH 2 & A0
™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2016 2015
FEIEFR I & = Deferred income tax assets 68,286 83,473
RIERIAE & Deferred income tax liabilities (89,069) (37,543)

EERIAEER BERBERZRE 2 EEERN K
Bl A 2 BET B DM T ¢

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date
of recovery and settlement are as follows:

2016 2015
LTS THEE ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
— A fE 12 & A & Y=l — Deferred income tax assets to
ZIRETIRE E be recovered after more than
12 months 155,358 154,307
FEFETEEE - Deferred income tax liabilities:
—FEE12EARESR — Deferred income tax liabilities to
ZIEETIREE be settled after more than
12 months (176,141)  (108,377)
(20,783) 45,930

RIERIARRE BT :

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

2016 2015
1A1H At 1 January 45,930 25,535
Wi — TS A A Acquisition of a subsidiary (4,243) -

PRUERARARRIE (), =8 (KisE 14) Tax (charged)/credited to the
income statement (Note 14) (7,570) 17,880

RS ERARIE () /ol 3 Tax (charged)/credited to

(Ff17E38) equity (Note 38) (49,192) 6,365
ELER Exchange difference (5,708) (3,850)
12H31H At 31 December (20,783) 45,930
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. IEIERIIE @)

EEHBREERABERAFEZEE  TRER
MRIBUEEEE THIEZ SR

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

IRIEFRIBEBEE : Deferred income tax assets:
AAE BT
ERHREE K HAth
Impairment Deferred
allowances BKEE expenses =
and provisions Tax losses and others Total
201541 A1 H At 1 January 2015 95,673 1,077 40,618 137,368
RUEEBEAEE (ST H) Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 14,572 (780) 6,997 20,789
EHER Exchange difference (3,677) - (173) (3,850)
2015F 12 A31 B R At 31 December 2015
201641 A 1H and 1 January 2016 106,568 297 47,442 154,307
RUEBRA (), /B 5 (Charged)/credited to
the income statement (991) (297) 8,047 6,759
EHEE Exchange difference (4,050) - (1,658) (5,708)
201612 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 101,527 - 53,831 155,358
BEFIEERE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
MEBKITE REVWEER
Accelerated  Investment RESEM
B tax properties  Investment =
Provisions  depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
20151 A1H At 1 January 2015 8,977 72,975 - 29,881 111,833
W B AT Acquisition of a subsidiary = - = = =
AR BRI S Charged to the income
statement 759 1,297 - 853 2,909
AT 25 AR A [B] Credited to equity - - - (6,365) (6,365)
2015F 12 A31 AR At 31 December 2015 and
201641 A1 H 1 January 2016 9,736 74,272 - 24,369 108,377
Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 4,243 - 4,243
RURESBR A /(B8 Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 293 14,360 (324) - 14,329
AR BRI Charged to equity - - - 49,192 49,192
201612 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 10,029 88,632 3,919 73,561 176,141

REFRITER AR 20165 F
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34. IEIERIIE @)

T T FARESEERA (X H), /B8 2 RER
17 :

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year
is as follows:

2016 2015
RARRAER 2 AT ERFE - Fair value reserves in
shareholders’ equity:
— At EES (F17E38) — available-for-sale securities
(Note 38) (49,192) 6,365

35. REEARZER
GEMBRRARARE REESRKERARARE
BEBRARE - REERRETRDREEZ &
BRI :

35. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies
arising from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:

2016 2015
ZHEERNEMERE Advances and other accounts 559 933
BEFEER Deposits from customers 1,132,208 78,075
HBR B kAR Other accounts and accruals 686 91

ABTBIRENRE BERARNE DR &
BEsImT

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

2016 2015
ZEERMEMEE Advances and other accounts 40,818 19,236
BEFER Deposits from customers 1,737,977 1,796,393
H 8RB kIERE Other accounts and accruals 12,897 6,960
BRIBETR Subordinated notes 39,654 40,554
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. FAEBREIE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

() BEXEE (@) Capital commitments
M12 A31 BERE A RIRBREREBBAIER KB Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
ABEEEEZEARAT ¢ assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:
2016 2015
EERAERRRER 2 FX Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 62,717 165,688

(2) FEAE

AEBEERBRIMNEERETEFPZERMTA
BRSBRREEERBINERENT

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

anes
Contract amount
2016 2015
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 507,886 320,644
X 518 A IE B Transaction-related contingencies 468,367 455,868
L SR 2 NI B Trade-related contingencies 593,956 438,649
AR EUH N /E TR % Commitments that are
ANz E unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 66,088,547 64,573,823
H e Other commitments with
[RAERBR A an original maturity of:
—PR1E —under 1 year 2,870,509 4,175,180
—1ERNAE -1 year and over 548,658 494,999
REAER Forward forward deposits placed 21,029 -
71,098,952 70,459,163
EERR MR
Credit risk weighted amount
2016 2015
SN B E SR Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,289,997 1,521,336

RERITHR AR 20165 F
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36. FAREBRAIE @

(W) BEERZEE

THTDARAREEINEESBEHREFNEERE R
MERFADMBRGEEELERZINEESE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as

EES follows:
2016 2015
BERGEEEERNEE Assets pledged with HKMA:
FHIEEBERZNES Trading securities 6,036,748 5,771,254
AN EES Available-for-sale securities 1,148,005 490,324
7,184,753 6,261,578
HEABE : Associated liabilities:
RIEEERZMARE Trading liabilities 7,748,887 6,270,630

T B REEGHER TR REE 2
BT ES M AR A EZREE

The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the
associated liabilities are as follows:

2016 2015

Bt N2 EBEE ¢ Assets pledged under repurchase

agreements:
AN ERES Available-for-sale securities 691,634 169,803
BFEEIHES Held-to-maturity securities = 3,943
691,634 173,746
HHEEE Associated liabilities:

RITIER Deposits from banks 466,306 43,914
HAAR B kAR Other accounts and accruals 186,987 123,271
653,293 167,185

BRZESIEABAENAFERBBZES
B BRI (EEE

REEHZEAA - ARETEER - HEHIER
NERE%  TEHHEBBZEFNBITANEER

B o

The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.

The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the

duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit
risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. FABBREE@ 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
(T) R&EHERIE (d) Operating lease commitments
IMAEBEAABEA BT BUBMELEHEEM Where the Group is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments
RAREZ N 2 EREMNKREERAT ¢ under non-cancellable building operating leases are as follows:
2016 2015
1FENUA Not later than 1 year 186,892 184,232
16 EES55F Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 491,600 468,581
5 E Later than 5 years 320,495 349,332
998,987 1,002,145
IMASEEAHEA  EAABUBY L EHEM Where the Group is the lessor, the future minimum lease payments
RARREX N 2 SERERNRAEAT under non-cancellable building operating leases are as follows:
2016 2015
1F A Not later than 1 year 34,100 30,254
1FEAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 33,930 19,234
68,030 49,488
37. BRZN 37. SHARE CAPITAL
2016 2015
R NS & E5 [N
ZER Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
ERTRHBZERA issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1H1BK12H31H At 1 January and 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000
2016412 A 31 HE BT @M EE A5t A The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2016
62,000,000 fi% (2015 £E : 62,000,0000% ) > AT & is 62 million shares (2015: 62 million shares). All issued shares are fully
BT 2RO 2 T - paid.

174  KFRITAR DT 20165FF5R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

38. f#fE 38. RESERVES
HRRAEE  RERA
TEEMRE REEMHRE 2 e (&)
GaffE  Premises Investment  EXR%  -MHE Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation  Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based Earnings &t
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
20161 A1 At 1 January 2016 8,827 203,172 207,757 73,405 700,254 10,086 14,503,395 15,706,896
BRER ATRNE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
BHOTENE securities recognised in equity - - 37,809 - - - - 37,809
ATEUGERNLEMRIE Fair valug gain realised and transferred to
RARERREBENER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (44,062) - - - - (44,062)
Vel ) Deferred income tax on movements in
LB (K a4) investment revaluation reserve (Note 34) - - (49,192) - - - - (49,192)
REEMAENEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
EPAA premises to investment properties - 29,028 - - - - - 29,028
AERMERT B Exchange differences arising on translation of
MERZR the financial statements of foreign entities - - - (361,807) - - - (361,897)
WIRES [ e AR R Provision for equity-settled
Bz EfE share-based compensation - - - - - 1,101 - 1,101
EEEH Profit for the year - - - - - - 2TBMT 2075407
015 RHRE 2015 final dividend - - - - - - (378,200) (378,200)
1654 ERE 2016 nterim dividend - - - - - - (142600 (142600)
20165127318 At 31 December 2016 8,827 233,100 432,312 (288,492) 700,254 11,187 16,058,002 17,155,190
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
BENMREEFA Proposed final dividend!/ final dividend
ZHURAREIIRS,BIRA AR E (HiFE16) paid included in retained earnings
(Note 16) 390,600 378,200
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

38. fR#fE @

38. RESERVES (Continued)

NRORER  REEN
TEEMRE REEMHRE 2 e (&)
GaffE  Premises Investment  EXR%  -MHE Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation  Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based Earnings &t
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
0151 A1A At 1 January 2015 8,827 201,779 160,698 283,172 700,254 8,125 12,500,075 13,862,930
N A Fair value gains on available-for-sale
ATEYSR securities recognised in equity - - 57,062 - - - - 57,062
AFERERNETRNEE  Fairvalue gain realised and transferred to
KERREpZhER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (16,568) - - - - (16,568)
REEMFRRE Deferred income tax on movements in
SERERR (Fizt34) investment revaluation reserve (Note 34) - - 6,365 - - - - 6,365
REEMAENEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
EPAA premises to investment properties - 1,393 - - - - - 1,393
HEBIMERRTS Exchange differences arising on
BRMERER translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - (209,767) - - - (209,767)
WRER R EARR Provision for equity-settled
B R share-based compensation = = = = = 1,961 = 1,961
EREA Profit for the year - - - - - - 2114920 2,114,920
15ERERE 2015 interm dividend - - - - - - (11600 (111,600)
2015612 A31H At 31 December 2015 8,827 203,172 207,757 73,405 700,254 10,086 14,503,395 15,706,896
i Note:

RRTANEERBTEAERREEN B HRE LA
PASh S AR B A - M RT R BR B R R (BT SOR T
PR IRTT RAFRTT (FE)) I RTE EBRITRGED
RABREBEEERBENZAHMEERTE - %EERERR

HRETERRZ FESH

cBERBCEHAETES

ERETHR  WERNESFRENTRRE

72016412 31 H + A 4R 17 E 3§ /£ 1,398,280,000 7
7L (2015 4F : 1,528,440,000/8 7T ) Z © BBIEBEE G
IR ER S — GG - fEBREGRARBERFIE

-
5E °

REFRITER AR 20165 F

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,398,280,000 (2015: HK$1,528,440,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.



B H%5 Rk M ot

39. ZFEHRERBLEHERME

() MBETREREEEEZ WS REBIEA
ZEERNEQETEHRERA FHE R
*®

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net
cash from operating activities

2016 2015
A TR E REE B E 2 W Rk EHEH] Operating profit before gains and
28 losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 1,696,998 1,757,778
F A EUA Net interest income (3,637,757)  (3,336,897)
bR Dividend income (19,777) (17,166)
BEFOREEE R EAE SR Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 563,567 496,352
e Depreciation 170,423 166,786
BB B 2 B Amortisation expenses of
intangible assets 1,165 2,039
R B iR 2 BRI EE R RR Advances written off net of recoveries (389,478) (323,741)
VARRHE 2 A AR AD VE A BT SR I 2 18 Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation 1,101 1,961
EALENS Interest received 5,152,521 5,125,227
BRFE Interest paid (1,105,937) (1,406,676)
B S Dividend received 34,077 33,686
LEBERBEZHR 2 EE R Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,466,903 2,499,349
EEEERBECEE Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— e RIERITHERKRE A HHBR — cash and balances with banks and
31E Az B &R BT R money at call and short notice
with an original maturity
beyond three months 884,914  (1,012,606)
—REIEPA BB 3 A Z FERITAER — placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three
months (718,339) (946,177)
—FHEBEERENES - trading securities 1,620,270  (3,534,331)
—THESRMTA - derivative financial instruments (213,008) (10,892)
—EBEURATEFEBEZEH T ABRN — financial assets designated at
ERIEE fair value through profit or loss (4,639) (6,677)
—E5RE — trade bills 2,169,925 914,158
—BFEX - advances to customers (4,025,219)  (4,394,609)
—HAMERE — other accounts 113,864 727,082
— A EES — available-for-sale securities (6,321,296) (823,629)
—RFEIHES - held-to-maturity securities 149,992 242,272
— IRITFER - deposits from banks 767,292 (21,556)
—FIFEERENAR - trading liabilities 1,478,258 673,015
—BFEFER — deposits from customers 3,030,931 7,857,953
—BEITEHE - certificates of deposit issued 1,949,048 110,714
—HfbAR B kAR — other accounts and accruals (1,268,304) 158,724
PE 5 3% Exchange adjustments 62,609 62,344
HREEEERARR S Cash generated from operating activities 2,143,201 2,495,134
SNBEBEITHEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (64,022) (83,828)
EHEENEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (311,250) (310,497)
E#UE N Overseas tax paid (26,081) (21,101)
LEEBRARS F5E Net cash from operating activities 1,741,848 2,079,708
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. ZFERTREBLERME @

(Z) M2016%F - AEBERAHRITERFRA
7 U & — IR B A 7] Talent Union Holding
Limited 2 100% #& & & 1S 2 EE 6l # o
e B ERFTAEREZ AFENT °

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) During 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in and
obtained full control of a subsidiary, Talent Union Holding
Limited from Dah Sing Banking Group Limited. The fair values of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows.

2016
e RIRTTRAE R Cash and balances with banks 2,962
BB Investment properties 48,650
HAb AR A R TaR Other accounts and accruals (17,825)
LRe Sz WiEERRE Total purchase price paid in cash 33,787
B BAS 2R & RAERITE AR Less: cash and balances with banks acquired (2,962)
AR & X AABSIESIE (BRESZRE)

(R) EREREAERN R RERBEEE
BEERBERAEIEASATEHZT
JIiEsR  MEEEZICEENEARBRE
RS F IR S HRR L FH

Cash paid to obtain control, net of cash acquired 30,825

(c) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition, deposits that
are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2016 2015

HRE MERITHEER

JREHA B #E 3 1 A 5t bA T 2 38 0 K A2 BATF 3%

JREHA B4 318 A 5A T 2 FERITEIFK

BENMHEFEERAZNES cBERRE

BERARLEER < BERE

R ESE ZoRTF AR R IR 1T R 45 #2 859,580,000 75
JC (2015 : 344,517,000 L) EX [IRE KER
REEE | BRET IR EEESE [RERERITH

REER | BRIAE ©

178  KFRITAR DT 20165FF3R

Cash and balances with banks 1,552,639 1,838,051

Money at call and short notice
with an original maturity within
three months 11,692,449 12,969,242

Placements with banks with an

original maturity within three months 2,328,319 2,113,664
Treasury bills included in trading

securities 2,148,217 228,497
Treasury bills included in

available-for-sale securities 1,899,588 -

19,621,212 17,149,454

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$359,580,000 (2015:
HK$344,517,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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40. EXTESKEBERRE

BEEBRTUEH(F622GE)F178(REESE
Fm=ER) BAERTESEHZE2016F K% 2015
F12 A1 HIEFEZHBEFIE ' T 27 -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES
CONNECTED WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 are shown as below.

2016 2015
W12 A31 Bz B FREEERE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding
at 31 December
— B RBR — Loans and advances 25,241 25,433
—BEHER - Guarantees issued 905 1,095
FABMR G 2 &= BER Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant transactions during the year
—BERRBHK — Loans and advances 51,162 54,759
— R - Guarantees issued 905 1,095

2016 F [ 2015 F Lill 2 B 5 2 BH AR

AT ¢

41. BEEALTZRS

RERTT 2 BRI BIRHT IR1T & B R AR R
RAAFEBMRA/EFTEEMONEE LHAF -

M 20165 22015 4F + ZNERITIZ — AR 7 6K -
BN A R E MR R B A RS T L EFE R
ERS  BREBRITREFRRBGK - HERSH
AER—WRBER - REEMRITRE

BESN - AERIT IR RARIER AR R ER R E A
ARHEMRTRRS  HEROBEMETRE
MERR] -

The above relevant transactions in 2016 and 2015 were all transacted
by the Bank.

41. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company DSBG and the ultimate
holding company is DSFH. Both holding companies are incorporated
and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2016 and 2015, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms. These transactions include
interbank placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution
of life and general insurance products and the provision of other
banking services.

In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative

services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41.

BREALZRS @)

HABBEALTZERRZSIT

() RERQAREBAMBATANIZ R

41.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a)

Transactions and balances with holding companies and

ek fellow subsidiaries
(i) WARTH () Income and expenses
BEERELEZERAR
Immediate and ultimate EZKE DG
holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
2016 2015 2016 2015
EfTALE Interest paid (3,636) (25) (10,556) (12,693)
= ENS Interest received - - 139 192
ERAE Commission received - - 131,977 107,350
B REE 1 E Service fee received/recovery of
Hih & ES other operating expenses 6,588 7,240 61,444 17,179
B E REERE Rental and related building
EEE management fee received - - 18,492 19,309
B EMEES Other operating expenses paid - - (16,391) (16,843)

AT BB i RBPID i 1%

M2016F6 A28 + AFE R AMBA IKEFL
EATEeMEEANRZHEASRRED
BIRER 2 ARRE=FAI L ER (T H
B  ZERTeRZASRENBARE
BAFAS  RIRBRRBERPFIAS - B
BH - KRBT RBFIERITEHREET
RERREBDHERTASRARM S HER
FIASZ ASRBERD HIEATASRA
MR ARG LB B D e - RERFIA
SRR S SR o

HEFHASET ARG EIEESARE
EWIB 2 HETT FERK - BEARM SRR
KR BERRMEBEERBIDARARER
FEZHUAE © BRI - BB D H R MORF 7 3
R AARZRK ©

RERITHR AR 20165 F

Proposed Hong Kong Distribution Agreement and Macau
Distribution Agreement

On 2 June 2016, DSFH announced that it had entered into a
share sale agreement (the ‘Sale’) with an external party for
the conditional sale of those entities within the DSFH Group
which are engaged in the sale and underwriting of life insurance
products. These DSFH life insurance subsidiaries comprise
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”), Dah Sing
Insurance Services Limited (“DSIS”) and Macau Life Insurance
Company Limited (“MLIC”). On the same date, the Bank
proposed to enter into the Hong Kong Distribution Agreement
with DSLA and DSIS, and BCM proposed to enter into the
Macau Distribution Agreement with MLIC upon completion of
the Sale for the distribution of the life insurance products of
DSLA and MLIC in Hong Kong and Macau respectively.

The completion of the Sale is conditional on a number of
conditions which include obtaining approval from the relevant
regulatory authorities. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, the required approval from the relevant
regulatory authorities in Hong Kong and Macau is not yet
granted. On this basis, the Hong Kong Distribution Agreement
and the Macau Distribution Agreement are yet to be concluded.
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41. BEFEATZRE @
(Z) XEBEAE

() HEZERFEEEABZEARGRK
4+

Y=p:zn

FA- ARITRBUEDER - F5 =8
TREERBTIEEEAR  LIHER
Hell i E R AR SR - RSN IE
BERBERET RN EEME TRFAER -

TEEHABZRGMES ZWARIH
YAER  MERARTERZEHRET

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

(b)

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key
management personnel

During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with
the key management personnel, their close family members
and the entities controlled by them including deposit taking,
loans, credit card facilities and investment services. These
transactions were provided in the ordinary course of business
and at the same terms with other employees.

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and

deposits balances with them are shown below:

2016 2015

ER KRB Loans and advances 24,879 25,121
7R Deposits 415,959 230,424
AEVA 2 EFUEH Undrawn commitments 3,747 3,068
R Guarantee 1,095 1,095

(i) FEEBASHE

RRTEIZEEABBRTES - HRM
ERREREFRMFES -

(R) EREQNARAEZEFHNERZXEZR
REER

FR ARTKWIBHBEE LR EERAT
142,741,0007%7¢ (2015 4 : 158,071,000 7T) I%
BUYA o FA - ARIRITEUG — R 122 6 E 58 SR B
EEARARZFR - MER2016F12 A31BfF
N5 7 7,830,0007%8 7T (2015 4F 5 56,293,000 7%
TT) °

(c)

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors

and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$142,741,000 (2015: HK$158,071,000).
During the year, the Bank received deposits from Bank Consortium

Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled entity and the balance
of deposit as at 31 December 2016 was HK$7,830,000 (2015:
HK$56,293,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. ARt RER RS

AIRITZ EERER AR (KEIRTTERE) KRR
ARl (RFEE) 58 LR ET S - BBER
BB AFIRTT SR B R A 8 ([ KFTIRITRE
8l hAF & BB R & ([ AF 2 /st
2] SERARZEFEARTHET 8%
AEBRAFITNES - RBERBEEER -

AEBFRBAFRITEEF B R A S B ER
AR RERN BT AER 2 EERBRT
BAR °

() RFRITEEE

AHFIRITEBIEN 201445 A 27 BB 1TH A HT
RITER EAR R F A S RIBRL AR IR E T
B ([RFRITEBFEIE D) - WEE R IER
FRTTEM NN 2004 F6 A 12 BERM 2 RIAERT 2
([RFBITEBEE]) - AFRITEEEGE]
IR - NEIRIET B8 — P AR AR
EARITIRITEEEG B 2 X BT AR AITRE
R B IERTE BB R R IERDARITEZ 236
REEmS - DEB TR RIER -

BAFIBTEBEEE - RIRITEEE T EHHK
BARETEEREESRRE - ERBKEAATA
RIS E R EERRETER - BRESRK
EZ2AREEBEUNReX  BREESSIESR
BHRG - RASRITEEITERERALR S X F1E
Bl 2012 F LARTET 5% T B0 3R AR 42 © 7R 2012 FF &
H@FiE T2 RRE - RFRITEBITERTH
AR+ LASEASHERAE -

RERITHR AR 20165 F

42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company (Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”)) and ultimate holding company (Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)) has its own share option
schemes. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employees, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share
Option Schemes (the “DSBG Schemes”) and the DSFH Share Option
Schemes (the “DSFH Schemes”) approved by shareholders.

Share-based compensation through the DSBG Schemes and the
DSFH Schemes is available to directors and senior executives of the
Group.

(@) DSBG Schemes

The shareholders of DSBG approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and, at the same time, the
termination of the Share Option Scheme adopted by DSBG on 12
June 2004 (the “Old DSBG Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
of DSBG held on 27 May 2014. No further options can be offered
under the Old DSBG Scheme after its termination but the provisions
of the Old DSBG Scheme remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to allow grantees to exercise share options
granted prior to the termination of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet
exercised at the time of termination.

Under the Old DSBG Scheme, DSBG issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSBG the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSBG
has the intention to adopt cash settlement practice in respect of the
share options granted prior to year 2012. For share option issued in
2012 and afterwards, DSBG has the intention to settle its obligations
by issuing new shares.
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42. DR AERBRMEE ®
() XFBTEEFE @

ZERBRE TR A IRITEBEF A Z IR K
REFFTIR T - B RRE ZTEBRIRS R
MEESREZAFBITEEESSUIEERR
BABR G ETAAIFE17.0309) IERET @ BT
BRAT2IER 2 =& EERE © (\AFR1TEER
BOERTHRBERSMEE 2 WHE  RK(ii)
AFRITEERNEZER THASEZEAR
BERGAEBE 2 FHKME - R2014F3 A3
B A RMED] (622 F ) £ M AR T 2 RIRHE - BEE
BOHRBREZITEERDE BATRITEEBRAE
RERRMIABITZEE - ZRAREZITERTD
RIER T BERRRTE 1 2E 6 A A °

(2) R EmatE

RFERN 2005 F4 A28 AR BRESE
([R¥remeEsTEl ) ER201554 A28 @ °
2015 F5 A27 B - K& pi R BBIER
R AERT B ([ Rt al]) - KFe s
BT8R LR - SRR Sl — PR B EMR
BRAE - RSB ERT B ZIE BT AT AT
FERERRILEAMBEREERRIEBDAITEZZ
HRBEMS - DEETER N RIER -

BAHERETE KRR TEMBARS
TEEREERRE - EPIERKATFAFT R
BEERERRETER RIESRREZAEEE
BB BRAZFHEELENBND - X
MeRERAERES S MER RITEAB LB
RIRE B HITRRME -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(@) DSBG Schemes (Continued)

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted before
the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3
March 2014, the nominal value of DSBG’s shares of HK$1 each in
the capital of DSBG had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(b) DSFH Schemes

The share option scheme of DSFH adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old
DSFH Scheme”) had expired on 28 April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New DSFH Scheme”). No further share options can
be offered under the Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration but the
provisions of the Old DSFH Scheme remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to allow grantees to exercise share
options granted prior to the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme but
not yet exercised at the time of expiration.

Under the Old DSFH Scheme, DSFH issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSFH the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSFH
has adopted the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this
practice in respect of the existing share options issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. DR AERBRMEE
(Z) XFEratE @

ZERRE TR A< B EFT BN Z R R A5
FiiRT - B RREZITEETBRRER RFME
BEREAFERESSUNCERNESRS
Fr ETARBIZE17.03(9) FARET » B AERAT
2P ZBRSEFETE « () AMERBROERT
BREBRZMEE ZWMIE & (i) K< a%
NEZEETHASAEXBRERBRIMER
Z W TE - A 201443 A 3 AR RHEN] (622
B)ERAMR T 2RRE  BESORREZT
FEREZEAFTEMBRAPERERO2BTZ
HE - ZRBREZITEHAIRNER T BEREE
1E2E6Fp%A o

BAFHBRTEEETERT 2RKRE

42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) DSFH Schemes (Continued)

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSFH Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted
before the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
on 3 March 2014, the nominal value of DSFH shares of HK$2 each in
the capital of DSFH had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme:

BRTEE(ER)
®¥H 7l BYEH T Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
2011F12 A 128 MR & 011F128128E 2012F12812HE

2016 %12 A 12 2017512 A 128
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 8.91

201212 A218 AR 48 S+t

21/12/2012 Equity-settled
20143 A 26 A AR 1+
26/03/2014 Equity-settled

AFRITEBFE B RMBERLZ2016F 12 A
31 A 1F @ WEEARREREAFIRITER
2R -

REFRITER AR 20165 F

2012561221 BE
201712 A21H

2013512 21 B&
201812 A 21 H

21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 7.96
2014F3H26 A% 2015F3A26HE
201963 426 H 202053 426 H

26/03/2014-26/03/2019 26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG Scheme
since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.
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42. DR AERBRMEE ®
BRAFLRENERTF 2RARE :

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

Share options granted under the Old DSFH Scheme:

BhiTEE(ER)
®¥H L) By EH T8 Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
201112 128 MR & 2011F12 A 12BE 2012F12 A 12BE

201612 A 12 H 201712 8128
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 38.35
2012412 5211 Sk 0] 2012412 A218% 2013F 1221 B &

201712 A21H 201812 A21H
21/12/2012 Cash-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 31.88

AEema=tE WM A -LZE2016F12 A 31 H
b WEEAREERIBEAT SR ERDE

IR 25 PR O RE SR 2 JA B £ A3 EL 7 3R B 2 St 4n

No share options had been granted under the New DSFH Scheme
since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.

Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as

T 8 follows:

2016 2015
LARSHE 2 5 2 R R A Equity-settled options 1,101 1,961
AR & S 1+ 2 s A% Cash-settled options 3,982 7,682
Ll Total 5,083 9,643
UBEZ(T 2R R’ Cash-settled options

?ﬁtﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%l%%ﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ%%iﬂﬁﬁﬁ

FZURENNALRE  AEEEREE

43,341,000 (20154 : 39,359,000;%75)2%% F‘%
ZERBREATEBE - ZBETEE Nl v)
AT EBBINTEIENZ T o &t“%ﬁ)’mzlﬁﬁ

i BRI TR = 2REATE

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme and Old DSFH Scheme described above, the Group
has recorded liabilities of HK$43,341,000 (2015: HK$39,359,000) in
respect of the fair value of the share options at the reporting date.
These do not include cost separately borne by DSFH as stated under
note (iv) below. The fair value is determined by using the Trinomial
Option Pricing Model, and based on the major assumptions set out in
the following tables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAPS¥F7TA1517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. LIBRHAERRMNEE @ 42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
UB 25123 (E) Cash-settled options (Continued)
RHIBITEEEE
Old DSBG Scheme
2016 2015
2011 20114

12812H 12 A12H
12 December 12 December

®¥H Grant date 2011 2011
RIMRTEBN12 A31 H Share price of DSBG as at

ZRE(ET) 31 December (HK$) 14.26 13.72

IEE(ET) Exercise price (HK$) 8.91 8.91

TEERIE (FE () Expected volatility (Note (i) 30.62% 34.33%

FHI(F) Time to maturity (years) <1 <2

iR e G (D)) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 0.84% 0.51%

TERTAR B 2 (5 (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 2.75% 2.50%

AFemESE
Old DSFH Scheme
2016 2015

20124 2011 & 2012 20114

128211 128128 125218 12 5128

(&% (iv) (&% (iv) (FE(iv) (FE ()

21 December 12 December 21 December 12 December

2012 2011 2012 2011

®FH Grant date (Note (iv)) (Note (iv)) (Note (iv)) (Note (iv)

R¥F&RN12B318Z Share price of DSFH as at

RAE(HT) 31 December (HK$) 52.45 52.45 38.75 38.75

1768 (BT) Exercise price (HK$) 31.88 38.35 31.88 38.35

FREDRIE (FE () Expected volatility (Note (i) 35.36% 35.36% 36.33% 36.33%

FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <2 <1 <3 <2

2 2 B )2 (i) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 1.07% 0.84% 0.74% 0.51%

FRETRRS R (5 (iii)) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 2.96% 2.96% 2.67% 2.67%

186  K¥FRITAMR AT 2016FEER
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42. DR AERBRMEE ®
B 25123 RE(E)

i

(i)

(ii)

FERDRIE R ZARE RN A E B 2 BB E —F AR
TERER RSB EREARENE - LR
FRIBERFTIRITERE R AH© BARE 2 RKIE - 8
ERANBRE 2 FHRN 2 REHRE - WEEXR
MER -

BEERMNESEMFRIEEINEEZSRIEZ R

SR o

B

BEHR SR IBEREMAT

ZERIRE 2 HBHIERA AR ERESE - K
R E # % RARAERER 7,092,000 % 7T (2015
4 : 3,335,000 7)) BERRKERERS B
3,757,000 % 7T (2015 4F : Y o AR 7 7R =2 M [B] ¢
1,265,000/57L) °

RERR T E AR ERENIRSWE - &
NIEBELFEN 2016 12 A 31 H 449,590,000
7T (2015 4F : 31,900,000 7T) °

UREZ 2R RE

P AF IR TR B ER IR T 2 ABRES A
BRI - R T A2 AP ETIA=RA B
EEEAGE -

ARATIRITER B RRERT & B SR B E2016 4
128318 » SWEAEAT ARSI 2 RBARIRIEAR
FIRTTR BRI -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

Cash-settled options (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
the share price of DSBG and DSFH, as applicable, during the one year
period immediately preceding the measurement date and is based on
the assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical
volatility of the share prices of DSBG and DSFH as set out above.

(ii) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

(iii) Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

(iv)  The cost of these options is borne by the holding company, DSFH. DSFH
has recorded liabilities of HK$7,092,000 (2015: HK$3,335,000) and a
charge to income statement of HK$3,757,000 (2015: a reversal of charge
to income statement of HK$1,265,000) for these options.

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’
right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2016 is
HK$49,590,000 (2015: HK$31,900,000).

Equity-settled options

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using
the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted.

No equity-settled options had been granted under the New DSBG
Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. URBAERBRMEE

BTz RSB RENEFIOTEEZZ e
T

42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

KARTEEE:T 8 i e g 8
Old DSBG Scheme Old DSFH Scheme
2016 2015 2016 2015
RTTRE RTUEE R¥TEE RFWEE
KRS mERS  AHEGEE ik 352 KifER il 337 AHeR TEH
AR 18 A e B AR 8 g e B
Rit#A (1) k7% (%) RH#E (Em) Rin%A (%)
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
DSBG shares average  DSBG shares average  DSFH shares average  DSFH shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
—-A-H At 1 January 11,880,959 8.69 12,150,982 8.69 47,221 35.92 H1.221 35.92
o Granted - - - - - - - -
Bk Expired - - - - - - - -
Bfift Exercised (1,495,507) 8.12 (270,023) 8.82 - - - -
BIUH/ Rk Canceled/forfeited - - - - - - = -
12318 At 31 December 10,385,452 8.77 11,880,959 8.69 47,221 35.92 Hr.221 35.92
12 A 31 RAffE Exercisable at 31 December 9,429,992 8.78 8,474,534 8.69 385,935 36.25 302,490 36.34

AFRITEER 2016 F 12 A 31 HARITHFE 2B
EZITEEN T 7.96/8LE 11.68/5 0 (20154 ¢
NF7.96BCE11.68/870) @ K E N FH5F
BREAITEHA1.2E (2015F : 2.35F) « @R
AEEEZRSRITBRABMEAZ AT SRR
BEHE - 72016 4F 12 A 31 BRI Z RITEFR
BekE 2 1T{E(E T 31.88 B L = 38.35 /87T (2015
F N F31.88BTE38.35/87T) © HENEF
BFRIERE 7T H1 A 1.334F (20154F : 2.334F) ©

RERITHR AR 20165 F

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2016 have
exercise prices in the range of HK$7.96 to HK$11.68 (2015: HK$7.96
to HK$11.68), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.2
years (2015: 2.3 years). In respect of directors and senior executives
of the Group, their applicable DSFH’s share options outstanding as
of 31 December 2016 have exercise prices in the range of HK$31.88
to HK$38.35 (2015: HK$31.88 to HK$38.35), and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1.33 years (2015: 2.33 years).
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43. TRIEEHRSBENHH

fiE B AR ERBIERTOEN AT S e RMEE
REEZERRLE  AREBNFHEERERH
FREFIRBBREENFEAE  ATKERE
ERBERETHE -

() xFHAEEHSIEEYC EMBERR
RAHHE EREERAE

AEBRBERBTREEEGRAR ([FEHRR
BEDARZEFPREPETREEERS o

REERZF| R KRENBEPREE 2 SR
BEEEH B BRREE 2 EUGRIB LT KB
TH#A%E - 2016512 H31 H * ZF R ARG
RN 29 H 2 [ EYRIERIARIE R I8
BN RHR2015F 12 A31 B @ I FBEAENK
BERBENHMEE kBRI RER - Hifz
BEHNTX °

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the
gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December
2016, the net amount was a receivable and was included in “Accounts
receivable and prepayments” in Note 29; and as at 31 December
2015, the net amount was a payable and was included in “Other
accounts and accruals”. The amounts offset are shown below.

2016 2015

JERE B REE 2 FIEERE Gross amount of accounts
receivable from HKSCC 41,492 10,748

R EBRREE 2 FORERE Gross amount of accounts
payable to HKSCC (329) (31,068)
FEUL/(FEAT) B R R AEE T8 Net amount due from/(to) HKSCC 41,163 (20,320)

(2) RERFERFERBEMBRR X
NEHECEMEEREE

BEFEEELH

AEEEEARERIHFIIVARFRLER
B WUREEERR - FEEEBHRRE - —B
HRENEN MBS RRXIHTZRTKKS
BaRIE - MAERRFARHARFEEE
WIFRLEENEMN  MERYFIRZENEE
BER—RITIEEMBARRTEHEERE

E

TRIREZEE  RERBNI BB FREER
RN BRI PR AV SR ) 2 B T ELFFIS ©

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position.

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. TRIEERBSENHHE@® 43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES (Continued)

(2) RERFERFERBEMBRR X (b)
NHEzEHEEREE @

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

190

AR E T HE () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
ERAERR A H AELE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
REBRRRR  REERRER THRAME
b3p ARk vk SHIR BHuT2RE
SHARAE EETE (REFRLEAR) HEVE VA
BEZER Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts
B4 recognised financial  financial assets instruments not subject
Grossamounts  liabilties set off  presented in the (ncluding ~ EUEELER to enforceable
of recognised in the statement of statement of non-cash  Cash collateral ] netting At
016%12A31F At 31 December 2016 financial assets ~ financial position ~ financial position collateral) received Net amount agreements Total
PHEE Financial assets
fTESHIA Derivative financial instruments 816,223 - 816,223 (579,441) (27,141) 209,641 361,09 1,177,322
TREEBRRRANE B E
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
REBRRRA  REBRRER FHRAME
Hivend vk $HIE BHaT2ER
SHEEAE SETE (REFRCEAR) HELE Ph ]
BEZE@ Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts
&L recognised financial - financal liablities instruments ~ BERRLER not subject
Gross amounts assetssetoff  presented in the (including Cash to enforceable
of recognised in the statement of statement of non-cash collateral ] netting Ait
16F12831A At 31 December 2016 financial liabilities ~ financial position financial position collateral) placed out Net amount agreements Total
SRR Financil libilties
it Deposits from banks 466,306 - 466,306 (466,306) - - 1,851,897 2,318,208
EERIE Derivative financial
instruments 1,142,821 - 1,142,821 (679,441) (98,173) 465,207 200,597 1,343,418
BEEEBRMAE  Trading liabilties 7,148,887 - 7,748,887 (7,184,753) - 564,134 - 7,148,887
EfbiRE RBR Other accounts and accruals 186,987 - 186,987 (186,987) - - 2,816,411 3,003,398

RERITHR AR 20165 F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. TRIEERBSENHHE@® 43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SRBERERHERBERBMRREK (b)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting

REHzeREEREE @ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AR E T HE () Master netting arrangements (Continued)

GEREHRR RN ABLE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial posttion

REBIRRER  REBRRER TP RAfEE
SHOREZ AR 4812 B8l 9E
SRAREE HERE (RRSEAR) R LR
BEIER  Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts
BELE recognised financial  financial assets nstuments  EUELAR not subject
Grossamounts  liabilities set off  presented in the (including Cash to enforceable
of recognised  in the statement of statement of non-cash collateral 8 netting At
2015% 124318 At 31 December 2015 financial assets ~ financial posttion ~ financial posttion collateral) received Net amount agreements Total
AR Financial assets
EERIE Derivative financial
instruments 543,111 - 543,117 (474,682) (18,213) 50,882 535,551 1,079,328
GEREHRR RN ABLE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
RIBIRRER  REBRRER PR
e 4814 Bslaio9E
SREELE AERE (RERSEAR) iR LR
B8  Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts
BE8E recognised financial financial abiltes nstuments ~ BEARLAR not subject
Gross amounts assetssetoff  presentedin the (including Cash to enforceable
of recognised  in the statement of statement of non-cash collateral 7 netting At
2015124318 At 31 December 2015 financial fiabilities ~financlal position  financial position collateral) placed out Net amount agreements Total
SRR Financial liabilties
BOER Deposits from banks 43914 - 43914 (43914 - - 1,506,997 1550911
fTEEHIA Derivative financial instruments 1,250,102 - 1,250,102 (474,682) (446,015) 329,405 208,330 1,458,432
BIFEEREAER  Trading liabilties 6,270,630 - 6,270,630 (6,261,578) - 9,052 - 6,270,630
AR E RER Other accounts and accruals 123211 - 123211 (123211) - - 2,484,841 2,608,112

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016 191



192

AEBE XTI HFER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(BAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

TIREBAKEZ ERHERI R Z B M
MER - B IREFEFH B REZ —FD

1. BEXZEHLR

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2016 & 20154
128318 12 A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
BARF B E Capital adequacy ratio
— LR — Common Equity Tier 1 12.7% 12.2%
——% — Tier 1 12.7% 12.2%
— B - Total 18.3% 16.7%

2016412 A31 H X% 201512 A31 HZ B AT
RLELERTIARRITHEGZEE MR (B IFRFIEERT
RARFERIT(RE)) 2ECRITE(EAR) HADE
EEBRBE I EERTETHE - ZEAT R L XM
HEZRE i RARMRIERR o

KRBT RBEREMRITARBEERITEMRD
BTEATRLEHFEER - RPIFERTAE
SPA BDRPIIRITREE MR E MOAFTIRTT (P )
BT ABTERITEEENHRE

REFEGRITEBRE) R FEAEEEER
R H A ARRIER 2 SRINERIE FIB AN IRITHE R
http://www.dahsing.com * Iz AJ &L LA T B EEEAS
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/

regulatory_disclosures.html# A ©

RFERITHR AR 20165 F

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering
BCM and DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject
to the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
regulations and DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website
at www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. BEEXL 2. CAPITAL BUFFER
2016
PR E A AN & Capital conservation buffer ratio 0.625%
P EREEEARLE Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.462%
1.087%

H2016F1 818 LillEHEASEERER
RRFTIRTT - BPAMETHFEALRIZEARATEL
K7 ARG AERHE -

REAGRITE(RE)RAD  FRAEEEES
R H A AR R BER 2 BEINEBIE RIS AR TR B
http://www.dahsing.com + I AJ4F LA TN B4 -
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/

regulatory_disclosures.html # A °

3. MNBEEARFLEER

With effect from 1 January 2016, the above capital buffers are
phased-in and applicable to DSB. The countercyclical capital buffer
ratio is computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital
adequacy ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s countercyclical capital
buffer ratio is published in the Bank’s website at www.dahsing.com
and is accessible at the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/
html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2016 2015

REEE R

ME)EEER LR IARRTT (BRERFIHERTT
RARFRIT (R ED)) RPBRFESEE A FS
RARDEEMARLENMEFHH - RBEE
HERFLE R TORIBCIRITE ORBIE) RADFTE -

RPITRBBEMBITARBRBRITREE
STRBE B RRERRK BRI ERITAEET
BRRPIRTTREENMRERKHMIRT (FPE)A
BTABPERITREENRE

4. 1EIREE

Liquidity maintenance ratio 41.9% 39.5%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance ratio of the Bank
(covering BCM and DSB China) for the financial year. The LMR is
computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
the liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is
subject to China banking regulations.

4. LEVERAGE RATIO

2016 2015

R &

CRRITE (BZR) RAIDE 24A(6) 1557 & LB b =
ZHE o LRDARIT2ERARRZ LR RIRE
ARFE LR 2 R G EMEE

Leverage ratio 8.2% 7.9%

The disclosure on leverage ratio is required under section 24A(6)
of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The above ratios represent the
consolidated position of the Bank and are computed on the same
consolidated basis as the capital adequacy ratio.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

193



194

AEBE XTI HFER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(BAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. BERE=Em)

RFEGCRITECGRE) MR BEREEER
R R ZBINER B TN AN ER1T4 & http://
www.dahsing.com ' 37 7] & DA N B £ E 4
www.dahsing.com/tc/html/aboutus/regulatory_
disclosures.html#E A ©

5. SMNERBS

T3 AER2016F12 A31 HZz = tMEMERE
e 7 SNE R 5B (5 B 2 SNE R SR R i e SN BT
10%) © MEEE 2 LR EEE -

MR20164F 12 A31 H K% 2015F 12 A31 BA%EE
W AT A A (NS B 58 o

4. LEVERAGE RATIO (Continued)

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio
is published in the Bank’s website at www.dahsing.com and is
accessible at the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/html/
en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

5. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2016 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Htpsv  SNSEEH

B Other Total

EY ARM Macau foreign foreign

201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 US dollars  Renminbi pataca  currencies  currencies
HERBESBT Equivalent in HK$ millions

HEEE Spot assets 64,651 13,702 9,347 4,923 92,623

REARE Spot liabilities (33,722 (13,522) (10,993) (8,437 (66,674)

RHEA Forward purchases 25,926 12,881 = 5,379 44,186

EHEDN Forward sales (55,094) (13,047) - (1,865) (70,006)

HERE Net options position - - - 6) 6)

5/ (R) %8 Net long/(short) position 1,761 14 (1,646) ) 123

Hiohk  SMEEE

gk Other Total

£ ARE Macau foreign foreign

201512 431 H At 31 December 2015 US dollars Renminbi pataca  currencies  currencies
HERBSHBTT Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 58,812 16,721 8,472 5,443 89,448

BEER Spot liabilities (24,177) (16,238) (9,566) (8,872) (58,853)

R HE A Forward purchases 27,958 12,735 - 5,853 46,546

EHE Forward sales (60,960) (13,018) - (2,364) (76,342)

HgEm Net options position @) () - 4 =

&/ (&) BF8 Net long/(short) position 1,630 199 (1,094) 64 799

REERIT AR AR 20165 F
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6. EERSBEIREIITN

(B) #ITES B2 EFER

KRR (LB A (@
?373 ﬁ&uﬁﬁ#nnﬁﬁimﬁ e o ¥

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

) by percentage covered by collateral
2016128 31H 201512 A31 H
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
ExaE ExEs
SHEARRE SHARRE
ZEA ZED
% of gross % of gross
REREH advances RERER advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
TEBRRERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Ie Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 2,317,648 82.0 1,909,605 66.5
~MERE - Property investment 15,095,225 99.3 16,136,906 98.5
—SRtE - Financial concerns 4,259,982 26.6 1,118,110 30.7
—RELL - Stockbrokers 1,804,854 44.9 965,931 45,1
—HEETEX - Wholesale and retail trade 4,543,621 88.5 4,144,996 90.1
S - Manufacturing 2,435,207 94.0 3,026,032 93.5
—BHREHH - Transport and transport equipment 3,508,563 78.8 3,713,584 89.1
—[REEE) - Recreational activities 78,395 97.4 262,522 56.5
— &R - Information technology 74,186 87.7 72,019 89.1
—Eft - Others 5,180,298 82.2 5,454,602 83.3
39,207,979 822 36,804,307 88.5
fEA Individuals
-BE [REAHEE ] - Loans for the purchase of
[AAZEREHE Rk flats in Home Ownership
[HEEEEE] BFER Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 756,457 100.0 869,023 100.0
-BEEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 22,230,051 99.9 21,260,300 99.9
—ERFER - Credit card advances 4,377,622 - 4,465,225 =
—Hfty - Others 11,092,297 43.9 9,217,401 37.5
38,456,427 724 35811,949 714
EERERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 77,754,406 77.4 72,616,256 80.1
BE5mE GE(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,723,386 66.2 7,394,880 66.5
TEEBIMEBNER (F Q) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 28,180,073 740 29,621,510 68.7
113,657,865 75.8 109,632,646 76.1
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6. BERERBREZIEINIDHT @ 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

() RITEPE2EFERARH(LLERHA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
EZoERUSEHERRENE S LES classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (&) by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

i Notes:

(1) B Rz B GRE BRERZALERBE 2 (1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
s moEARSED - HOMNEONRE imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
UREmESRESZER - merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines

issued by the HKMA.

THREBZE S EER (BIEARRITZ/HINE Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade finance
THBARIIR T 2B 58E )18{E297,335,00078 extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank) totalling
7t (2015412 A 31 H : 592,075,000 7T ) 9 48 HK$297,335,000 (31 December 2015: HK$592,075,000) are classified
R EEAAIMERBER]ET - under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

@) EEBUMIMEBNERBER FESEFPBES ) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
BLAIMEF 2 B3 - located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.

REERIT AR AR 20165 F
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6. ERERGREZBEIDH @

(R) TS B2 EFERARE (LEXA
BOERUZERGRENEI LD

) ()

AR & AR AR 10% S £ 7T
¥ REEREERE - A MERERERNE
AFEHERAELENT -

(VA7 FTh751)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
constituting 10% or more of the total balance of advances to
customers, the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans,
and individually and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances
are as follows:

BX4AE
BEREE
BB3EA {8 BIFTEf GEME
Gross HEEE AEEE
advances Individually Collectively
KEBLH REER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
201612 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 balance loans months allowances allowances
EBABERHER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEsH Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 15,095,225 92,594 89,700 10,276 51,607
A Individuals
—-BEEHMEENMEER - Loans for the purchase
of other residential
properties 22,230,051 10,670 24,893 - 4,552
EEBIMERRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 28,180,073 364,972 380,615 189,010 145,416
B
AEARER
38 3 & A BBl e
Gross RIER REZERE
advances Individually Collectively
REBEH REER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
2015% 12 A31H At 31 December 2015 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEcR Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 16,136,906 - 45,009 - 26,886
fEA Individuals
—BEHMEE - Loans for the purchase
MEER of other residential
properties 21,260,300 - 23,645 - 2,222
ERBIMERRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 29,621,510 304,159 356,762 191,321 184,899
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6. EERSBRBEZIFEIIDHT @ 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
() RIT¥ESBE2EFERLE(UERA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
BoERAZERARRENBEI LS classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
A7) (8 by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

THRFEBEBERNEWSFIZR ZFNIZEEIREER The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

AR BRZ MIHBER o

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year
were disclosed in the tables below.

W E B R EE

MsH 2 B

KReeEEER  Recoveries

5%  of advances

A Loans written  written off in

New off as previous
2016 & 2016 allowances uncollectible years
EBBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Trea Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = = -
A Individuals
—-BEHEMEEMEER ~ Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 364
TEBBAIMEROER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 149,372 115,111 6,137
WEIEREF
MsH 2 B
RELEEER  Recoveries
W% of advances
¥ Loans written  written off in
New off as previous
20154 2015 allowances uncollectible years
ERBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TH2 Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEKRE - Property investment = = =
fELA Individuals
—BEHEMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 474
EERBMIMERRNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 230,629 108,053 11,610

RFERITHR AR 20165 F
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6. ERERGREZBEIDH @

(2) H B KX AEREE

REBEFBSER(RITE(KRE) R - LT HF
BAEEBNBRBEZ AT H2REBSERYF
B K PE K75 B R P P9I 2 SRERTT R R B T4
AIREEEFABREENSE - EPRBEAR
TRENMBITHE R RR T2 EAEEKH
FRER o

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which
includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by the Bank and
its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

BEARRA HEREGRH

HEREE HEREE
On-balance  Off-balance Here
sheet sheet Total
2016 F 2016 exposure exposure  exposures
1. FREMS - AREGHEER 1. Central government, central
HERENRB QRN government-owned entities and their
AERR([AERA]) subsidiaries and joint ventures (“JV”s) 6,982,813 335,952 7,318,765
2. M - A BUNER R 2. Local governments, local
BERERBE QAN government-owned entities and
SXUNC] their subsidiaries and JVs 2,067,880 639,122 2,707,002
3. EREEFEMMBERDS 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland
7 A B st i 17 ) EL A China or other entities incorporated
WL EM B AR in Mainland China and their
S=VNG subsidiaries and JVs 8,442,337 1,717,472 10,159,809
4. REELME-HZRZ 4. Other entities of central government
R A AL not reported in item 1 above 1,579,550 153,473 1,733,023
5. REELME-HERZ 5. Other entities of local governments
W BT R E A not reported in item 2 above 569,977 11,774 581,751
6. FEEEREAMNUINZ 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
B R 37 R B At LA S China or entities incorporated outside
BRI EIHERE - TS R Mainland China where the credits are
BT E A A granted for use in Mainland China 8,070,905 542,543 8,613,448
7. HURHETF - HREHEE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
HABAREIFRTRERR are considered to be non-bank
HIEREE Mainland China exposures 579,554 = 579,554
28,293,016 3,400,336 31,693,352
AFITREAMBRTHEAR 2 Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
MerifER 2 BERE subsidiary bank after provision 189,622,746
BEBRBRANKBELEE On-balance sheet exposures as
EER percentage of total assets 14.92%

it DRERREeREEFEREREREMHEERR

Bzo8 -

other balances of claims on the customers.
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6. BERERBREZIEINIDHT @ 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(Z) HHE RBEEKEREE @) (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBBRA EBEBERI
iofXE 03]
On-balance  Off-balance fBERER
sheet sheet Total
20154 2015 exposure exposure exposures
1. FRET - PREFHEER 1. Central government, central
HEREE AR government-owned entities and their
MEEAT subsidiaries and JVs 5,600,248 342,416 5,942,664
2. WABRN @ wHBIHEEN 2. Local governments, local
HrE R BB A A government-owned entities and
MNEERQTE their subsidiaries and JVs 1,812,458 556,047 2,368,505
3. BEEREAMZER 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland
1 R B A S MY E China or other entities incorporated
BRERERE AR in Mainland China and their
MNEE T subsidiaries and JVs 6,880,961 2,069,484 8,950,445
4. REELERE-HERZ 4. Other entities of central government
R BT R E Ao A not reported in item 1 above 671,859 174,376 846,235
5. AEELME-BEHR2 5. Other entities of local governments
77 RIS R B A not reported in item 2 above 374,271 231,530 605,801
6. EEERBEAMIAINZ 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
B R Sk fE AR B A A S China or entities incorporated outside
BRI TS - Tp W Mainland China where the credits are
R B it A granted for use in Mainland China 10,677,468 336,276 11,013,744
7. HtXZHF - HAE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
BARVEE B RBEFEERAT are considered to be non-bank
BEFHHE Mainland China exposures 8,270 - 8,270
26,025,535 3,710,129 29,735,664
AT REAMBTHBARZ Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
M ER 2 EES subsidiary bank after provision 181,672,638
BEABRANARENG On-balance sheet exposures as
BERTAAL percentage of total assets 14.33%

() REGS M2 EFERAERANE

b
BEFEFRZBREDMIRECEERBREBRR L
RBGEFRAEMDE - —RME - BEFNER
TR B2 5 8 F A [R) Z [8 SeR - J fe f A E
% o

TERATFPENRMERE - ERRETFENR A
BEPEREERN MG EREERIZRE D
A7 o

RERITHR AR 20165 F

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that
of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment
allowances by geographical area.
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6. ERERGREZBEIIDH @

(A RESSH2EFERAERANE

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue

(@) loans by geographical area (Continued)
BB E 18 Bl ¥ 44 A
EFEM EFER BHEF AEERE AR
#%  Individually EX  Individually  Collectively
Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed
advancesto advancesto advances to impairment impairment
2016 12A31H At 31 December 2016 customers customers customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 90,514,829 1,044,157 892,925 391,466 294,687
ol China 7,573,907 72,815 127,256 30,499 67,881
! Macau 12,796,849 55,200 60,641 12,552 48,779
HAh, Others 2,772,280 2,037 6,315 693 9,198
113,657,865 1,174,209 1,087,137 435,210 420,545
ERIAE BRI RAE
BPEX BFPEX Al HEER REERE
ik Individually BR Individually ~ Collectively
Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed
advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment
2015412 A31H At 31 December 2015 customers customers customers allowances allowances
BB Hong Kong 88,670,794 694,726 482,606 283,589 205,814
HE China 7,374,771 76,030 186,222 31,712 101,454
RFT Macau 12,014,448 25,507 31,236 12,608 44,534
Hit Others 1,572,633 56 56 44 6,270
109,632,646 796,319 700,120 327,953 358,072

(T) EIpRfERE

BREREHNREZRRRNERK  REXS
% 3 1) PTAE D T R BR M 2 5 3 F AR AR T EY
Rk - —RIMNE  AXZBEFNEESHETR
BRNZ—TERFR  KETEES —RRITNE
31T MEABRERTRANER 7 &R
Rl —BERERES —BR o &t MMEMRA
ZEBREBE - RARKEIRERATE10% A
E2RBEITEHRKEE -

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are
disclosed.
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6. ERERBEZEINID @ 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(T) BRERE (d) International claims (Continued)
FRITIMARE
Non-bank private sector
Fem
FFaR1T FhARE
SRKE Non-
BhkE Non-bank financial BELE
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 17 Official financial private Total
BEBT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector claims
Brtl Offshore centres 1,867 17,682 6,684 113,351 139,584
-Hib FA - of which: Hong Kong 1,430 15,171 6,684 97,608 120,893
FRAGAR Developing Asia and Pacific 24,301 1,730 1,149 10,070 37,250
-Hip: - of which: Mainland China 20,282 1,730 1,133 8,561 31,706
FRTUAKE
Non-bank private sector
Ei
JERIT FLAKRE
SRR Non-
EAKE Non-bank financial EREE
2015612 A31R At 31 December 2015 iidhl Official financial private Total
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector claims
BRI Offshore centres 3,758 13,771 3,231 113,347 134,107
-Hib BA - of which: Hong Kong 2,483 11,676 3,089 98,523 115,771
ERTDAR Developing Asia and Pacific 28,424 1,574 863 9,223 40,084
-Hh - of which: Mainland China 22,107 1,574 847 7,821 32,349
(k) GERERRAEBZEARREN (e) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed
Rl by percentage covered by collateral
2016 2015
ZIRH mRE SR R IRFE
EHEE WEZ BHEE BB DL
Contract % covered Contract % covered
amount by collateral amount by collateral
ISR EEMEEREE Financial guarantees and
SABE other credit related
contingent liabilities 1,570,209 29.3 1,215,161 20.6
EFAEMEMEERB Loan commitments and
A other credit related
commitments 69,528,743 3.6 69,244,002 4.7

71,098,952 4.2 70,459,163 5.0
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7. FE - TERRERRBZIESRER

BIERBIER 2 EAREREE AT

() FEREBRZEFER

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

2016 2015
F R R R Sovereign exposures 208 727
N B (v B B R Public Sector Entity exposures 24,711 24,489
fEﬂﬂ R Bank exposures 883,987 1,103,611
B 5 R AR Securities firm exposures 26,854 5,334
72.“5227%?%‘ Corporate exposures 5,368,416 4,879,814
ReIEH Cash items 22,349 24,373
EETERMAE Regulatory retail exposures 1,022,063 1,006,926
FEZBER Residential mortgage loans 1,207,197 1,164,515
Lt AR 280 HA 2 fax R A2 Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 1,135,741 1,079,825
%60 HA 3 [ A E Past due exposures 65,192 41,375
FH R B dE Securitization exposures 21,136 16,496
BEEBERARBAE CERNERKEE Total capital charge for on-balance
sheet exposures 9,777,854 9,347,485
BEEFERED Direct credit substitutes 11,289 14,716
X SR 2 s ATE B Transactions-related contingencies 15,662 14,957
B 5 S AIEE Trade-related contingencies 8,400 6,256
RARTER Forward forward deposits placed 336 -
H Az Other commitments 67,512 85,778
XA Exchange rate contracts 76,755 130,197
FEEEL Interest rate contracts 14,002 11,158
EmEAEH Equity contracts 271 1,097
ERHERAE Credit valuation adjustment 59,654 52,566
BEBERINABAE 2 ERNERKERE Total capital charge for off-balance
sheet exposures 253,881 316,725
PRI GEF 2 ERERBTH Total capital charge for
central counterparties 298 -
EERRZ EREZREE Total capital charge for credit risk 10,032,033 9,664,210

IR E A E LA Rt EAE M 2 R it
BERIABS WB(E - WHAKBZERIEEER
A

This disclosure is made by multiplying the risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the
institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.
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(LAS¥F7TAL517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. FE-TERRERARZERER
(#0)

(i) WHEEBZERER
REBITRAREA BEFFETISRAR o

7. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS (Continued)

(i) Market risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market risk.

2016 2015
B gL BXER  ERINEHE BARER
Risk weighted Capital  Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
FIRE AR (BHEEE) Interest rate exposures

(including options) 369,287 29,543 527,025 42,162

SNEREAE (BEESR Foreign exchange exposures
HiiE) (including gold and options) 1,658,738 132,699 1,119,975 89,598
2,028,025 162,242 1,647,000 131,760

2\ B AN BRR B 4R R PI R FRR1T RAFT R 1T (Fh
B) AT PTHE A KRR ©

(i) BRERBZERER
ABITIRABENIGEH E A ERIERR

The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.

(iii) Operational risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating
operational risk.

2016 2015

RIERRR 2 EARRRK

8. ©LXER

EREBESNRNGE  LEIEESEEH
FARIMBEEMRTMETEERADENAR
KBIERR

(R) aRES
AEFCE2ETRERSERMBEHEEHBR

F A [ AR A B bR E a5 | AT
I HEEK

RFERITHR AR 20165 F

Capital charge for operational risk 680,864 632,371

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is concerned with how companies are
managed and controlled, and in particular the role and operation of
the Board of Directors in sustaining sound business integrity and
practices, and effective accountability.

(@) Statement of Compliance

The Group has fully complied with the requirements set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the HKMA.
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8. MHXETHEuwm
(z) BExg

201612 A31H  EFTEBEF/ETHERE -
TRRTES (BIEEETHRAR)  R5MEHR
TEFMAEK - EFEEeRRIEFRIT X
HFrZAGHERGIE IR EDEREBRE @ &
SEBERMBRE  BREEBOR KRBT ¥R
Z - WHEREREANEAREERSELNES
G o

HITESHRAESSREEARITEEERK L
MRS EXRZERAMBMELRE - JFRTE
FARMPIEEMT IS RERN S ELR R AE
SHEEFE - WS ETHEREEHERERRE
BORHIT > UHEFSMENNFREHESN
SNRERES

() ESEREEZSS
() FEZES

MAFRTEBEARINEBREZEZE
g BARNEZEMNEEESEARBEN
MBS HE REMNE - NED RSN BB
BRIE AMEERS  RREEZNR
EREREESEH RECHEFEE
BREMINFEMER  UHEESRED
ERMERE R EEREHER

M3 B IFNITEEMAKMNEBERX
ZEEBFEAKENSREERE - N3
BT ROMNBZBED - BITHRIR
e -ZBEXIR B A UERE
BB RERE RN BN TESAE
o

SENFEZRIETEHEEEREZE
SEHIIBE LRYMESR - MIMNERHEN AT &
EREBEE  REEMEAEEFEH
MEBHNER

(LA T 7Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
(b) The Board

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprised a Chairman, seven
executive directors including the Group Chief Executive, and five
non-executive directors. The Board meets at least quarterly. lts
principal roles include the formulation and approval of corporate and
business strategies, review of operations and financial performance,
approval of key policies and annual business plans, and ensuring the
maintenance of sound risk management and regulatory compliance.

Executive directors are appointed to the Board based on their
experience, specialist skill and knowledge of different businesses
of the Group. Non-executive directors bring to the Board their
knowledge and experience of other markets and industries,
guide executive management’s strategy development and policy
implementation, and provide valuable external perspectives in the
Board’s deliberations.

(c) Board and Specialised Committees
(i) Audit Committee

The Group Audit Committee, established by the Board of
DSBG, has the authority to review all matters related to
financial statements and disclosure, audit work performed by
internal and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole Group. The
Committee reports to the Board its observations and comments
on any issue that needs to be brought to the attention of the
Board, and makes recommendations to the Board regarding
financial statements and results announcements.

Three independent non-executive directors comprise the Group
Audit Committee, which meets at least three times a year with
the Group’s senior management, the head of internal audit and
the external auditors. The Chairman of the Committee is an
independent non-executive director with a high level of financial
and audit experience.

The head of internal audit of the Group reports functionally
to the Group Audit Committee. External auditors have direct
access to the Committee for expressing their views and
comments on any matter or concern relating to the Group.
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(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(i) Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The RMCC of the Bank is a Board-level committee with the
responsibility to provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s
risk management strategy and development, review risk
management issues and the resolution thereof, review risk
management policies and major risk limits prior to the approval
by the Board, and review major regulatory compliance issues
and development, and exercise oversight on the compliance
function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk
management and compliance with risk policy and regulatory
requirements. The RMCC holds four meetings a year.

The RMCC comprises two independent non-executive directors
of the Bank and the Chief Executive of DSBG.

(i) Executive Committee

The EC comprises the Chairman, Group Chief Executive and
executive directors of the Bank. It is responsible for developing
and setting the strategy and objectives of the Group. It
provides direction and guidance to business divisions, reviews
business performance, ensures effective internal control
systems, allocates resources, prioritises business initiatives and
investment, and is delegated with the authority of the Board
to exercise the authority and power of the Board on matters
relating to the normal course of business of the Group.

The EC can call upon such members of senior management
for advice or participation in its discussions as it deems
appropriate.
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(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(iv)  Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Group ALCO is accountable to the EC of the Group and
of the Bank, and oversees the overall management of the
statement of financial position, liquidity, funding, interest
rate risk and market risk of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating business plans affecting lending business, loan mix,
treasury investments, deposit taking and capital management.
It also plays a key role in the overall risk governance and
management of the Group.

ALCO meets every week and its regular tasks include the
review of key business emphasis and development, loan and
deposit changes, funding requirement, liquidity, surplus funds
investments, capital market dealing, and review of market
changes and competition. ALCO also conducts a regular
monthly review of overall statement of financial position and
business performance, including trend analysis and actual
positions against limits and targets.

ALCO is chaired by the Group Chief Executive. Members of
the Committee include executive directors of the Group and
its banking subsidiaries, heads of most business divisions, risk

management and financial control.

(v)  Credit and Risk Management Committees

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee are the
functional committees responsible for credit policy formulation
and portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury business
respectively. These committees are all chaired by the Chief
Executive of DSBG with certain executive directors and
senior business and credit officers as members. Credit
risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.
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8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)
(c) Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(vi)  Compliance Committee

The Group Compliance Committee is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Committee serves to uphold a high level of
awareness and accountability of compliance requirements.
The Group has adopted an ongoing compliance control and
monitoring process within business and support functions to
enhance compliance control.

Members of the Compliance Committee include the Chief
Executive, the Head of GRD, the Head of Legal and Compliance,
a number of executive directors and senior operation and risk
control executives of the Group. Minutes of the Committee
meetings and regular report are submitted to the Group Audit
Committee.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from the Treasury Division and is associated
principally with the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions in the
trading book and its investment securities.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.

The other risk management aspects are disclosed below.

(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in
relation to risk control are:

° the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both the
transaction and portfolio levels;

. the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics
and policy compliance; and

o the review of financial performance by analysis against
approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial

measures.
The RMCC have been delegated the authority to oversee and guide

the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by GRD and different functional committees.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring that
policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole. GRD
monitors and reports the Group’s risk positions to the Board via the
RMCC, sets standards for the management of financial risks and data
integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully considered in the
product planning and pricing process. GRD reviews and manages all
credit and risk exposure policies for the Group including the approval
of exposures to new markets, economic sectors, organisations,
credit products and financial instruments which expose the Group to
different types of risks. In determining risk policies, GRD takes into
account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business direction,
and risk adjusted performance of each business.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the
Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter
into credit exposures with the confidence that it understands the
associated risks and rewards.

The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of GRD, with increasing focus of its risk
strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The Group uses
a range of risk measurement and analytical tools in its management
of various risks which it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these
are continually being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-
changing business needs and the requirements of the regulators.

(c) Credit committees

The Group has a GCC for approving major credit limits. The CMC and
the TIRC are the functional committees responsible for approving and
recommending policies, limits and mandates for risk control in loans
and treasury business respectively. The credit risk function, while set
up to support the business areas, reports solely to the GRD.

(d) Credit risk
() Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the external credit
assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) that the Group uses
for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to banks,
sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective investment
schemes as well as securitisation exposures and exposures
to rated corporates. The Group also has an internal grading
methodology for assessing credit exposures to unrated
corporates.
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9. EMEEm 9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1ZEEREAEE) (i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)
REEBERECRITE(ER)RAUDE4BMHR The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
EZERF BEETEREAZ AR AIEES booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in
PR A 2 21T AREAR © Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
SANER
4ANEE
fiEI8AH
REZER
Akag
Total
FaREERERY exposure
ZERRE FED covered by
Exposures after ARNERE REZAR recognised
recogrised credi Risk-weighted RRER quarantees
rsk mifigation amounts B Totel o
B #E R #E g exposUre recogrised
BRAREE (32) (&3 (32) (33 Totel rske covered by credit
165 AL Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated Welghted recognised derivative
RS Class of exposures Exposures (Note?) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
B OEEBERR A Onbeanceshest
1 ThEE 1. Soweig 1229085 12,997 960 - 258 - 258 - -
2 DEEN 2. Public Sector Enty 957,583 1,195,966 - 306,885 - 306,885 - -
3 ZEERRT 3 Mutterd
Development
Bank 138,901 138,901 - - - - - -
4 B 4. Bank 31,118,925 3,276,869 419,759 10,644,834 204,999 11,049,633 - -
5 #E 5. Securites fim 671,339 39 671,000 10 33,500 336,470 - -
6 %8 8. Corporate 79,314,254 2,157,033 52424933 14,847,781 52,267,418 67,105,209 3969,853 621,612
1. BeEE 1. Cashitems 789,987 - 307,298 - 219,363 219,363 - -
8 EE% 8. Regulatory retal 17,390,244 - 17,034,386 - 12,775,790 12,775,790 210,604 85,265
0. [=hE 0. Residential
mortgage loans 3,367,131 - 34,520,137 - 16,069,965 16,069,965 - 836,09
10, Efixas 10 Other exposures
BlRRE which a not past
dlue exposures 12,985,021 1,926,728 10,576,662 1,175,844 18,020,915 14,196,759 489,007 5
11, EERAE 11, Pastdue exposures 817,721 - 817,721 - 814,804 §14,804 531,775 70348
L. BERER) B Offhalanceshest
1. B 1, Offalance sheet
TE%55 exposures ofher
fR&f tran OTC
TERH Gervtive
ZERRER fransactons or
L creditdervtive
contracts 1,730,320 - 1,730,320 - 1,289997 1,280997 87,35 -
2 BMEIE 2 OTCdervative
X5 fransactions 2,361,536 1,886,628 475,908 747,066 390,769 1,187,865 129,351 18997
. BERF4F G Contral Counterparties 186,407 - 186,407 - 3728 3728 - -
T. EF120%8E D, Exposures thatare
EE/RRAE risk-Welghted
at1.250% 21,136
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9. EMEEm 9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) &R B (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEEREAEE) () Credit risk exposures (Continued)
REZER
e
Total
BHEERRRA exposure
LERAE e covered by
Evposures after BlriEss B8k recognised
tecognised crelt Risk-weighted g Quarantegs
risk miigaton amounts BikiEs Tote o
iR AT iR AR £z eXposUe recognised
BlAESR (#2) (3) (&) (3) Tote risk covered by credit
A15% 2015 Total Rated Unrafed Rated Unrated Welghted recognised derivative
BBl Class of exposures Eiposres (Note?) Note ) (Note?) (Note ) amounts collateral contracts
B OEEBERR A Onbeanceshest
1. TEgE 1, Soveregn 875,602 923,42 - 9087 - 9087 - -
2. DEEf 2. Public Sector Enty 829,140 1674997 - 306,115 - 306,115 - 118,333
3. ZE%ESAT 3 Multatera Development Bark 71078 7078 - - = - - 8
4, $f7 4, Bank 36,207,148 36,514,368 852,04 13,369,606 405,337 13,795,143 - -
5 #5E 5, Securties firn 183,708 1LY 182,605 314 66,302 86,676 36 -
6. =8 6. Corporate 13,313,705 2,324,455 16,286,423 11,480,302 49517367 60,997,669 5,034,364 892,331
7. BeER 1. Cashitems 780518 - 3,677,964 - 304,657 304,657 - -
8 EETE 8. Regulatory retail 17204322 - 16,762,0% - 12,586,571 12,586,571 291,567 150,670
9. (=RR 9. Residential mortgage loans 34,266,269 - 33,300,144 - 14,556,441 14,556,441 106 958,019
10, 24AK#RE 10, Other exposures which are ot
Bl past due exposures 11,845,454 1977154 9,998,853 1128372 12374435 13,497,807 196,124 8
1, BHERAE 11, Pastdue exposures 477259 - 477259 - 517,188 517,188 203943 39267
L. BEBER) B Offodenceshest
1. BEOMIE 1 Offbalance sheet
I8R5 exposures ofher
[REfE fhan OTC dervatve
TEAH transactions or
LEEEE credit dervative
RoNak confacts
i 1,118,843 - 1,718,843 - 1,521,336 1,521,336 54,187 -
2. BIMTETE 2. OTC dervative ransactons 2926,3% 1,799,013 112792 729,699 1,060,751 1,780,650 85,862 -
5
R, B 1250%88 G Exposures that arerisk-weighted
B2/ a1.250% 1649
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(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Notes:

(1) principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2) including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer
rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAIl issue
rating of any other exposures of the obligor).

(3) exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and
outstanding amounts on net open positions arising from OTC
derivative transactions, repo-style transactions and credit
derivative contracts booked in its banking book or trading
book. The credit risk exposures associated with these contracts
are predominantly their fair values (i.e. the positive marked-
to-market values favourable to the Group). These credit risk
exposures together with potential exposures from market
movements are managed as part of the overall lending limits
allowed to counterparties. Collateral or other security is
generally not obtained for such credit risk exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash
or a delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation
of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To
mitigate settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established
for individual counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements
on a day. The Group will also enter into netting arrangements
and make settlement on the basis of delivery against payment
as appropriate.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

Under the terms of the current collateral obligations of the
Group with respect to derivative contracts, the Group estimates
based on the positions as at 31 December 2016 that it would not
be required to post additional collateral in the event of one notch
downgrade in its credit rating (2015: Nil).

The Group has in place the policies and procedures to control
and monitor wrong-way risk, including requiring prior approval
before entering into prescribed wrong-way risk deals.

The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.

2016 20154

12831 H 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2016 2015

AN EIESERE Gross total positive fair value 1,247,508 1,152,520

EESEHE Credit equivalent amounts 2,366,553 2,926,935
RAEMmEE - =5 Value of recognised collateral by type

— 17 - Deposits 129,351 85,882

JR\Be e £ EE Risk weighted amounts 1,137,955 1,780,650
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as

follows.
2016 & 20154
12831 H 12AH31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2016 2015
HEEE Notional amounts:
—RTT - Banks 80,746,539 93,087,809
N — Corporates 15,226,960 31,038,100
—Efh - Others 6,512,189 720,946
102,485,688 124,846,855
EESEHES Credit equivalent amounts/net
EERBFE credit exposures:
—iR7T - Banks 1,813,911 1,690,666
— =8 — Corporates 441,229 1,122,993
—Hfth — Others 111,413 113,276
2,366,553 2,926,935
[R\ B AN SLAR - Risk-weighted amounts:
—3R1T - Banks 711,207 675,725
—=8 — Corporates 404,875 1,068,165
—Hfth — Others 21,873 36,760

2016512 A31 H 2015412 431 H -
TERELABEAZZREENTERSE
Az EERmE -

1,137,955 1,780,650

There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style
transactions and credit derivatives contracts at 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015.
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EEEFBHE 2R -
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THEREE -
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EIRHER MR AN B R R M 3.3 -

(C) EERH

REBERBRE(BHL) FFEXREERBE
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BRER/ASERSER &2 BRI 2 ESHRR
APEFTERA 2 ERFHARE -

NEE 7 BH AR O AREBEASREET
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I NER 2 RE  ZIREAEEEZ27.26%
(20154 : 21.29% ) B FIEREEDIER ©
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and
public light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to
customers, the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued
by governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.

Real estate properties taken as collateral are evaluated before
the loan can be drawn. For property collateral supporting
problem accounts, their open market values are appraised at
least every three months. For property collateral that has been
repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for realisation as
soon as practicable.

(e) Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the
risk management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note
3.3 to the financial statements.

() Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to
calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures on Basel Ill basis.
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAIs that the Group has
used in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures
below.

The asset securitisation exposures of the Group represented
investment in structured investment vehicles managed by third
party portfolio managers and in which the Group is an investor. The
investment is classified as a financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss in the Group’s banking book and has been
assessed as impaired since 2007. It is carried at a residual value of
27.26% (2015: 21.29%) of the par value as at 31 December 2016
based on price quote obtained from the investment manager.
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(B2) EEZEHtbw

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f)  Asset securitisation (Continued)

BB nE
g8
Bl 1,250%
AREE BERAEHR B
AME  Risk-weighted Exposures deducted from
B amount - BARE LTRRE-RELR “HEAR
#EHL Securitisation Outstanding at1,250% Capital Common Equity Tier 2
BRI exposures amounts risk weight  requirements  Tier 1 Capital Capital
2016 & 2016
BHHRAK Synthetic securitisations
—ERMEETA - Structured investment
vehicles 21,136 264,201 21,136 - -
20154 2015
HHRAK Synthetic securitisations
—ERMEEETA - Structured investment
vehicles 16,496 206,201 16,496 - -

(BR) BATHRZ IR AR B

AERBEN BB AT E D RS E B ERREE B
M FHEEAEER ) - RARFTIEEANEER
MZEEREBREEZRESN RAKRERE
ik - mERENE - HE  RERENEEET
HEBRE 2 ABPES  REMTREEESIME
Al - PR ER R B RS EEEEMAE

(9) Equity exposures in banking book

The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for
strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes
at inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital
appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment
analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,
marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger,
and various other control guidelines. Listed equity holdings are valued
on the basis of market bid prices.

2016 2015
REHE #E 2 2H IS Realised gains from sales/liquidations 30,843 =
IR 7 B hIRE Unrealised revaluation gains
—BEBsEREEERERNKEER — Amount included in reserves but not
Z through income statement 95,964 123,415
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9. EREEm@m)
(%) RITRZFRER

9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book

%
Currency
BT ESH ARH Hit B3
2016 F 2016 HK$ USs$ CNY Others Total
MEEREE Interest rate risk shock
FF200%F +200 basis points
— BRI/ (R D) - Increase/(decline) in earnings 201,000 (176,000) 1,000 (49,000) (23,000)
Currency
BT e AR ity A5
20155 2015 HK$ Us$ CNY Others Total
HEEBEE Interest rate risk shock
+F200%F +200 basis points
— &7,/ CAD) - Increase/(decline) in earnings 110,000 (156,000) (8,000) (42,000) (96,000)

(E) BERR

AEEZE - EETREABERREAR  BES
REBEAS  —BYRAREENE > MEAEEE
BRI Z R IERRA S - WiEB— 555
ERBEBER - BRTAM  RERREMHRRRE
LEER RARFIEEENEZRRESETA
BIE - BRIERBREAREREZ B & (MR ERR K&
NHEEZE® ) BRI REEAEEZBE
FERERRABEEFE o RIERRRARDEE
ZERHTRAREEEZRIHETATERER
=BEEEABMEK o ERRY — AR A RREE
Rt BRIERR TG FE o R - A - BT
KRR o B[R 5 B ) & 2 V5 T b (B i o iR 1
[RBRZRHE - RAMNRERIZ TR EET o

RBEERRBIXABEAEREXE 2 FE - K
SEERERBAGI  RIEETBER kTS - X
BB ERERHRSIREPIETAR ©

528 R PR AR N B DB R
FWATFERERREN - AEE2 AREER
AREERREERREAREEZRRRAMN
p o

RERITHR AR 20165 F

(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management, and an
independent risk management team and operational risk officers
from each business and support function, and operating through a
set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk incident
reporting and tracking system, and control self-assessment and
key risk indicator tools. The Operational Risk and Internal Control
Committee (“ORICC”) has been set up to oversee the operational
risk management and internal control matters of the Group. ORICC is
chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors and
senior management as members. Together with a well-established
internal control system, operational risk can be adequately identified,
assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk
framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation recovery
policies and plans have been established and tested for all critical
business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
The Group’s RMCC have an overall oversight of the performance and
effectiveness of operational risk management.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
() Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; anti-money
laundering and counter terrorist financing; proper staff training and
supervision; staff awareness of compliance issues; proper handling
of customer complaints or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound
business practices. Standards are set and policies and procedures
are established by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce
vulnerability to reputation risk.

(k) Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group in line with the
Group’s corporate mission, ensure business strategies are developed
to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic development and
implementation to secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic
goals, ensure proper change management is in place, review business
performance and address issues arising from anticipated operational
or market changes, deploy proper resources to achieve the Group’s
objectives, and authorise management to take appropriate actions to
mitigate risks.

() Compliance with the Basel lll Capital Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il
has become effective from January 2007, the Bank has adopted
the standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and the
basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the default
approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly,
the Bank has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the
standards required for these approaches.

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA had published the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules between 2012 and 2015, and
revised SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process” in 2012
and 2016. The revised capital standards and related regulatory
requirements have come into force for all locally incorporated
authorised institutions in Hong Kong starting from 1 January 2013.
The Bank has enhanced its capital management and reporting
framework as well as disclosures for meeting the new requirements.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital Standards
(Continued)

In addition to the implementation of the Banking (Capital) Rules under
the Basel Il framework in Hong Kong, two new capital buffers, namely
the Capital Conservation Buffer and Countercyclical Capital Buffer,
designed to ensure that banks build up sufficient capital to withstand
periods of stress and system-wide risk associated with periods of
excessive aggregate credit growth, have commenced to phase in
since 1 January 2016. To align with the regulatory requirements,
the Bank’s capital management framework has been enhanced to
incorporate the two capital buffers as elements in the setting of
internal capital targets for capital adequacy monitoring and capital
planning.

To address the negative externalities posed by systemically
important institutions, the Basel Committee established a framework
in November 2011 (subsequently updated in July 2013) for the
identification of global systemically important banks (“G-SIBs”) and
the determination of their corresponding HLA capital requirements.
Subsequently, a principles-based framework for dealing with
domestic systemically important banks (“D-SIBs”) was issued by the
Basel Committee in October 2012. Based on the latest list of G-SIBs
and D-SIBs issued by the Financial Stability Board (“FSB”) and the
HKMA respectively, the Bank is neither designated as a G-SIB nor
D-SIB and is therefore not subject to further capital surcharge.

(m) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the New
Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy
which requires the relevant business and supporting units, including
GRD, to review the critical requirements, risk assessment and
resources plan before the launch. New products or services which
could have a significant impact on the Group’s risk profile should be
brought to the attention of the Board or its designated committee(s)
before the launch. The Group’s Internal Audit function performs
regular independent review and testing to ensure compliance by the
relevant units in the new product approval process.
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(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(n) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.

10. REMUNERATION SYSTEM
(@) Remuneration Principles

The Group adopts the following remuneration principles:

o Pay for performance is the guiding principle to reward individual
performance and contribution, which are measured through the
performance management process.

° The remuneration structure is based on various factors such
as business needs, market situations and the principles set
out in relevant legal and regulatory requirements applicable to
employees’ remuneration.

o The Group Remuneration Policy (“GRP”) is to align with the
Group’s risk management framework, and to support the
achievement of long-term financial soundness of the Group,
including its key subsidiary banks.

° Variable remuneration is designed to align employees’ incentive
awards with their performance and contributions in the long
term, and the time horizons of risk.

° Generally, the proportion of variable remuneration to

total remuneration increases in line with the seniority and
responsibilities of an employee.
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10.

(a)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration Principles (Continued)

The appropriate proportion of variable remuneration to be
deferred depends on a number of factors, including an
employee’s seniority, role, responsibilities and activities
within the Group, the time horizons of the risks incurred by
the employee’s activities and the overall level of their variable
remuneration both in absolute terms and as a proportion of his/
her fixed pay.

Decision of individual remuneration package will depend on
market pay levels, individual performance and contribution,
principles set out in the GRP, and performance and affordability
of the Group, and consideration of regulatory guidelines.

The Group’s remuneration strategy is to position itself at market

median to upper quartile level, and offers to its employees

remuneration packages, which normally consist of guaranteed

cash and variable remuneration largely in the form of discretionary

performance incentive bonus, that as a whole will properly reward

individual performance and are competitive relative to market pay

levels.

(b)

Governance of the Remuneration System

()  Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Group’s Board of Directors approves the GRP and assumes
the ultimate responsibility for overseeing the formulation,
implementation and update of the GRP. The Board of the
Bank’s parent company, DSBG, has in place the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”), which is a committee
of the Board of DSBG having oversight responsibilities and
authority on remuneration system and practices over DSBG and
its subsidiaries, including the Bank. Members of the NRC are
appointed by the DSBG Board. The majority of the members
of NRC are independent non-executive directors of DSBG
and of the Bank. The committee is responsible, among other
things, for the review and endorsement of the nomination of
directors, approval of the remuneration of directors and senior
management. The Board delegates the following responsibilities
and authorities to the NRC:

° Assists the Board in discharging its responsibility for
the design and operation of the Group’s remuneration
system;
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10.

(b)

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)

(i) Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the

Nomination & Remuneration Committee (Continued)

° Reviews, and makes recommendations to the Board
in respect of the Group’s remuneration policy and
practices and ensures that these are determined based
on appropriate factors such as business needs, market
practices and the principles set out in relevant legal and
regulatory requirements;

o Determines the specific remuneration packages of
members of senior management of the Group;

o Evaluates any practices or recommendation by which
remuneration is paid for potential future revenues or
benefits whose timing and likelihood remain uncertain;
and

o Ensures that regular review of the Group’s remuneration
system and its operation is sustained.

The NRC held three meetings in 2016 and 2015 respectively.
No director’s fee was payable to the Bank’s Independent Non-
Executive Directors, as they were remunerated by the Bank’s
holding company, DSBG or ultimate holding company, DSFH.

(i) Review of the Remuneration System

Internal Audit Division (“IAD”) of the Group is responsible to
conduct internal monitoring of the remuneration system and
its operation to ensure compliance with the GRP. As required
by the Group’s remuneration framework, a review, at least on
an annual basis, of the Group’s remuneration system and its
operation, which includes an assessment of consistency with
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by
the HKMA, is conducted independently of the management and
the result is submitted to the NRC and to the HKMA if required.
The independent review can be conducted by an external
party, or by the Group’s internal audit, legal and compliance or
human resources functions, or a combination of these parties as
directed by the NRC. The NRC will report any material issues in
relation to the Group’s remuneration system or practices to the
Board of the Group and the Bank.
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10.

(b)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(i)  Review of the Remuneration System (Continued)

IAD conducted the review in the second quarter of 2016 jointly
with Human Resources Division (“HRD”) and noted that the
Group’s remuneration system was in compliance with the GRP
and consistent with the HKMA’s guideline in this connection.

(i)  Roles of the Risk Control Functions

Risk control functions, including GRD, Legal and Compliance
Division (“LCD”) and FCD, are involved in the process of design
and implementation of the GRP. They will play a continuing
role in the operation of the remuneration system in relation to
matters such as risks measures and risk judgements. They
will also be consulted by the NRC, where appropriate and
independent of business divisions, on their view and advice
as to how compensation relates to risk at various levels within
the Group or specific business division, including the proper
alignment of risk and reward, and the time horizon on risk
and performance measurement, changes in the risk profile
of the Bank in general, or of a particular business division or
major business strategy, and the considerations as regards
remuneration to properly align with risks taken, with the need to
balance the time horizon for longer term business performance
and risk realisation.

FCD together with GRD are responsible for the proper
disclosure of the Group’s remuneration system and practices,
and specific features relating to actual remuneration to comply
with the HKMA remuneration guideline. The heads of each of
the risk control functions report administratively to the Chief
Executive, and most have a functional reporting line to relevant
board-level committees chaired by independent non-executive
directors. All risk control functions specified above have direct
and independent access to the NRC on matters relating to the
Group’s remuneration system and practices. In addition, both
GRD and LCD have direct access to the Bank’s board-level
RMCC.
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10.

(b)

(c)

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(i)  Roles of the Risk Control Functions (Continued)

The Group’s banking and financial services business model
is a risk underwriting and risk management business. With
risk management as a key function and control process of
the Group, a key purpose of GRD is to assist the Group to
maximise the probability of achieving the Group’s long-term
objectives while ensuring that the Group, its business and
risk control units, in pursuing various business strategies and
managing risk taking activities, will have proper regard to short-
term constraints, limits and regulatory guidelines, and with the
general sense and appropriate process on striking a proper
balance of risk and reward for the long-term success and
soundness of the Group.

(iv)  Roles of the Human Resources Division

One of the key roles of HRD is to support the Group to attract
quality candidates and retain and motivate existing employees.
To achieve these objectives, HRD regularly reviews the Group’s
human resources policies and employees’ compensation
and benefits with reference to market practices to ensure
competitiveness. HRD also provides support to the design and
implementation of remuneration policy and measures to meet
regulatory requirements and align with market practices.

Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group

The GRP is established to provide the key remuneration principles

and practices covering all employees of the Group, and the key risk

management requirements relating to remuneration, performance and

risk control. Specific regards are on the remuneration and the roles of

the following personnel:

1)

Senior Management are senior executives with accountability
to the Board, and are responsible for executing the firm-
wide strategies, guiding the development of the Group, and
overseeing business activities, risk management and internal
control of the Group. These mainly include the Chairman, Vice
Chairmen, Chief Executive and Executive Directors of the Bank.
The total number of individuals classified under this category is
9 (2015: 9).
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10.
(c)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group (Continued)

“Key Personnel”, i.e. individual employees whose duties
or activities in the course of their employment involve the
assumption of material risk or the taking on of material
exposures on behalf of the Group. During 2016 and 2015, the
Group did not have any employees classified as Key Personnel
under its existing remuneration system.

Groups of employees whose activities in the aggregate may
expose the Group to material amounts of risk, and who
are subject to the same or similar incentive arrangements
(including employees who are incentivised to meet certain
quotas or targets by payment of meaningful amount of variable
remuneration). During 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have
any employees classified in this category under its existing
remuneration system.

Employees within risk control functions (including group risk
management, legal and compliance, internal audit, and financial
control).

Remuneration of all employees in risk control functions is independent

of the performance of the business units which they exercise control

or oversight. Generally, the remuneration of these employees is

determined by their respective Divisions, and Top Management will

be involved in the determination of remuneration of the respective

senior personnel. Management of business units are not allowed to

determine the remuneration of employees in the risk control functions.

Subsidiaries in overseas locations broadly follow the principles

and guidelines set out in the GRP, and may customise the relevant

parts where appropriate to address their local legal/regulatory

requirements, market situations and business needs.
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(d)

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration
(i) Components

The structure of remuneration is generally composed of the
following components:

° Fixed remuneration including basic salary, allowances,

retirement benefits, and share options and

° Variable incentives-based remuneration including
discretionary performance incentive bonus, and for some
front-line sales and services staff, incentive payment
based on business and sales performance.

In determining an appropriate balance between fixed and
variable remuneration, the Group takes into consideration the
seniority, role, responsibilities and activities of its employees,
the need to promote appropriate behaviour amongst employees
that supports the Group’s risk management framework and
long-term financial soundness, as well as market pay practices.
The proportion of variable remuneration to total remuneration
generally increases in line with the seniority and responsibilities
of an employee.

For Senior Management, a fair to substantial proportion of
the remuneration is paid in the form of variable remuneration,
which is mainly granted in the form of performance incentive
bonus. Starting from 2010 performance year, a portion of the
bonus is deferred in the form of deferred bonus and subject to
vesting over a period of at least three years. This practice is to
achieve an effective alignment of incentive awards with the time

horizons of risks.

DSBG, the Bank’s holding company, and DSFH, the Group’s
ultimate holding company, have established executive share
option schemes under which, and subject to proper approval
process and vesting conditions, share options can be granted
to senior executives and other employees of the Bank to reward
their performance and contribution, and as a means to retain
relevant senior executives or employees. The cost of the share
options granted is borne by the Bank.
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10.

(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk
Adjustment

The Group’s performance is evaluated based on the
achievement against a set of pre-determined business or
financial targets that are of broader and higher level nature, such
as profitability target, and supervisory rating assigned by the
HKMA, which were set at the beginning of the performance year.
The performance of a division in a year is determined by the Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive based on the actual performance
and achievement against a set of pre-determined objectives or
targets of the division for the year set at the beginning of the
year, contributions to the Group and other factors considered
relevant for assessing performance. For business divisions, the
pre-determined targets normally include return on allocated
capital and business growth targets. Individual employees’
performance measures include assessable financial (e.g.
revenue, profits, costs, customer base, etc.) and non-financial
factors (e.g. competence, adherence to internal control, security
control and risk management policies, compliance with legal,
regulatory and ethical standards, etc.).

Within the risk-based remuneration framework operated by the
Group, GRD performs assessment of the Group’s risk profile
which takes into account major risks such as credit risk, market
and interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. In
aligning the remuneration of employees with the performance
of the business units or support functions to which they belong
and the risks taken on by the Group, both quantitative and
qualitative risk-adjusted measures are adopted by the Group.
Examples of the quantitative risk-adjusted measures applied
include risk-adjusted return on capital and liquidity costs.

GRD has the responsibilities of managing different types of risk
and maintaining a sound risk management system to enable
the Group to achieve its objectives, which include achieving
proper risk and return balance for the Group and its major
lines of business. The Head of GRD has access to the EC and
reports functionally to the board-level RMCC chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director and administratively to the
Chief Executive.
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(d)

(LA T Thz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i) Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

Based on the Group’s performance against the pre-determined
targets set at the beginning of the year, long-term performance
and affordability of the Group as well as other relevant internal
and external factors, the Chief Executive proposes a preliminary
amount of total performance bonus for the year and allocation

considerations.

GRD provides an annual report to the NRC, or on a more
frequent basis as appropriate, on the risk management
performance of the Group and for the purpose of remuneration
review. The GRD report will normally include but is not limited to
the following:

° any significant changes in the risk profile of the Group
during the year;

o any significant improvement or deterioration in the system

of internal controls;

o any significant deterioration or concerns about the
external economic environment that could have potential
adverse impact to the Bank’s businesses and financial
performance;

° any significant risk concerns raised by regulatory
authorities;

° any events that caused significant damage to the
reputation of the Group; and

° specific business or risk actions taken to help mitigate risk
or improve revenue (risk adjusted or justified), or actions
which are considered to have contributed to the long-term
success or values of the Group.

On the basis of its review, the Head of GRD can provide
comment or recommendation to NRC if any specific factor
or adjustment needs to be considered in determining the
performance bonus pool for the year based on the qualitative
measures as listed above. The Chairman of the Group, in
consultation with the NRC if necessary, has the discretion and
flexibility to withhold all or part of the provisionally accrued
bonus amount when circumstances warrant.
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10.

(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

The approved performance bonus pool for the performance
year is allocated to divisions based on the relative contribution
of different divisions, their staff profile as well as consideration
of applicable factors, including any input from the risk control
functions, and assessment of risk and return of the key
businesses. Once the respective performance bonus pool of
a division has been determined, the division head will decide
the bonus payments for individual employees taking into
consideration their individual performance and contribution,
internal relativity, the prevailing bonus distribution guideline and
available budget.

(iii)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria

The proportion of variable remuneration to be deferred varies
from one employee to another and depends on a series of
factors including the employee’s seniority, his or her roles,
responsibilities and activities within the Group, the time horizons
of the risks incurred by such activities and the overall level of the
employee’s variable remuneration both in absolute terms and as
a proportion of his or her fixed pay.

Starting the 2010 performance year, a minimum vesting period
for any deferred variable remuneration for the Bank’s Senior
Management is adopted so that the deferred remuneration
will only be vested and released to the awardees with due
consideration of fulfilling vesting conditions. These pre-defined
vesting conditions, depending on the level of the seniority of the
Senior Management and key roles assumed by each, normally
include factors such as the nature of the business outcomes
and risk arising from the activities undertaken by relevant
Senior Management in the past, the timeframe during which
the risks from these activities are likely to be realised, and the
assessment from risk control functions on the Bank’s internal
control, risk management and compliance performance. The
vesting of the deferred bonus over a period of years is gradual
and no faster than on a pro-rata basis, subject to fulfiiment and
validation of the pre-defined performance conditions. For the
deferred cash bonus under the 2016 performance incentive
bonus to be awarded to Senior Management in March 2017,
the maximum deferment period is no less than three years from
March 2017.
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)
(i)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria (Continued)

A “claw-back” mechanism is applied in respect of any unvested
deferred variable remuneration if (i) the vesting conditions
are not fulfilled; (ii) performance measurement was based on
data which is later proven to have been manifestly misstated;
(iii) fraud or other malfeasance on the part of the individual
employee; or (iv) major violations by the employee of internal
control policies.

Departure of employees will not trigger early payout of deferred
remuneration that is still within the deferment period other than

in exceptional cases, such as on compassionate grounds.

Remuneration for the Senior Management

The tables below summarise the aggregate quantitative information
on the remuneration for the Bank’s Senior Management as defined in

accordance with the SPM CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System” issued by the HKMA.

(1)  Remuneration Structure

2016 2015
ZHRAHBE SEIN =
HEZ12A31H For the year ended %] Number of k-] Number of
LEE 31 December Amount Beneficiaries Amount  Beneficiaries
(& 7 % BAl Fixed remuneration
—BEfkENZEE - Cash paid and payable 45,945 9 43,568 9
— DARRHE 2 1~ 2 SRR - Equity settled share
(BsE1 & 2) options (Note 1 and 2) 3,953 5 - -
FEEM(BENUT ) Variable remuneration
FTR 2 EESTBN) (including deferred
remuneration as shown
in (2) below)
- B kENZEE - Cash paid and payable 72,764 9 71,531 9
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10.
(e)

Note:

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration for the Senior Management (Continued)

(1)  Remuneration Structure (Continued)

This reflects the cost of equity-settled share options borne by the Bank
recognised on the exercise of share options by relevant members of
Senior Management, with DSBG shares issued to them in the year under
the DSBG executive share option scheme.

The cost of equity-settled share options borne by the Bank on the
vesting of the share options held by relevant members of Senior
Management in the year under the DSBG executive share option scheme
is HK$2,172,000 (2015: HK$2,209,000). Total cost of these outstanding
vested options (not yet exercised) as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$3,280,000 (2015: HK$5,188,000).

The cost of cash-settled share options borne by the Bank on the
vesting of the share options held by relevant members of Senior
Management in the year under the DSBG executive share option scheme
is HK$8,668,000 (2015: HK$9,840,000). Total cost of these outstanding
vested options (not yet exercised) as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$43,341,000 (2015: HK$39,359,000).

(2)  Deferred Remuneration

Starting 2010, a portion of the cash variable remuneration,
being the performance incentive bonus awarded to members of
Senior Management for their performance in each year, is paid
or payable in the form of deferred cash bonus. The payment
of deferred bonus is subject to vesting and performance
review in the 3 years immediately following the year when the
deferred bonus is awarded. Vesting factors and terms are pre-
determined, and are subject to the review and approval of the
Group’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee. If vested,
the deferred bonus will be paid by 3 equal annual installments
over the 3-year period.
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10. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
(¢) Remuneration for the Senior Management (Continued)
(2) Deferred Remuneration (Continued)
JE FIE 5 B

Deferred
Remuneration

2016 2015

ENREFZEE Cash paid and payable
NREFEE12A31B K Balance at 31 December of the

W1 A1 B 2885 preceding year and at 1 January 50,549 43,453
HE12A31 HIEFE ¢ For the year ended 31 December:

BTze%8 Awarded 19,648 19,422

EEB RN Vested and paid (14,690) (12,326)
12 A 31 B2 &4 Balance at 31 December 55,507 50,549

201763 AR HEB RN ZIBELEEAL (R
RRBEREEZRTHKBALREZET
&) H4a%E 417,225,050 8 A E B 1E
£ EHIR20164512 A31 B 2 &% A » M=
F FE & #0585 14,690,000 7 o 2 B FE FE
EHIR2015F 12 A 31 HZ &8 o

The total value of the deferred cash bonus to be vested and
payable in March 2017, subject to satisfying performance
review and fulfilment of pre-determined vesting conditions,
amounts to HK$17,225,050, which is included in the above
balance as at 31 December 2016. The corresponding amount
for last year included in the above balance as at 31 December
2015 was HK$14,690,000.

BN
Not yet vested
2016 2015

R fE Share options
NEFE12A8318% Balance at 31 December of

®1 A1 8 2&E8% the preceding year and at 1 January 14,568 28,056
HE12 A31BLLFE ¢ For the year ended 31 December:

EHE (R AEZATR) Vested (and excluded from this pool) (10,840) (12,049)

EBRERE(GE) Price adjustments (Note 1) (1,171) (1,439)
12 A 31 HE &5 Balance at 31 December 2,657 14,568

Note:

ERARENABBZUNBR S I N2 RRERF 1. Price adjustments refer to the changes in the values of the not-yet-

WARFRITEER D X FERB TSI EEE
B LRI Z % B AR TANE

o

vested cash-settled share options arising from fluctuations in the fair
value of shares of DSBG in the year, and the adjustments to such share
option costs borne by the Bank.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 20 to
191, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarized as follows:
o Impairment of loans and advances to customers

° Impairment assessment on investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded loan impairment allowance of
HK$855,755 thousand against the total
loan portfolio of HK$113,657,865 thousand,
with HK$435,210 thousand as individual
impairment allowances and HK$420,545
thousand as collective impairment
allowances.

Management assessed the impairment of
loans by considering the following:

. The identification of impairment
events, which differs based upon
the type of lending product and
location. Judgement is required to
determine whether a loss has been
incurred.

. The measurement of impairment,
including the assessment of
whether historical experience
is appropriate when assessing
the probability of default in the
portfolio.

. The parameters and assumptions
used to calculate impairment
including the valuation of collateral
for secured lending and the impact
of economic factors to the credit
quality of the loan portfolio.

Loan impairment allowances is an audit
focus due to the materiality of the balances
and the underlying calculations are subject
to significant judgement of management.

We understood and tested key controls in relation
to:

. the accuracy and completeness of
the transfer of loan data, including
outstanding loan balances and loan loss
data, between underlying source systems
and the impairment models that the Group
used;

. the post-lending ongoing monitoring
controls in place to detect the occurrence
of the impairment events; and

. the management’s impairment
assessment and estimation processes,
including the assessment of the
impairment models and calculation of
impairment allowances based on the loan
data and impairment events identified in
a way which is appropriate for addressing
the credit risk of the Group’s loan
portfolio.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have
also performed the following procedures:

. We assessed the criteria for determining
whether an impairment event had
occurred and the relevant impact on the
estimated impairment allowances.

. To corroborate with the management’s
identification of the impairment events,
we selected samples of performing loans
with characteristics indicating higher
risk of impairment event occurrence as
well as non-performing loans. To identify
such characteristics, we performed,
included but not limited to, analysis on
non-performing loans; business risks on
industries; and geographical locations of
borrowers, in particular, Mainland China
corporate exposures. On those samples,
we independently assessed whether
impairment events had occurred and
tested the appropriateness and adequacy
of impairment allowances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

. For a sample of individually impaired
loans we understood the latest
developments at the borrowers and
the basis of measuring the impairment
allowance and considered whether key
management judgments were appropriate
given the borrowers’ circumstances.
We also re-performed management’s
impairment calculation and tested key
inputs to the impairment calculation
including valuation of collateral held
and estimated future cash flow from
borrowers.

. For the collective impairment allowances,
which reflects and addresses losses
incurred but not yet identified, we sample
tested the accuracy and completeness
of the underlying loan information used
in the impairment models by agreeing
data to the Group’s loan systems as
well as re-performing the calculation of
the impairment allowances. For the key
assumptions applied in the models, we
challenged management regarding the
appropriateness by applying our industry
knowledge and benchmarking with peer
banks historical data.

For individual impairment allowances, we found no
material exceptions from our testing. For collective
impairment allowances, we found the key
assumptions and inputs used in the impairment
models were reasonable and in line with our
industry knowledge and market information.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment on investment in an associate, Bank of Chongging (“ BOCQ”)

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group’s investment in BOCQ is
accounted for as an associate, using the
equity method. The Group has recorded
the investment in BOCQ of HK$ 4,253,393
thousand as at 31 December 2016.

Management identified the carrying value
of the investment is higher than the market
value of BOCQ which is considered
an indicator of potential impairment.
Management performed an impairment
assessment and has assessed that the
recoverable amount of investment in BOCQ
was higher than its carrying value and
concluded that there is no impairment.
The recoverable amount was measured as
value-in-use (“VIU”) estimate calculated by
discounted cash flow model (“DCF”).

We focused on impairment assessment
on investment in BOCQ because of
the materiality of the balance and the
DCF models involved highly subjective
management judgements and assumptions.

We assessed the DCF model used by the
management and examined the impairment
assessment performed by management which
set out the basis for their judgements and
assumptions with relevant supporting evidence
including historical market data. We used our
understanding of BOCQ (with reference to external
market information, third-party sources, including
analyst reports, and publicly available BOCQ
information) and the Chinese banking industry to
challenge and assess the reasonableness of the
key assumptions applied, including the discount
rate, profit growth rate and terminal value.

We also performed sensitivity analysis on
the VIU estimates to evaluate how sensitive
management’s assessment is to the change of
different inputs of key assumptions individually
and collectively in different scenarios.

Based on the procedures we performed, we found
that the VIU estimated by management was within
areasonable range.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Sin Bun, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited

ERBED1T

Hong Kong Island Branches

BEEFDT BB AT 20557

Aberdeen 20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen 2554 5463 2554 0843
SEEEROLDIT BB 18508 E T O RS — 1 10 555

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 2529 1338 3110 2818

No. 18 Harcourt Road

e 51T 3% S # B 758 482 5%

Causeway Bay 482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay 2891 2201 2591 6037

PEZ 1T EEBEF 195IRAEM T AR

Central Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427

BEILDTT 238 293-299 SR = A M T 15-22 5% 48 K&

Fortress Hill Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

HETIEDTT HLITE 108 5 RFT R @ O T BSR4

Gloucester Road Shop B, G/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road 2507 8866 2507 8654

S 1T SR SE 13RS HAEM T AR

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, 2572 0708 2572 0718
Happy Valley

BIEWH1T S8 B TR AT 100 SR B TR A IEF I T G59 5%

Heng Fa Chuen Unit G59, G/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 100 Shing 2558 7485 2889 2520
Tai Road, Chaiwan

HETBEST B 2E 164 5%

Johnston Road 164, Johnston Road, Wanchai 2572 8849 2891 3743

BRI AT TRIEE12F B T A2RAR1EAR

Kennedy Town Shop A2, G/F, & Unit A, 1/F, Man Kwong Court, 12 Smithfield Road 2849 2280 2960 0790

AR 298 433-437 SRIRBER B

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 2811 4474

BHEEDT LEHEB57-87 FALEM T G854

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

AREEST SRRET443-453 550 T 15-16 55 4

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

ERH1T FIR{EEE T 288 5 SBE EAEM T B2k fE —1EB =

Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 2581 2216

AEHD1T AR EBARIE 1 5B A H T~ 501 554

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing 2884 4802 2884 3151

Road & No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited

NEEBDT

Kowloon Branches

HMEHDT
Shing Yip Street
AMD1T
Hunghom

EB D 1T
Jordan
BIES1T

Kwun Tong

BED1T
Lok Fu
EZHWAIT

Mei Foo Sun
Chuen

HEADT
Mongkok
AR 21T
Shamshuipo
BRIEES T
Telford Gardens
TRED1T
Tokwawan
HERST
Tseung Kwan O
S ER
FER A R N D 4T
Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza

RPBAHIT
Tsimshatsui

BEREE105R M T AL

Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong

AR ENET 28 SR SR EIH N 3 R4 SR 1 E 2R E R 218 354
Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop

No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom
{2 EE 335 57

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

BURREE 45T E RO T 7-9 574

Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road,
Kwun Tong

TREEM %S E S —1E 1101 = 1102 554
Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Plaza, Wang Tau Hom

FF U A AR E 10A T~ N26E & F 5= 47
Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

AT /4 5R F0E 697 5%
697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

IRIKITRERET 124 55730 T
G/F, 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo

JEEEEE RS —H 12 F5A-F6A SR
Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay

4 858 245B [ 247 S =SB E 2 Bty
G/F, Mei King Mansion, Phase Il, No. 245B and 247 Tokwawan Road

15 R 2= 18157 9 5% PopCorn &5 i B G58 55 i 48
Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O

1% ERFTEBB RO =B — 1 127 R4

Shop 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza Ill, Tseung Kwan O

A NH R E 66-70 AR
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

2191 8103

2365 8110

2385 0161

2389 3911

2337 6300

2370 2660

2394 4261

2361 0951

2927 4130

2365 9035

2752 1223

2927 2101

2366 9121

2191 8723

2363 5917

2782 0993

2389 8239

2337 6922

2370 2006

2391 9104

2958 0985

2755 4967

2363 5696

2752 1098

2702 2305

2311 1491
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch ik Address B Tel & HE Fax
RETRITHRA A
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

NEEBDT

Kowloon Branches

BERUDT |ANIIEREET 103 5= AL O T G3C S i

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Wong Tai Sin Plaza, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

S i 3t 3 4T A 0 3R 238 5611 5%

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 2385 9285

HREDIT

New Territories Branches

®F 1T SR BT XA 77 SRS UREETS FI5 1 116 5%

Kwai Fong Shop No. 116, First Floor, Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate, 2487 8033 2489 12583
177 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung

BRLESD1T FS821L 78K 608 5% 5 #2 1L 3% =18 335 5 4

Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan

BREDIT B 1K AR 33 5% 5 7K 108 D-E 574

Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 2435 1368 2435 1582

sy bR K P82 BK 168-236 558847 11 K 93-95 5k 4

Ocean Walk Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130

WHDT Y BT B AR i T O SR AR

Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 2601 2413

WHEDT YDA E 286-288 St

Sha Tsui Road G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 26151510 2615 1099

i=b/\ Ky KT & 55-59 5k JKERIEHL T B SR A

Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 2671 5030 2672 1533

REDIT RIFZTREE 1 SR A E S T~ 53 5% 2 54 57 7

Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637

RKERT > K [E3E 55-56 S IEE A 14-18 S & BE B T 1 & 25548

Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 2691 1272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

44T Branch

ik Address

T Tel

& HE Fax

REFBVITHERA A
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

HREDTT

New Territories Branches

RKEBIT
Tin Shui Wai

2BA1T
Tsuen Wan

BT
Tuen Mun

FORDAT
Tung Chung

BEIT

Fanling

THEWEDT

Yuen Long Castle

Peak Road

TCEAR KB RIS 3SR KRB S8 KB P45 112 L120 5R48

Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,

Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai, Yuen Long
EEARE14-16 BB KRNE

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan
B E B 52-62 SR EFIEH T 455 2 55k

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

R OB SR AT 1 SR AR SR T 23 5k &
Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

By%a A FIEE 88 SRAEEE S T A11-A14 K2 110-112 575
Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza,
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

TLEAT LI AR TTRA Y 162-168 Sk A Z T C 5 i
Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

2448 9008

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 4555

2448 9112

2415 0984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2669 9950

2479 4522
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DITH MR (mmss)

LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

44T Branch

ik Address B Tel

RAEERITROBRAF

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

R 1T

Macau Branches

[h-E:t

Main Branch
RED1T
Almirante Lacerda

EADBRAIT
Areia Preta

BEST
Kin Wa

B 51T
Mercadores
EHWMA1T
Nape

BEM 1T

Palha

AT AT

Ponte e Horta
DEES 1T
Ribeira do Patane
BlaT

Toi San

Sith S #H D 1T
Pedro Coutinho

K SE572 5%

Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572 (853) 8791 0000

TRLERIEE A B 4357 B

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43B (853) 2831 6191

VIR 5815 KX 5 K 80-30E 5%

Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo, Nos. 30-30E (853) 2837 8262

BIRGEDKEENE 13 Eit TAH
Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N,
Edf. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja A

(853) 2845 0759

B KA 40-42 3R AT

Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A (853) 2857 2610

R 4 B35 315-363 SR MEZ F R Lo T O
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpgéo, Nos. 315-363,
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

(853) 2872 2515

== bt

B H 7 4-6 5%

Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6 (853) 2837 3762

A)4T 0 29 5%
Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29

E =T S 5402 57
Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C

(853) 2837 8704

(853) 2895 2942

BILEEAS S E+— A MRS 18 E“CC &
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,
Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

(853) 2823 8483

S S AT 259 D&M T B&E

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, Loja B, R/C (853) 2821 6523

wEF ST

Taipa Branches

KFREAS T
Prince Flower City
BEAT

Tak Fok

AP RBNE AN FEMN — BEEM T 14
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

B ERREBEEESIEEFH
Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden,
R/C, Loja F, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

(853) 2882 1308

BRIRDIT

Coloane Branch

BEBRA1T
Coloane

RIS R 9 5% D

Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D, Coloane (853) 2888 2374
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LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

417 Branch #thit Address B Tel
RERIT (FE) BRAF

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

BT RYIT 7R R SR B% 5047 SR F L RITAE 1648

Head Office 16/F, Ping An Bank Building, 5047 Shennan Dong Road, (86-755) 2519 9033

EYNAEZAT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch
B2 1T

Guangzhou

=5 K6y
Shanghai
=Pk
Nanchang
|IDAT
Zhenjiang

G Xy
Foshan Sub-Branch

Luo Hu District, Shenzhen

YR LR e O T3 s s A B 250 (Jb R ) 4-7 1R4B1E 123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North), Industrial
Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

BREEMNmEFER AR 604-2 58 KFIRITAE B
2[Z01 &L

Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2,

North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
EETRERERILX8651EBE

Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Xu Hui District, Shanghai

IEEEmEfEE L1365 1-2/E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi

ARG ST T i A [ AR B 59 5%
59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

FEER & 5 LU T i [ A U5k B3 B B 8 5 U 8 7 SR B SR 5
1BE1114H ~ 1204

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2238 5500

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 2411 3388

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555
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Paper from responsible sources

R BB BN RN ERNAER
Ew%:ocrg FSC™ C006398

Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#R{THRAF)

36/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
BEEETITE S N\BAFERPOL="1T7 &

Telephone E & - (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile {558 : (852) 2598 5052

Website  #81E : www.dahsing.com
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